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FROM THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE
As I reflect on this
year, I am very proud
of our continual focus
and commitment to
providing safe, quality
and compassionate care.
Together, we have built
solid foundations that
will help us to continue
to deliver quality care
during the challenging
times.
Maintaining a balance of
quality and sustainability
is paramount and while
the NHS as a whole is
subject to increasing
demands and financial
pressures, we continue
to place our focus on
transforming services
to minimise impacts
and make quality
improvements for
patients and their
families.
In this year’s report,
we share insight into
the findings of the
2015 Care Quality
Commission’s (CQC)
report when they
reviewed our services
in February 2015. Our
rating across all areas
for care was ‘good’,
which was particularly
pleasing as it recognised
the dedication and
contribution of all of
our staff within the
Trust. While we achieved
an overall rating of
‘requires improvement’,
it was encouraging
to see services rated
as ‘outstanding’ too.
I know we have the
strong foundations,

enthusiasm, talent and
determination necessary
to deliver all of the
necessary improvements
together across the
Trust and with all our
partners.
Looking back, there is
much for us to celebrate
this year. In particular,
we have chosen to focus
on patient and carer
involvement, feedback
and staff engagement
as key enablers to drive
improvements overall. It
will be critical for us to
continue to utilise these
and strengthen them
further. Going forward,
we will continue to stay
close to our patients,
their families and
our staff so we never
become complacent or
unable to actively listen
to their experiences
and expertise. Feedback
from members of our
involvement team
has been critical to
our development,
and our work with
equalities groups has
created important
changes such as reverse
commissioning. We have
received invaluable
feedback with our
iWantGreatCare tool
and have made some
demonstrable changes
to how we deliver care
as a result.

assisting us in what we
do. I hope you all feel
proud of yourselves as
individuals and for what
you collectively help us
to do together. I know
every individual makes
a difference and I thank
you for your ongoing
support.

I look forward
to our future
with conviction
and optimism,
to delivering
services
that make
a difference
to people’s
lives and our
communities.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road
Kettering NN15 7PW
Email: chief.executive@nhft.nhs.uk
Phone: 01536 452045

We have high
expectations of all our
staff who provide care,
and I want to take
this opportunity to
thank them for their
ongoing dedication,
alongside our partners
and governors for

4

CONTENTS

PERFORMANCE REPORT
Introduction					9

Performance overview				10

Performance analysis				25

ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Accountability report				38

Introduction					40
Directors’ report				41

Remuneration report				67
Staff report					76

Governance					85
Regulatory ratings				93
Statement of responsibilities			
Annual governance statement			

95
97

5

QUALITY REPORT
Quality report						109

PART ONE
Introduction						112

Statement of quality					114
Statement from our director				

116

PART TWO
118
Our quality priorities for 2016/17			
119
Statements of assurance from the board		
128
National clinical audits					129
Local clinical audits					130
Research and innovation advice and support		
133
Reporting against core indicators			
137
Quality aims, priorities and results			

PART THREE

FINANCIAL
REPORT
179
Introduction			
181
Statement of responsibilities 182
Financial statements		
183
Notes to accounts		
188
Auditor’s report		
231
Financial report		

146
Duty of Candour					152
Sign up to Safety					
153
Patient experience					155
Staff engagement					157
Care Quality Commission ratings			
160
How our quality account was prepared 		
164
Our quality care priorities: an easy read version
165
Progress against our 2014/15 priorities			

APPENDICES
Annex 1
Statements from key stakeholders			

168

Annex 2
Statement of directors’ responsibilities			

178

6

7

PERFORMANCE REPORT

PERFORMANCE REPORT
Introduction					9

Performance overview				10

Performance analysis				25

8

INTRODUCTION
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
provides health and social care services to the people of
Northamptonshire, as well as some specialist services in
bordering and nearby counties.
We offer a comprehensive range of physical, mental
health and specialist services, many of which are
provided in hospitals, General Practitioner (GP) surgeries
and clinics. Our sites are located in Corby, Daventry,
Kettering, Northampton and East Northamptonshire.

We are committed to delivering
care for our patients in their own
homes whenever possible and
provide many services outside of
hospitals and in the community.
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PERFORMANCE
OVERVIEW
About us
As a health and wellbeing organisation that is
dedicated to providing care with compassion, our
strategic and organisational objectives keep quality
at the heart of what we do every day. By continually
innovating, and striving to make a difference to
our community, we aim to serve the people of
Northamptonshire and surrounds with affordable,
quality care. We deliver this from an understanding of
local health and social care needs, our economy and
the changing demands of our community.
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SERVICE PORTFOLIO
ADULT COMMUNITY SERVICES

SPECIALIST AMBULATORY CARE

Adult therapies
Adult dietetics
Adult speech and language therapy
Diabetes and high risk foot service
Musculoskeletal therapies
Podiatric surgery

Integrated sexual health services
HIV outpatient care
Integrated sexual health clinics

Community hospitals and rehabilitation
Community brain service
Community therapy rehabilitation
Community Hospitals: Corby, Danetre,
Hazelwood
Inpatient rehabilitation: Beechwood

Diabetic retinal screening
Dental services
Minor oral surgery
Oral health promotion

Planned care
Community nursing
Continence service
Diabetes multidisciplinary team
Phlebotomy services
Specialist nursing – heart failure
Specialist nursing – multiple sclerosis
Specialist nursing – Parkinson’s disease
Specialist nursing – tissue viability
Tuberculosis service
Unplanned care
Evening district nurses
Falls service
Intermediate care team
Specialist palliative care
Cynthia Spencer Day Hospice
End of life practice and development team
Hospices: Cynthia Spencer, Cransley
Hospice @ Home
Leg ulcer clinics
Lymphodaema service
Palliative care support services
Palliative care clinical nurse specialists
Specialist palliative care consultant outpatient
Specialist palliative care therapies

CHILDREN’S AND YOUNG
PEOPLE’S SERVICES
Specialist children’s services
ADHD and Asperger’s team
Child And Adolescent Mental Health
Services (CAMHS)
CAMHS inpatient:
The Burrows, The Sett
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MENTAL HEALTH
LEARNING DISABILITY
AND SPECIALTY
SERVICES

Community mental health
Acute hospital liaison service
ADHD and Asperger’s
Adult Community Mental Health
Team (CMHT)
Changing Minds - increasing access
to psychological therapies
Community Mental Health Teams
(CMHTs)
Crisis and telephone support service
Crisis resolution and home
treatment
Dementia services
Early intervention for psychosis
Eating disorders
Eating disorders day service
Early onset dementia
Older People’s Community Mental
Health Team (CMHT OA)
Older people’s CMHT
Olympus dementia step down
Personality disorder services
Primary mental health service
Mental Health individual packages
of care (IPC)
Memory assessment service
Section 136 suite
Stop smoking service
Wellbeing navigators
(commissioned from Mental Health
Collaborative)
Veteran’s liaison worker
Hospital and inpatient services
Adult inpatients acute: Avocet, Bay,
Cove, Harbour, Kingfisher wards

Children’s continence
Children’s dietetics
Children’s occupational therapy
Children’s occupational therapy specialist equipment in schools
Children’s physiotherapy
Children’s speech and language
therapy
Consultant community
paediatrics

Older people’s inpatients acute:
Brookview, Orchard, Riverside,
Spinney wards
Adult inpatient intensive care unit:
Marina ward
Adult inpatient low secure:
Wheatfield ward
Electro Convulsive Therapy (ECT)
Ketamine infusion treatment
Repetitive Transcranial Magnetic
Stimulation (rTMS)
Learning disabilities
Community teams for people with
learning disabilities (CTPLD)
Intensive support team
Inpatient assessment and treatment
unit
Inpatient respite service
Opportunities for you
Speciality services offender health
Her Majesty’s Prison (HMP) Onley
HMP Stocken
HMP Rye Hill
HMP Gartree
HMP Glen Parva
Cambridgeshire prison - HMP Little
Hey
Cambridgeshire prison - HMP
Whitemoor
Criminal justice healthcare services
Custody healthcare
Criminal justice - liaison and
diversion team
Rainsbrook specialist training centre
Forensic
Community substance misuse
Bedfordshire community drug and
alcohol services
Specialty services
Gender identity clinic
Sexual assault referral centre

Children’s and young people’s
referral management centre
Children’s palliative care
Community children’s nurses
Community learning disability
pilot
Integrated Looked After Children
team
Short Breaks for Disabled
Children and Young People:
The Squirrels, John Greenwood
Shipman, 82 Northampton Road

Specialist children’s community
nursing
Specialist diabetes service –
paediatrics
Specialist school nursing team
Ventilated babies
Universal children’s services
Breastfeeding support service
Family nurse partnership
Health visitors
School nursing
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Our history
We were formed in April 2001
following the merger of Northampton
Community Healthcare NHS Trust
and Rockingham Forest NHS Trust.
Then known as Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Trust, we became a
Foundation Trust in May 2009.
Our community
Today, operating as Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust, our
4,400 staff provide dedicated care to
people in our community.
Northamptonshire’s population of over
710,000 has grown 3.2% in the last five
years. This is greater than the national
population growth of 2.5%. Like the
rest of England, our over 75-year-old
population is growing quickly.
In June 2015, over 12,400 people
from overseas were given National
Insurance numbers in our county. Our
ethnic population continues to grow,
however the majority of people in
Northamptonshire belong to the white
ethnic group.

710,000
31% 14%
TOTAL
NUMBER OF

PEOPLE

LIVE IN LIVE IN
NORTHAMPTON

KETTERING

11% 9%

LIVE IN LIVE IN
WELLINGBOROUGH

CORBY

Some health needs identified in more
urban areas include deprivation,
poverty, homelessness, violent
crime, high rates of smoking, a high
number of under-18 conceptions and
high levels of self-harm and drug
misuse. These can result in low life
expectancy, high infant mortality and
high mortality rates for cardiovascular
disease and cancer. In rural areas, there
are high rates of people killed and
injured on roads. Across all areas there
are quite high levels of obesity and
smoking when compared to national
averages.
While the overall health profile of
the county’s population is in line
with England’s average, different
localities have different health
needs. Corby, Northampton and
Kettering have relatively high levels
of health deprivation. By contrast,
South Northamptonshire, East
Northamptonshire and Daventry have
relatively healthy populations.
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OUR DRIVERS
According to NHS
England, in its Five
Year Forward View, our
health system needs
to change. It proposes
the introduction of
new models that
address gaps in health
and wellbeing, care
and quality, as well as
finance and efficiency.
These models put the
patient at the heart of
the system and promote
greater personalisation,
as well as emphasise
local decision-making.
In order to align with
this change, we are
designing and leading
innovative, integrated
care pathways that
foster partnerships with
the NHS, social care,
and the voluntary and
community sectors.
Alignment with NHS
England’s national
vision also requires a
local programme that
concentrates funding
and resources to help
people keep well and
healthy – and reduce the
need for more intensive
health and social care
services. Commissioners
and providers across
Northamptonshire’s
health and social care
economy have been
working together
over the last three
years on a countywide
change programme
called ‘Healthier
Northamptonshire’ to
deliver ‘better health,
better care and better
value’ for the county’s
residents. Healthier

Northamptonshire was
created to address this
and to transform the
local health and care
system by introducing
significant change.

commissioners range
from community to
specialist services, and
from mental health
to learning disability
services.

With great change
at both national and
local level, and our
local community’s
demographic growth,
the Trust is planning for
increased demand on its
services, an increase in
focus on improvements
to the most health
deprived areas and a
continued focus on
services for frail, older
and long-term users of
health services.

In 2015/16, we
continued to work with
local commissioners
and providers to
develop demand and
capacity models for
the Sustainability
Transformation Plan
(STP). We also use
a bespoke capacity
framework tool to plan
capacity and assess
efficiency of services.
This tool enables the
Trust to establish
minimum activity levels
for each clinician within
each of the varied
services that we provide.
It also ensures that the
Trust has planned for
appropriate levels of
resource to be in place
to meet commissionerexpected activity levels.

OUR LOCAL
COMMISSIONERS
We partner with
local commissioners
NHS Corby Clinical
Commissioning Group
(CCG), NHS Nene CCG,
NHS England and
Northamptonshire
County Council to
provide health, mental
health and social
care services. We also
work closely with NHS
providers Northampton
General Hospital NHS
Trust and Kettering
General Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust.
We continue to align our
plans with those of our
commissioners. As a Trust,
we hold contracts with
five main commissioners
– Corby CCG, Nene
CCG, NHS England,
Northamptonshire
County Council (NCC) and
the Ministry of Justice.
Our contracts with these

Looking ahead, with
advice from NCC in its
recently published plan
for 2015/16 to 2019/20
that the council will
be separated from
most core services,
the Trust must also be
adaptable to the change
that comes from four
new commissioning
organisations:
1. Child Protection
Services Mutual
2. Accountable Care
Organisation
3. Wellbeing Community
Organisation
4. Northamptonshire
Place Shaping
Partnership
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OUR LOCAL CONTEXT

HOW THIS IMPACTS US

As the Trust reported last year, we continue to
operate in a mixed health economy made up of two
acute trusts, three primary care federations, council
services, independent sector providers and third
sector organisations. This is why we continue to
approach ways of working together proactively and
collaboratively.

Our review of our economic context means
we continue to develop ways of working with
organisations. These partnerships are critical to
our delivery of our strategy and are based on the
following strategic observations:
• The Trust needs to plan for demographic growth,
which is expected to be slightly higher than the
national average. This will mean more demand for
our services.

KEY PROVIDERS OPERATING
IN NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

• In particular, we need to focus on improvements
to services in the most health deprived areas of the
county.

• Kettering General Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust

• Likewise, we must give more attention to services
for frail and older people, and those with longterm conditions, who are significant users of health
services.

• Northampton General Hospital NHS Trust
• Olympus Care Services (OCS)
• The three new GP Federations: the
GP Alliance (Northampton), 3Sixty
Care (North Northamptonshire) and
DocMed (South Northamptonshire)
• The Lakeside GP ‘super practice’,
which was recently awarded ‘vanguard’
status from NHS England
• St. Andrew’s Healthcare
• A variety of third sector organisations
including Age UK and Mind
• East Midlands Ambulance Service (EMAS)

• The health system has financial challenges, and the
Trust must continue to work with its partners on ways
of reducing financial shortfalls in the system.
• We must react to the increasing trend for
commissioner preference of collaborative contracts
and alliances.
• When services are tendered in our core region,
we must be prepared for strong local and national
competition. Tenders in neighbouring regions could
offer opportunities to grow.
• Our leading opportunity is to develop out-ofhospital services. However, this could also bring
threats as new GP Federations and acute providers
think about their own longer-term business models.
Fundamentally, our main objective must be to make
sure that our services are continually improving in
quality and cost-effectiveness, to make sure they
are always effective and efficient. This provides an
increased capacity to meet the health demands of our
population, keep health economy stakeholders on
side, minimise competitive threats and capitalise on
business development opportunities as they arise.
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OUR
VISION
We published our five-year
strategic plan in June 2014. This
focuses our work on our vision
and our long-term objectives.
Our vision is to be a leading provider of quality,
integrated care for health and wellbeing services.
With quality at the heart of all we do, we will:
•

Achieve 80% recommendation from patients
and staff for the Trust as a place to receive care

•

Achieve 80% recommendation from staff for the
Trust as a place to work

•

Achieve sustainable growth in our services

We will do this by:
•

Developing our existing services and
pathways of care

•

Innovating

•

Growing the services we provide

•

Building an organisation with highly effective
people, systems and processes
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OUR STRATEGY
IN 2015/16
80%
STAFF & PATIENT
RECOMMENDATION
SUSTAINABLE REVENUE

BUILD TO DELIVER

A HIGHLY CAPABLE ORGANISATION

G

GROW
BEYOND

BD
I

NORTHAMPTONSHIRE

IN-COUNTY PROVISION

DEVELOP

TO DEFEND

LEARN AND APPLY

Focus on our strengths

TO EXPAND

Feed with best ideas

INNOVATE

EXISTING CONTRACTS

QUALITY
AT THE FOUNDATION OF EVERYTHING WE DO
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Our strategy is to develop our current services and pathways of care, while innovating and growing our
services. Our ability to develop, innovate and grow depends on building an organisation with highly
effective people, systems and processes. The foundation of our strategy is quality, which is at the heart of
everything we do.

OUR STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES
We recognise that in order to respond to the
changing health and care economy context we need
to focus on service transformation.
We have prepared our transformation
programme for 2015 to 2019 in response to this
changing context. One of the main goals of our
transformational programme is to improve our
clinical effectiveness and costs.
Each of these three transformational programmes
belongs to an operational division and has key
operational objectives underpinning it.

1. COORDINATED ADULT SERVICES
Designed to develop a unified, county-wide offering
with streamlined pathways, our coordinated adult
services are enabled by mobile working. With this
programme, we are focused on integrating physical
and mental health, in particular for frail older
people and those with long-term conditions.
In addition, the programme will transform primary
care, through integration with our acute partners
and social care. This may include a reduction in
the number of community beds we offer longer
term, allowing us to decrease the numbers of staff
working in an inpatient setting and reassigning
these staff to deliver packages of care in the homes
of our patients. It also involves a transformation of
community nursing services.

2. COORDINATED MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES
By developing more integrated acute pathways
to include crisis, step down and recovery, this
programme introduces investment in community
services. It also involves the creation of a joint
offering with the third sector, co-production with
service users and carers, as well as the expansion
of peer workers. In future, continued support for
patients who receive services in an acute setting
will be reviewed and expanded applying the newly
developed acute liaison services, providing support
to emergency care practitioners over an expanded
period.
Offender health will continue to grow out of region,
which will support our financial growth within
specialist areas of activity. We are working with
commissioners on a local plan for the transformation
of services for people with learning disabilities, in
response to the ‘Transforming Care for People with
Learning Disabilities’ report (published in January
2015 by NHS England).

OBJECTIVES
•

To continue to work towards integration
of acute and primary care pathways and
develop several to facilitate this transition

•

To be a leader implementing the Mental
Health Crisis Care Concordat agreement
presented by the Department of Health,
and close partnership working (with our
CCGs, Northamptonshire Police, East
Midlands Ambulance Service, as well
as acute and third sector providers) by
creating new opportunities in mental
health

•

To create a referral management process
for mental health services that transforms
the community services we offer,
particularly in offender health

OBJECTIVES
•

To create the tools for enhanced
coordination of the services we provide to
consistently deliver the right care, at the
right time, from the right professional, for
patient needs county-wide

•

To champion and leverage the benefits of
our new mobile working technologies in the
community

•

To collaborate with primary care, acute
partners and social care to integrate
pathways for joined-up care
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3. COORDINATED
CHILDREN, YOUNG
PEOPLE AND FAMILY
SERVICES
We have expanded the role of the
Children and Young People’s Referral
Management Centre to facilitate all
referrals for specialist community
children’s services for our Trust and
Northampton General Hospital,
as well as for the county-wide
emotional wellbeing and mental
health pathway.

OBJECTIVES
•

To expand the role of our Children and Young People’s
Referral Management Centre (RMC) by collaborating with
Northamptonshire County Council and Nene and Corby CCGs

•

To transform community specialist children’s services by
integrating a county-wide service with new ways of working
and staff structures that consider the holistic needs of the child

•

To coordinate specialist children’s services by integrating our
speech and language therapy, community children’s nurses and
our community paediatrics services in one location, Sudborough
House, St Mary’s Hospital, Kettering.

OTHER AREAS OF TRANSFORMATION
In addition to these three service transformation programmes, the Trust
has undertaken a major review of other areas including corporate services,
prevention and wellbeing.
•

A major review of our corporate services commenced in 2015/16 with plans
to deliver savings in 2016/17.

•

Our prevention and wellbeing transformation plans to deliver a unified,
county-wide health and wellbeing service with NCC and the University
of Northampton, via a newly established First for Wellbeing Community
Interest Company from April 2016.
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ORGANISATIONAL RISKS
Our board of directors review our key organisational risks bi-monthly using the organisational
risk register. As of March 2016, the key risks are shown on the ‘heat map’ below.

CIPs/quality
Safeguarding

5

Workforce capacity/
capability

Unable to deliver
financial plan

Regulatory Scrutiny

Major national policy
changes

Learning from
lessons

Demand pressures
Failure to invest
in innovation

CONSEQUENCE

Healthier
Northamptonshire
Better Care Fund

4

New partnership
Models
Poor practice
Epex/SystmOne
Wellbeing CIC
Clinical audit
Medical
management CRHTT

3

Seclusion
Same sex
accommodation

2

1

1

2

3

4

5

LIKELIHOOD

OUR BIGGEST RISKS
In 2015/16, our biggest risks were identified as:
•

The Trust is materially unable to deliver its financial plan

•

We are unable to maintain the right workforce capability and capacity to deliver its strategic plan

•

Compliance action for improving learning lessons

Our risks were mitigated by action plans and control mechanisms, such as an awareness campaign for lessons
learnt, where we run regular workshops for staff to review and analyse serious incidents. In this instance, the
identification of trends and commonality in incidents helps us to develop ways to improve safety for patients,
reduce risk and support staff.

21

REVIEW OF STATUTORY TARGETS
In 2015/16 we achieved 15 out of the 16 of our statutory targets. The new Improving Access to Psychological
Therapies (IAPT) six-week standard introduced from quarter three has been a challenge to deliver.
The organisation has worked closely with NHS England experts, the CCGs and other trusts to remodel the
delivery of this service during 2015/16, streamlining the process for referral management, opening the
service to self-referrals through the use of new technologies and refocusing budgetary spend towards
patient-facing staff. This has enabled the Trust to achieve the target in March 2016.

INDICATOR
NUMBER

Section A: Scored Indicators
2015/16

2015/16
Target

In2014/15
month
Outturn
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

1

Adult CPA patients receiving
follow-up contact within seven
days of discharge

95%

97.2%

95%

97.5%

95.7%

97.7%

97.2%

2

Adult CPA patients having formal
review within 12 months

95%

95.5%

95%

95.1%

97.0%

95.9%

96.7%

3

Commissioning early intervention
in psychosis - new patients taken
on

84

91

7

31

52

75

102

4

Early intervention in psychosis patients seen within two weeks of
referral

50%

N/A

50%

78.3%

80.0%

92.3%

76.7%

5

Admissions to inpatient services
having access to crisis resolution
home treatment teams

95%

97.8%

95%

98.7%

98.3%

98.6%

97.7%

6

Delayed transfer of care - adult
mental health, older adults mental
health and learning disability

7.5%

4.3%

7.5%

3.4%

5.7%

5.3%

5.1%

7

Access to healthcare for people
with a learning disability (selfcertification)

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

8

Improving access to psychological
therapies: patients seen within six
weeks of referral

75%

N/A

75%

70.0%

63.3%

71.3%

69.5%

9

Improving access to psychological
therapies: patients seen within 18
weeks of referral

95%

N/A

95%

99.0%

98.7%

97.8%

99.3%

10

18 week RTT (non admitted
patients) - complete pathways

95%

100.0%

95%

100.0%

99.5%

100.0%

99.4%

11

18 week RTT (non admitted
patients) - incomplete pathways

92%

99.8%

92%

100.0%

100.0%

99.7%

99.8%

12

Data completeness: identifiers

97%

98.0%

97%

97.0%

97.0%

97.7%

98.7%

13

Data completeness: outcomes
(patients on CPA)

50%

78.6%

50%

78.7%

77.4%

93.1%

98.7%

14

Data completeness: community
services - referral information

50%

65.7%

50%

66.0%

66.0%

66.2%

66.0%

15

Data completeness: community
services - care contact information

50%

99.9%

50%

99.9%

99.7%

99.8%

99.8%

16

Data completeness: community
services - referral to treatment
information

50%

100.0%

50%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%
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IN 2015/16 WE ACHIEVED
15 OUT OF THE 16 OF OUR
STATUTORY TARGETS.
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CONCLUSION
During times of change, we face many challenges and obstacles that we must
overcome to continue to provide quality compassionate care to our community.
Transformation of our services and approach to our care is key to providing this.
Leading with new ways of working and challenging ourselves on how we can move
forward is also crucial for us when it comes to funding and managing our financial
security. It requires us to continuously improve our processes and review how we
must change with our ever-changing community, to concentrate our resources in the
areas that need it most. This is why our transformation programmes and strategy
are designed to respond to the changing health economy context. By adjusting our
programmes and planning to provide services that manage not just needs now, but
what is projected for our community’s future, we balance these financial restraints
with integrated, personalised care.
Our commitment to working with our partners in the local health and social care
economy has been critical to the success we’ve achieved in delivering our strategic
programmes. Some of these partnerships have included those in the statutory and
voluntary sectors, which helps us to translate this commitment to practical initiatives
on the ground.
Our performance this year has been strong in many areas and requires improvement
in others. We have maintained our track record of delivering our headline
performance obligations under Monitor’s Risk Assessment Framework, with a
financial sustainability risk rating of ‘4’ and a ‘green’ governance risk rating.
Performance against key operational targets has been strong, although the
consistent monthly achievement of the Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
six-week target has been particularly challenging.
Effective organisational risk management underpins the delivery of strategic and
operational performance. We have robust mechanisms in place for the ongoing
identification, review and mitigation of these risks, with the board of directors and
its committees playing a proactive role in these processes. Later in this Performance
Report, we share a broader picture of our performance with analysis that provides a
balanced perspective of where we are on our quality improvement journey, detailing
both performance highlights and associated challenges.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016
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PERFORMANCE
ANALYSIS
Our performance
The independent regulator for health services in
England, Monitor, reviews our performance in line
with the Risk Assessment Framework. We are also
required to comply with the Care Quality Commission
(CQC)’s and Ofsted’s regulatory frameworks. In order
to continually improve the quality of care we provide
to our patients, service users, families and carers, we
also internally analyse performance, as well as obtain
feedback from our service commissioners and partners.
We use surveys to determine qualitative and
quantitative performance feedback, as well as service
reviews and audits to identify areas of effectiveness,
challenges and areas to focus on for improvement.
In addition to reviews and surveys, we set financial,
governance, incident and quality metrics for targets
that we measure, review and analyse.
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MEASURING
OUR
PERFORMANCE
We measure our
performance in the
following areas:
1. Staff productivity,
resource and
performance
2. Environmental
matters
3. Organisational
equality and diversity
4. Quality performance,
assurance and
improvement
5. Patient safety,
experience and feedback
6. Financial targets, plan
and performance
Staff productivity,
resource and
performance

us to make changes and
improvements that allow
our staff greater capacity
to perform, without
concern to their safety
and wellbeing.
2. Staff engagement
The correlation between
staff engagement and
performance means we
continue to measure
and review our results
with staff. We measure
results every quarter,
and compare findings
year-on-year to make
adjustments to our
communication and
actions by sharing
outcomes and learnings.
Each area of the Trust
then owns an action plan
to make improvements,
and participates in staff
workshops to introduce
this change.

3. Staff resource
We have implemented
an e-roster system that
helps us to balance the
flexibility our services
require, as well as our
recruitment challenges.
Currently, 40% of the
Trust’s services are using
the e-roster platform,
so we have developed
a plan to increase
adoption of this system,
with the aim that all
services use the system in
2016/17.
In addition, we have
been reviewing and
continue to analyse our
agency staffing in terms
of spend, availability
of resource and the
management of rotas.
Our e-roster system will
also support this analysis,
and help us to reduce

the timescales for the
appointment of staff in
vacancies.
4. Staff performance
This year, appraisals have
increased. 84% of staff
received an appraisal
this year, compared
to 82% last year. 77%
of staff felt that the
appraisal was helpful for
improving how they do
their job.
We invested in job
related training, staff
advocacy and open
forums, as well as in
pulse surveys, to help
us further understand
how we can positively
impact performance
and encourage the
involvement and
motivation of staff.

Our ever-changing
environment and
internal transformation
has required new
approaches to staff
and resource. In order
to better evaluate
our productivity and
performance, we have
introduced new systems
and processes.
We measure our staff
productivity, resource
and performance in the
following ways:
1. Staff safety results
Each year, we survey
our staff population to
understand our progress
and challenges with
harassment, bullying,
abuse, as well as equal
opportunities and
discrimination. This helps
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

working
together

Our newly developed Sustainable
Development Management Plan (SDMP),
approved by our board of directors, has been
designed to clarify our objectives on environmental
matters, sustainable development and climate change.
It also sets out a clear plan of action for the future.
Sustainable development and carbon management are
corporate responsibilities that we take very seriously. Our
SDMP provides clear governance for an assurance process that
considers all legal requirements, while taking into account
the demands of providing high quality healthcare.
Based on the right mix of social, economic and environmental
factors that are fundamental to creating a sustainable health
service, our SDMP will also help our organisation to meet its carbon
reduction commitments and make essential efficiency savings.
Our SDMP helps us to:

1

Meet minimum statutory and policy requirements of
sustainable development

2

Save money through increased efficiency and resilience

3

Improve the environment in which care is delivered, for
both patients and staff

4

Have robust governance arrangements in place to
monitor progress

5

Demonstrate a good reputation for sustainability

6

Align sustainable development requirements with the
strategic objectives of the organisation
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ORGANISATIONAL
EQUALITY AND
DIVERSITY
We are dedicated to
building a fully inclusive
organisation where the
needs of all individuals
are recognised, assessed
and respected.

ensured that all cost
improvement plans
and transformational
decisions were made by
taking into account the
information provided
in our Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA).
In addition, we
implemented the NHS
Workforce Race Equality
System, Equality Delivery
System 2, and Accessible
Information Standard.
Our practices ensure that
the principles of diversity
and inclusion underpin
all our employment
and service policies and
procedures – and that
we remain committed
to promoting equality,
valuing diversity and
protecting human rights.

We have developed our
equality and inclusion
in a variety of ways, and
have been successful
in implementing
our Equality Action
Plan, which saw the
implementation of the
Equality and Inclusion
Assurance Board, and
internal staff networks
for black and ethnic
minority (BME), lesbian,
gay, bisexual, transgender To this end, we have
established and
(LGBT) and disability.
implemented recruitment
This action plan also

procedures that provide
equality of opportunity,
as well as ensure the fair
and effective recruitment
and selection of all staff
groups. We also belong
to the ‘two tick’ scheme,
which guarantees
interviews for disabled
persons if they meet the
minimum criteria. We
ensure that this process
is adopted across the
organisation. Further
to this, we are now
part of the DisabledGo
scheme which provides
comprehensive reviews
of site accessibility and
helpful guides.
To continue to improve
the effectiveness of our
processes, we have put
processes in place to
ensure that an EIA is
developed before any
future decision or project
is implemented.

QUALITY
PERFORMANCE,
ASSURANCE AND
IMPROVEMENT
Our culture of
continuous quality
improvement is linked
to the CQC domains:
patient safety, patient
experience and clinical
effectiveness.
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PATIENT SAFETY
1. To reduce the levels of harm associated with
medication incidents.
2. To increase the levels of reporting associated
with National Early Warning Score (NEWS)
by ensuring that all patients have NEWS
undertaken at relevant points during their
inpatient admission.
3. To increase the levels of reporting associated
with the venous thromboembolism (VTE)
assessment by ensuring that all patients have
this review undertaken at relevant points
during their inpatient admission.

PATIENT
EXPERIENCE
1. To ensure Duty of
Candour is embedded
into our clinical practices
and incident processes.
2. To increase the
numbers of service users
and carers involved in
internal training.
3. To increase the
numbers of service users
and carers involved in
staff recruitment.

CLINICAL
EFFECTIVENESS
1. To work
collaboratively internally
to share our patient
safety experiences and
outcomes in order to
improve learning from
incidents, complaints
and compliments, and
reduce harm.
2. To develop the skills
and competence of all
new band 1-4 clinical
facing staff in the
organisation.
3. To use iWGC, and
other sources of
feedback to learn from
and respond to patients
and carers.
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PATIENT SAFETY,
EXPERIENCE AND
FEEDBACK
We measure patient
safety, experience and
feedback carefully
through a number
of quantitative and
qualitative methods.
These include reviews of
the improvements in the
level of harm associated
with medication
incidents from our
Datix reporting system,
investigation interviews
with the Patient Advice
and Liaison Service
(PALS) and staff survey
reports.
By identifying staff,

service user and carer
concerns from our PALS
and survey data, we
compare results with the
previous year and analyse
themes and trends. These
then determine our
priorities going forward,
and are supported by
action plans. This year,
we introduced Sign
up to Safety, and have
identified the need and
put plans in place for
medication management
training, lessons learnt
communication, as well
as regular audits and
thematic reviews of
medication incidents.
In addition, we continue
to conduct National Early
Warning Score (NEWS)
training and share best

practice for NEWS to
improve patient safety
and effectiveness.
Looking ahead,
we have identified
a requirement to
introduce an increased
focus on the levels of
reporting associated
with the venous
thromboembolism
(VTE) assessment to also
positively impact patient
safety.

patient experience.
We are measuring the
success of our work in
this area through the
patient involvement
team recruitment
and training data, as
well as through our
monitoring of Duty
of Candour. Feedback
on Duty of Candour
is sourced from our
complaints feedback
form, iWGC and PALS.

Patient experience has
been and continues to
be a crucial part of our
service delivery. This year,
we recognised that the
role of our service users
and carers is critical to
our recruitment process,
which has been having
a positive impact on

Lastly, our patient
experience groups
(PEG) give us feedback
about their needs
and help us to steer
changes in pathways
and activities, to make
improvements and
progress.
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FINANCIAL TARGETS, PLAN AND PERFORMANCE
Our plan for 2015/16 was developed in the context of a difficult national economic position and a
challenging local health and social care economy. In addition to this, there were significant structural and
organisational changes planned during the year that were expected to impact the Trust over the mediumterm planning period. In response, the Trust developed an annual plan that showed a managed deficit
position in 2015/16 and maintained an overall financial sustainability risk rating of ‘4’. The plan’s intention
was to provide the necessary organisational stability while the Trust and the wider local health and social
care economy developed further plans for the transformational change and efficiency gains required in
future years.
The Trust received income of £189.06 million, incurred expenditure of £190.456 million and owned and
operated £73.657 million of assets in order to provide a comprehensive range of mental health, community
healthcare and sexual health services for the local population in 2015/16.
Our key financial targets in the 2015/16 plan and performance against these are shown in the table below.

FINANCIAL TARGET

FINANCIAL TARGET

ACTUAL

VARIANCE

Surplus / (deficit)

(£1.898 million)

(£1.395 million)

£0.503 million

Cost improvements (savings)

£4.827 million

£4.229 million

(£0.598 million)

Net current assets

£7.388 million

£8.731 million

£1.343 million

Financial sustainability risk rating/
Continuity of service risk rating

3

4

The Trust’s financial sustainability risk rating combines the performance against a number of financial
metrics, including liquidity (how much cash can be made available at relatively short notice to pay off any
liabilities), capital service cover (the extent to which operating surplus covers capital funding costs) and
the income and expenditure margin (surplus or deficit as a percentage of total income). The best possible
overall rating is a ‘4’ and the worst rating is a ‘1’, a low score indicating high financial risk and potential
requirement for external intervention from regulators.
The history of performance against the continuity of service risk rating/financial sustainability risk rating
is shown in the table below.

FINANCIAL SUSTAINABILITY ANNUAL PLAN QUARTER 1
RISK RATING/CONTINUITY
OF SERVICE RISK RATING

QUARTER 2

QUARTER 3

QUARTER 4

2015/16

3

3

3

3

4

2014/15

3

4

4

4

4
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The Trust has a strong record of planning and delivering a good
financial sustainability risk rating. Our planned performance in
2014/15 was a rating of ‘4’ in each quarter, until the final quarter
when the rating was expected to drop to an overall ‘3’ for the
year. The apparent improvement in actual performance over
plan in quarter 4 in 2014/15 was largely due to a delay (into
2015/16) with the implementation of restructuring plans. Actual
performance has been as expected and in line with the plan in
2015/16.
The Trust performed in line with the plan against its main
financial targets for the year and is planning to achieve a small
surplus based on the delivery of cost improvement savings
targets of over £7 million in 2016/17. After making enquiries, the
directors have a reasonable expectation that Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.
The major financial risks to the Trust in 2016/17 will be the
achievement of a savings target of over £7 million and
the impact of the continuation of planned structural and
organisational change in local health and social care services. The
risk associated with the savings target is managed through the
development of detailed savings plans with clinical and service
managers and an established performance management process
that enables review and action planning on a routine basis,
including at Trust board level. Risk associated with structural and
organisational change is managed through joint planning and
ongoing engagement with the Trust’s main commissioners and
developing risk sharing arrangements.
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ANALYSIS OF OUR
PERFORMANCE THIS YEAR

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

PERFORMANCE CHALLENGES

• Delivery of key financial, qualitative and

• Our continued delivery of key

operational targets including a financial
sustainability risk rating of ‘4’ and ‘green’
governance rating.
• Development of strong strategic alliances

with key health and social care partners
including those in the primary care, acute
and voluntary sectors.
• Creation of First For Wellbeing Community

Interest Company in conjunction with NCC
and the University of Northampton.
• Encouraging improvements in staff survey

results.
• Friends and family test results, which show

increases over the year in the percentage of
staff recommending the Trust as a place to
work and as a place to receive care.
• The CQC inspection rated the Trust as ‘good’

or ‘outstanding’ in every aspect of the Caring
domain.
• Positive patient feedback via iWantGreatCare

on their experience of using our services with
a full year score of 4.83 against a maximum
attainable score of 5.

performance targets in an increasingly
challenging financial environment.
• Ensuring that the key risks to the delivery

of the Trust’s strategic programmes,
including financial plan deliverability and
workforce capacity and capability, are
mitigated effectively.
• Delivering our transformation and

quality improvement priorities (including
through partnership working) to achieve
a sustainable health and social care
economy, which is facing a range of
pressures and demands.
• Ensuring our response to the CQC

inspection fully addresses the issues that
resulted in an overall rating of ‘requires
improvement’. Please see more about
our CQC inspection actions in our Quality
Report.
• Continuing to develop effective

mechanisms to truly listen and respond
to the views of patients, carers, staff,
governors and members on the Trust’s
services and how they can be improved.

• The Trust has been ranked in the top quarter

of NHS trusts (56th out of 230 NHS trusts)
in the Department of Health’s ‘learning
from mistakes league’. We have achieved a
standard of ‘good’. The league, which has
been published for the first time, is designed
to look at the openness and transparency in
NHS provider organisations.
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OUR YEAR IN BRIEF
Reviews and revisions of our services
This year, we reviewed a number of our service lines and models, including:

1

2

3

4

5

The Integrated
Care Closer to
Home (ICCtH)
programme was
reviewed for its
alignment to
organisational
plans, system
pressures and
priorities.

The Healthier
Northamptonshire
programme
evolved to
respond to the
NHS Shared
Planning
Guidance
2016/17- 2020/21.

Work
progressed on
the Wellbeing
Community
Interest
Company,
which is a
joint venture
between our
Trust, the
NCC and the
University of
Northampton,
and will be
responsible for
the delivery
of £45 million
of public
health funded
wellbeing
services.

Our CQC
inspection in
February 2015
highlighted
a need for
increased
attention to
areas such
as medicines
management
and pathways
of care in
our long stay
mental health
rehabilitation
services,
recruitment
and retention
of staff in
community
services and the
consistency of
our learning
from incidents
and complaints.

It also
highlighted
the strength of
services such
as our mental
health crisis,
community
learning
disability and
substance
misuse. Overall,
our review of
the indicator
‘caring’ was
consistently
of a good
standard and
the CQC found
our staff to
be “dedicated
and kind.”
The results of
the inspection
were followed
by a proactive
review of our
approach,
operationally
and clinically,
to address
areas requiring
improvement.

Feedback from staff and patients
• Our results for iWantGreatCare (iWGC) were

very positive, with a rating of 4.8 out of 5
for good care. In addition, we supported our
staff on a lifelong learning agreement with
staff side.
• A review of the patient experience groups

(PEG) resulted in a new model. This
highlighted the need for a PEG in each
of the Trust’s three clinical pathways, and
a steering PEG to oversee progress and
activity.
• Our partnership with staff side’s union

representatives enables more effective and
engaging training and support to staff
throughout their careers.

RATED

4.8
OUT OF

5.0

FOR
E
G O O D CA R

• Our staff survey showed overall engagement

score is above average.
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RESPONDING
TO NATIONAL
DEVELOPMENTS
• In March 2015, the

Department of Health and
NHS England published a
report on how to improve
mental health services
for young people, called
‘Future in Mind’ which the
Trust is taking on board
in developing our service
delivery.
• In June 2015, the CQC

published a national
report that reviewed
people’s experiences of
help, care and support
during a mental health
crisis. The findings of this
helped us to understand
how many services the
service user comes into
contact with, with most
people reporting they
came into contact with
at least three different
services during a crisis.
• In July 2015, the

Commission on Acute
Adult Psychiatric Care
reported on improving
acute inpatient psychiatric
care, identifying five main
themes.
• Also in July, NHS Providers

published a report about
leadership and boards in
the NHS, and another was
published by Lord Rose
with recommendations
in training, performance
management,
bureaucracy and
management support.
• Monitor published

a report on moving
healthcare closer to home.
• The CQC published its

annual State of Health

Care and Adult Social
Care in England 2014/15
report in October
2015, which set out the
key findings from the
inspection of almost 5,500
registered organisations
in primary, secondary and
social care, across both
NHS and independent
and private providers.
The CQC recognised the
complex and challenging
environment in which the
majority of services are
operating.
• In December 2015, NICE

published a guideline
covering the clinical care
of adults (18 years and
over) who are dying,
during the last 2 to 3 days
of life. It aims to improve
end of life care for
people in their last days
of life by communicating
respectfully and involving
them, and the people
important to them,
in decisions and by
maintaining their comfort
and dignity.
• In January 2016, the CQC

published its sixth annual
monitoring report on how
hospitals and care homes
in England are using the
Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards (DoLS). Part
of the Mental Capacity
Act, DoLS protect the
rights of people who
are deprived of their
liberty so that they can be
given necessary care and
treatment.
• The Chief Executive of

NHS Improvement wrote
to Foundation Trusts in
January 2016 setting out
measures to strengthen
the collective approach to
reduce agency spending
further and to support
staff with moving back
into substantive and bank
roles.
• Delivering the right

quality outcomes for
patients within the
financial resources
available was addressed

by the Chief Executive of
NHS Improvement and the
CQC’s Chief Inspector of
Hospitals in January 2016.
They outlined how both
organisations can support
trusts in delivering this,
how they will both
measure success and how
the NHS Improvement
regulatory framework
and the CQC inspection
regime will be framed
going forward.
• The Five Year Forward

View for Mental Health
was published in February
2016.
• The leading national

health and care bodies in
England came together
to publish ‘Delivering
the Forward View: NHS
Shared Planning Guidance
2016/17 – 2020/21’, setting
out the steps to help local
organisations deliver a
sustainable, transformed
health service and
improve the quality of
care, wellbeing and NHS
finances.
• We worked locally to

ensure that the impact
of any national industrial
action was mitigated
in terms of its effect
on our services. We
developed contingency
plans as necessary to
ensure patient safety was
maintained at all times.
• The CQC appointed its

first national guardian
for the freedom to
speak up safely in the
NHS. The post will be
independent, will work
in partnership with the
CQC, NHS England and
NHS Improvement to
help in leading a cultural
change, initially within
NHS Foundation Trusts
and NHS trusts, with
the aim of ensuring
that healthcare staff
always feel confident
and supported to raise
concerns about patient
care.
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OUR FOCUS
ON LOCAL
DEVELOPMENTS
• The Healthier

Northamptonshire
programme was evolved
to respond to planning
guidance. A collaborative
approach is being taken
across all organisations
with the intention of
creating a set of aligned
plans.
• A review of health

services for looked after
children and safeguarding
in Northamptonshire
by the CQC, published
in August, shares
the findings on the
experiences and outcomes
for children within the
geographical boundaries
of the local authority
area, and reports on the
performance of health
providers serving the
area including Clinical
Commissioning Groups

(CCGs) and Local Area
Teams (LATs).
• The Trust continued to

play an active role in
the work of the Health
and Wellbeing Board. In
Northamptonshire, the
board brings together
representatives from
Northamptonshire County
Council, local Councils,
Clinical Commissioning
Groups, the Police,
the University of
Northampton, hospitals
and community-based
services, Healthwatch and
the voluntary sector.
• All organisations within

the local health and social
care economy continued
to face significant
financial challenge.
Northamptonshire County
Council has signalled
its budget reduction
intentions in terms of its
2016/17 plans.
• The Integrated Care

Closer to Home (ICCtH)
programme was reviewed

in light of current system
pressures and priorities.
Key areas for exploration
included recruitment
challenges, skill mix and
innovative new ways of
working across the system.
• We continued our

collaboration with both
Kettering General Hospital
NHS Foundation Trust
(KGH) and Northampton
General Hospital NHS Trust
(NGH) in developing new,
integrated models of care
for adults with long-term
conditions and older
people.
• We continued to discuss

integrated models of
primary and community/
mental health care with
individual GP federations
across the county. This
includes the co-design
of models for integrated
community teams with
networks of practices.
• Work progressed on

the First for Wellbeing
Community Interest

Company. This is a joint
venture between NHFT,
NCC and the University
of Northampton and will
be responsible for the
delivery of £45m of public
health funded wellbeing
services.
• In November 2015,

our mental health and
learning disability services
moved to the electronic
patient record system
SystmOne that is already
used by the Trust’s
community services. This
allows the Trust to share
patient information across
its services and with the
majority of GPs.
• In December 2015,

we participated in a
workshop with NCC’s
adult social care division
at which the potential
scope of the new health
and social care delivery
body was discussed.
Further scoping work is
being progressed.
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INTRODUCTION
Providing safe, compassionate
care to our patients, service users,
families and carers comes from
a collaborative, inclusive and
engaged staff and Trust community.
Our care depends on how effectively we govern and
review our processes, progress and opportunities to
develop. We actively seek feedback in these areas, and
implement changes that develop our services to be
safely, securely and realistically managed and provided.
This report sets out to communicate how we govern
our Trust, manage and engage our people, and how we
engage with our stakeholders and the wider community.
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DIRECTORS’
REPORT
Our board of directors
We believe in providing safe, quality care through a
culture of involvement, collaboration and engagement.
Our board of directors lead this culture and ensure
we are efficiently and effectively balancing safety and
quality, with the right governance. Their specialist
skills, knowledge and experience are critical to our
organisation’s delivery of this standard of care.
Our directors are accountable for the development and
implementation of our strategy, monitoring progress
and leading strategic projects. The board is satisfied
that each of their directors is appropriately qualified
to carry out key functions including setting strategy,
monitoring and managing performance and ensuring
management capacity and capability. The finance
director, medical director and director of nursing,
AHPs and quality are professionally qualified, with
relevant and substantial experience and maintain their
registration in accordance with the requirements of
their professional bodies. All other board members
have the appropriate qualifications, skills or experience
to support the services we provide.
We are required, by the Health and Social Care Act
2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014, to ensure
that our directors are fit and proper for their roles,
by applying the fit and proper persons test across the
entire board membership. To fulfil this responsibility,
the Trust has conducted this for all directors during
2015/16.
The Trust continues to be committed to and
champion The 6 Cs, (care, compassion, competence,
communication, commitment and courage). These
are the values embedded in the national strategy,
called Compassion in Practice. Our directors are also
committed to ensuring the board operates effectively
as a team.
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COMMUNICATION

COMPETENCE

COURAGE

CARE

COMMITMENT

COMPASSION
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DIRECTORS
WITH VOTING
RIGHTS

East Midlands Academic
Health Science Network
(EMAHSN).

A graduate of the
Institute of Purchasing
and Supply, Paul holds
a Master of Business
Administration (MBA)
and has held leadership
roles in both the public
and private sectors.
He has held managing
director and corporate
executive director
roles in sales, strategic
development, mergers
and acquisitions, as
well as non-executive
director roles. Paul has
extensive experience
in management and
mentoring, with 17 years
as a business mentor
and volunteer with The
Prince’s Trust.

A registered nurse,
Moira has worked in
several NHS trusts in
the south and east of
England, specialising in
critical, high-dependency
care, including the
management of a 35bed respiratory medicine
unit. With a Master
of Science from Kings
College, Moira has held
senior academic roles
at the University of
Northampton including
principal lecturer in
practice development,
head of academic
affairs and associate
dean. Following a
secondment to lead the
East Midlands Health
Innovation Education
Cluster, she returned as
deputy dean and was
subsequently appointed
dean of the School of
Health. She is currently
studying for a Doctor of
Business Administration
in higher education
management at the
University of Bath.

PAUL BERTIN, CHAIRMAN
Paul Bertin

Angela Hillery

Moira Ingham

ANGELA HILLERY, CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

Bill McFarland

Bev Messinger

Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr

With over 27 years
of NHS leadership
experience within
community services and
a Masters Degree in
development disorders,
Angela is also a qualified
speech and language
therapist. Previously a
director of operations
for the Trust, Angela has
served on the National
Management Board of
the Royal College of
Speech and Language
Therapy and held a
partner role with the
Health Professional
Council. Reflecting
her commitment
to innovation in
healthcare, Angela is a
board member of the

MOIRA INGHAM, NONEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

BILL MCFARLAND,
FINANCE DIRECTOR
Bill is a qualified
accountant with 38
years of experience
working for the NHS,
22 of which were at
finance director level.
He earned his Master of
Business Administration
(MBA) from Cranfield
University in 1997 and
has held senior finance
roles at Charing Cross,

St Thomas’, and Chelsea
and Westminster,
totalling 14 years of
experience in London
teaching hospitals.

BEV MESSINGER, NONEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Currently senior director
of operations at Ofwat
(the water services
regulation authority),
Bev has over 30 years of
public service experience
in local government,
across seven local
authorities, including
Northamptonshire
County Council. Her
diverse roles in the
voluntary sector include
director at a charity
for the long-term
unemployed, chair of
the Coventry Citizens
Advice Bureau and
trustee of a national
charity for people with
learning difficulties
and disabilities. Bev is a
Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel
and Development.

DR ALEX O’NEILL-KERR,
MEDICAL DIRECTOR
Alex is a former
member of the Board
of Examiners and Senior
Course Organisers
for the MRCPsych
Examination, a former
college tutor for
the Royal College of
Psychiatrists, and a
former lecturer and
member of the board of
the Faculty of Medicine,
University of the
Witwatersrand, South
Africa. He continues
to provide clinical and
educational supervision
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to trainees and medical
students and has been
involved in medical
student placements in
the Trust in 2014.

Sushel Ohri

Robert Peto

Julie Shepherd

Alastair Watson

Alex has been the
medical director for the
Trust since 2003 and
was previously involved
in the merger of two
local mental health
trusts (Northampton
Community Healthcare
and Rockingham
Forest). He was part of
a successful Foundation
Trust status application
in May 2009 and was
involved in the successful
transfer of community
services from the PCT in
2011.

SUSHEL OHRI, NONEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
In addition to having
experience as a
qualified social worker,
Sushel holds both a
Master’s degree in
ethnic relations and a
diploma in management
studies. Currently the
director of a consultancy
specialising in inclusion,
cohesion, and equality
and diversity, Sushel
is a former group
director for equality
and inclusion with
Transport For London.
Sushel has 30 years of
experience, with 14 at
chief officer level in local
government.

ROBERT PETO, NONEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
A qualified accountant,
with a Master’s
degree in financial
management, Robert

is currently finance
director of TNT UK and
Ireland. His previous
roles included that of
finance director of City
Link UK and finance
director of Parcelforce
Worldwide. His skilled
background in senior
finance roles includes
those held at Geopost
UK and Ireland, and
Grand Metropolitan PLC.

that range from startups to large multinational corporates, in
roles covering audit,
financial advisory, equity
and debt investment.
He also currently sits
as a magistrate on
the Leicestershire and
Rutland bench. Alastair
is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England
and Wales.

JULIE SHEPHERD,
DIRECTOR OF NURSING,
ALLIED HEALTH
PROFESSIONALS (AHPS)
AND QUALITY
Julie has extensive
specialist nursing and
leadership experience
with a 34-year career
in the NHS. As a
registered general
nurse, specialising in
orthopaedics and in
care of the elderly
and intermediate
care, Julie has firsthand knowledge of
nursing care and holds
a Master’s degree in
managing partnerships
in health and social care.
During her career Julie
has worked in social
care and is committed to
patient-centred, quality
and safe care.

ALASTAIR WATSON, NONEXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Alastair is currently
an investment
director at Innisfree, a
leading infrastructure
investment group.
He has 20 years of
project finance and
infrastructure experience
and has worked in both
the public and private
sectors, for businesses
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DIRECTORS IN
ATTENDANCE
WITHOUT
VOTING RIGHTS
Richard McKendrick

Dominic Hardisty

Bronwen Curtis

Chris Oakes

Sandra Mellors

RICHARD MCKENDRICK,
CHIEF OPERATING
OFFICER
Richard joined in June
2011, from Central and
North West London
NHS Foundation Trust,
where he was service
director of addictions
and offender health.
Holding degrees in
law and philosophy,
Richard has 20 years
of experience in the
voluntary sector, during
which time he held
positions including chief
executive of the Albert
Kennedy Trust and
director of operations
with the national
substance misuse charity,
Addaction.

DOMINIC HARDISTY,
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE
(UNTIL 21 FEBRUARY
2016)
Dominic joined the
NHS in 2009 after a
20-year leadership
career in the private
sector. He held roles as
operations director of
the Financial Times and
co-owner and managing
director of the startup record label that
signed and launched
the career of global
rock band The Killers.
His NHS experience
includes director level
positions at Birmingham
Children’s Hospital,
Portsmouth Hospitals
Trust and Leicestershire
Partnership Trust.

Dominic holds a degree
from Oxford University
and an MBA from
Harvard Business School.

BRONWEN CURTIS,
DIRECTOR OF HUMAN
RESOURCES AND
ORGANISATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (UNTIL 5
JUNE 2015)
As a former UK Board
member of a global
corporation, Bronwen
was responsible for
operations, strategy
development and
human resources.
With thirteen years of
experience as Chair of
NHS Trusts, Bronwen
was also Chair of
the Appointments
Committee of the
General Dental Council.
She has been a member
of the prison service
pay review body, nonexecutive director of The
National Archives and
Service Personnel and
Veterans Agency, a civil
service commissioner
and advisor to the
Judicial Appointments
Commission. Previously
awarded Midlands
Business Woman of
the Year, Bronwen
was honoured with a
Commander of the Most
Excellent Order of the
British Empire (CBE) in
2007.

CHRIS OAKES, DIRECTOR
OF HUMAN RESOURCES
AND ORGANISATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (FROM 11
MAY 2015)
Chris has a wealth
of experience within
healthcare, both
in the NHS and the
independent sector.

He has been involved
in developing high
quality human resources
(HR) services and
leading significant
culture change
and organisational
development. Chris was
director of Workforce
and Organisational
Development at
the Black Country
Partnership NHS FT
and prior to that was
the director of HR at St
Andrew’s Healthcare.
Chris is a member of
the Chartered Institute
of Personnel and
Development, has
an MBA from Cass
Business School (City
University) and recently
completed a Master of
Science in Leadership
at the University of
Birmingham.

SANDRA MELLORS,
INTERIM DIRECTOR OF
OPERATIONS (FROM 29
JANUARY 2016)
Sandra has a wealth of
healthcare experience.
In her thirty-year career
with the NHS, 22 were as
a physiotherapist before
moving into managerial
roles. Previously
associate director of
adult, primary and
urgent care at Tower
Hamlets Primary Care
Trust and general
manager of Borough
and Specialist Services at
Bart’s and London NHS
Trust, Sandra joined our
Trust in 2012 as locality
manager for Kettering.
In 2014, Sandra was
promoted to deputy
director of adult services
and has more recently
taken on the role of
interim director of
operations.
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WHAT OUR DIRECTORS DELIVER
The purpose of our board of directors is to govern our organisation effectively and, in doing so, ensure our
patients, service users, their families and carers, as well as service partners and stakeholders, are assured of
safe, quality healthcare.
The specific terms of reference of our board of directors are:

1

To formulate strategy for the organisation

2

To ensure accountability by holding the
organisation to account for the delivery of our
strategy, and seeking assurance that systems of
control are robust and reliable

Our board of directors operate in accordance with
the Trust’s constitution and scheme of delegation.
The constitution sets out the duties of the board
and council of governors, and the scheme of
delegation sets out the type of decisions to be
taken by the full board and/or the executive team
and individual directors.
Monitor expects Foundation Trusts to carry out an
external review of their governance arrangements
every three years. During 2015/16, we engaged
Ernst and Young LLP (EY), to undertake an
external well-led governance review following
a tender process. EY, who have no other
connection to our Trust, produced a report that
we responded to by developing an action plan
that further develops good governance practices
in future.
EY were positive in their feedback to the NHFT
board of directors and no major deficiencies
were highlighted. Furthermore, it was a source of
reassurance that the Board’s own self-assessment
across the four domains described above very
closely mirrored EY’s independent assessment
of how well the organisation was performing in
each of these areas.
In the report’s executive summary, EY
commented:
During our review, we observed numerous
examples of good governance followed by
the Trust including a highly engaged and
knowledgeable Board and Directorates with
passion for creating long lasting quality
improvements. We have also observed a structure
in place to identify and report local hotspots
to the Trust Board via the Directorate Team
meetings, Quality Forum and the Quality and
Governance Committee. Through our discussion
with the Deputy Medical Directors we noted
that clinicians are involved in driving service

3

To shape a positive culture for the board
and the organisation

4

To regularly hold meetings in public as
part of its commitment to be accountable
to the public and its other stakeholders

improvements. The stakeholders we met also spoke
positively about the impact the Chair and Chief
Executive have made in developing relationships
with partners within the local health economy.
Committee meetings and Board meetings are heavily
focussed on improving patient safety, care and
experience by regularly reviewing reports relating
to Serious Incidences, Complaints and Safe Staffing
and embedding a feedback tool called “I Want Great
Care”, which allows service users to give real time
feedback.
Each executive director’s performance is evaluated
through an annual appraisal process, held by the chief
executive whose performance, in turn, is managed
by the chairman. Our chairman contributes to the
executive director appraisal process, and reviews the
performance of the non-executive directors annually.
This appraisal process has been developed with and
agreed by the council of governors.
Our chairman’s performance is also appraised, using
specific, measurable and clearly defined objectives,
following an agreed process with the council of
governors. An appraisal panel, comprising the senior
independent director and members of the council of
governors’ nominations and remuneration committee,
leads this process. The council of governors then
approves the outcomes of the appraisal of the
chairman and non-executive directors.
In keeping with our commitment to ongoing
improvement, a number of board development days
and briefing sessions were held during the year.
Topics discussed at the development days included our
transformation programme and financial challenges,
the establishment of a Community Interest Company
and associated Joint Ventures with GP provider
organisations, the ‘healthier workplace’, how we
achieved ‘outstanding’ at The Forest Centre as part
of our CQC inspection process and feedback from our
external advisors on our well-led governance review.
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Our chairman, Paul
Bertin, chairs board of
directors’ meetings and
meetings of the council
Directors meet regularly, of governors. He has no
at both public and
significant commitments
private sessions.
to declare. His current
Additional meetings are term of office was
arranged when urgent
extended by the council
items require immediate of governors and is
decision-making.
due to expire on 30
November 2016.
At every meeting, our
board of directors
In the event members
and committees
and governors of our
routinely review their
organisation wish
performance against
to express concerns,
specific criteria.
and when other
Individual board
contact channels are
committees have either inappropriate or have
reviewed performance
been ineffective, the
against their terms of
senior independent
reference or have plans director is available for
to review this in the
consultation.
near future.

OUR BOARD
MEETINGS

Chair

Paul Bertin

Deputy chair

Sushel Ohri

Senior independent
director

Bev Messinger

Chief executive

Angela Hillery

OUR NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Our non-executive directors bring independent
judgement, experience and expertise from
outside the Trust and apply this for the benefit
of our organisation, its stakeholders and the
wider community. There are no relationships or
circumstances that are likely to affect, or appear to
affect, any director’s independent judgement. For
these reasons, the board of directors considers all
non-executive directors to be independent.
Our council of governors is responsible for nonexecutive director appointment and termination,
with the normal appointment term being three
years. Non-executive directors are eligible for
reappointment, but usually only for one further
period of three years.
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016
10 Jun
2015

29 Jul
2015

30 Sept
2015

25 Nov
2015

27 Jan
2016

25 Mar
2016

Paul Bertin

√

√

√

√

√

√

Angela Hillery

√

A

√

√

√

A

Moira Ingham

√

A

√

√

√

√

Bill McFarland

√

A

√

√

√

A

Bev Messinger

√

A

√

√

√

√

Sushel Ohri

√

√

√

√

√

√

Dr Alex
O’Neill-Kerr

√

√

√

√

√

√

Robert Peto

√

A

√

√

A

A

Julie Shepherd

√

√

√

A

√

√

Alastair
Watson

√

A

√

√

√

√

A denotes apologies for absence
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NOMINATIONS
AND
REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE
The nominations
and remuneration
committee is made up
of the board of directors
and all non-executive
directors. It is chaired
by the Trust’s chairman
and meets at a minimum
bi-annually, reporting to
the board of directors
at least once a year.
As a matter of course,
the chief executive is
automatically co-opted
as a voting member for
all nominations (except
for the identification
and nomination of the
chief executive).
The director of
human resources
and organisational
development routinely
attends meetings to
support the committee,
and other directors
and external advisors
are invited to attend
the committee where
appropriate. The
committee acts in
accordance with the
relevant provisions
of the fit and proper
person’s requirement
and Monitor’s Code of
Governance.
The nominations and
remuneration committee
have appointed
substantive and interim
members of the board
of directors during the
past year. They used a
combination of methods
including executive

search, advertising and
internal recruitment.
Nomination functions of
the committee are:
1. To ensure there is a
formal, rigorous and
transparent procedure
for the appointment of
executive directors

respect of executive
director recruitment as
required
Remuneration functions
of the committee are:
1. To ensure there is a
formal and transparent
policy on executive
director remuneration

2. To agree and lead
the process for the
identification and
nomination of the chief
executive, for approval
by the council of
governors

2. To determine and
review the contractual
arrangements of
executive directors
including, where
appropriate, severance
packages

3. To agree and lead
the process for the
identification and
appointment of
executive directors

3. To set the structure
and levels of
remuneration packages
of all executive directors

4. To regularly review,
in conjunction with the
council of governors’
nominations committee,
the structure, size and
composition of the
board of directors
5. To evaluate the
balance of skills,
knowledge and
experience of the board
of directors and, in the
light of this evaluation,
prepare a description of
the role and capabilities
required for executive
director appointments

4. To ensure there is a
formal and transparent
procedure for the
appraisal of executive
director performance
5. To monitor the
performance of
executive directors
6. To appoint, if
deemed appropriate,
independent consultants
to advise on executive
director remuneration

6. To give full
consideration to
succession planning,
taking into account the
future challenges, risks
and opportunities facing
the Trust, and the skills
and expertise required
within the board to
meet them
7. To appoint executive
search consultants in
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ATTENDANCE AT NOMINATIONS AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016

20 May 2015

25 November
2015

10 February
2016

Paul Bertin (chair of the
committee)

√

√

√

Bev Messinger

A

√

A

Sushel Ohri

A

√

√

Robert Peto

√

A

√

Moira Ingham

A

A

√

Alastair Watson

√

√

√

A denotes apologies for absence
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AUDIT
COMMITTEE
The audit committee is
made up of three nonexecutive directors, with
the finance director and
other executive directors
in attendance as
appropriate. It welcomes
representatives of
internal and external
audit services,
PricewaterhouseCoopers
and KPMG respectively.
The local counter-fraud
specialist attends on
a regular basis and
senior managers attend
by invitation. The
committee aims to meet
five times a year.
The specific terms of
reference of the audit
committee cover:
1. Governance, risk
management and
internal control
2. Internal audit
3. External audit
4. Relationship with the
council of governors
5. Assurance functions
6. Counter fraud
7. Financial reporting
Our directors are
accountable for the
management of the
Trust’s effectiveness
and risk factors. Our
audit committee
reviews the reports and
work programmes of
internal and external
auditors. This provides
assurance to the board
that our systems and
processes are effective.
The audit committee
regularly reviews its own

effectiveness and that of
the internal and external
auditors, by considering
at each of its meetings
the work carried out
– and exercising any
appropriate challenges
as required.
The audit committee
meets individually
with the internal and
external auditors on an
annual basis so that they
can raise any issues of
concern or clarification
in relation to their
working relationship
with the finance director
and his team, as well
as comment on their
relationship with the
internal or external
auditors respectively.
Only non-executive
director audit committee
members are involved
in this debate as the
Trust executive directors
are excluded from the
sessions.

OUR AUDITORS
Internal audit
PricewaterhouseCoopers
(PWC) provides our
internal audit service,
which includes
appropriate local
counter fraud work.
Our local counter fraud
specialist is available
for staff to raise any
concerns. Our staff are
actively made aware
of this specialist’s
availability to talk
in confidence about
possible improprieties in
financial irregularity or
bribery.
Staff are also
encouraged to raise
any concerns they have

about clinical quality,
patient safety or any
other matters through
our whistleblowing
policy ‘Raising issues of
concern – freedom to
speak up policy’. The
policy sets out three
different methods
by which staff can
bring concerns to the
attention of senior
management, including
an informal approach, a
formal approach or an
approach to one of the
‘designated’ guardians
who are outside the
formal line-management
structure.
Our internal auditors
have an annual work
programme that is
agreed at both executive
board and audit
committee level, and
covers both clinical and
non-clinical aspects.
Through the audit
committee they ensure
there is an effective
internal audit function
that meets mandatory
government internal
audit standards and
provides appropriate
independent assurance
to the audit committee,
chief executive and
board.
External audit
The council of governors
appointed KPMG as
the Trust’s external
auditors with effect
from 1 November 2012
following an Official
Journal of the European
Union (OJEU) tender
exercise and evaluation
process. The council of
governors and audit
committee members

were involved in the
appointment, which
lasts for a period of
three years. The threeyear contract was due
to expire during the
course of 2015/16, and
the audit committee
proposed to exercise
the extension option for
KPMG’s contract for a
further two years until
31 October 2017. This
was endorsed by the
council of governors.
The audit committee
regularly reviews
its effectiveness.
The committee
also evaluates the
effectiveness of external
audit, including by
considering at each of
its meetings the work
of the external auditors,
exercising appropriate
challenge as required.
The value of the external
audit plan for 2015/16,
as approved by the audit
committee in December
2015, equates to £51,000
excluding the value
added tax. The external
audit plan equates to
audit services only.
The audit committee
created our policy for
the engagement of
external auditors for
non-audit work in
December 2012. Any
non-audit services
are commissioned in
accordance with this
policy. It outlines threats
to audit independence
that theoretically exist
and the mitigations that
will be applied to ensure
that auditor objectivity
and independence
is appropriately
safeguarded. One of
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these key safeguards
is that all non-audit
work undertaken is
led by staff who are
independent of the
external audit team.
During 2015/16, the
Trust commissioned
non-audit services from
KPMG to the value of
£12,000. The services
were for tax advice to
the value of £3,000, and
for services related to
the quality accounts to
the value of £9,000.
So far as our directors
are aware, there is
no relevant audit
information of which
our auditor is unaware.
The directors have
taken all steps that they
ought to have taken
as directors, in order
to make themselves
aware of any relevant
audit information and
to establish that our
auditor is aware of that
information.
Reporting on auditing
The audit committee
meets regularly to
review audit reports and
provide assurance to the
board. It has delegated
authority to consider
and approve the annual
accounts and associated
documentation
each year. This is
conducted through the
International Standard
on Auditing (ISA) 260
meeting, providing
assurance to our
directors that finance
and quality are well
governed and regulated.
While preparing and
reviewing the annual
accounts 2015/16,

the audit committee
considered issues for
note and the main
changes as listed in
Monitor’s annual
reporting manual. There
have been a limited
number of changes to
the Foundation Trust
ARM for 2015/16. The
main changes are as
follows:
• Implementation

of
International Financial
Reporting Standard
(IFRS) 13 on fair value
accounting. This
would apply to any
surplus assets the
Trust holds. However,
assets classed as ‘held
for sale’ continue
to be accounted for
under IFRS 5. The
implementation of IFRS
13 has not affected the
valuation of assets at
31 March 2016.

• New

disclosure in
the accounts about
the cost of Private
Finance Initiative (PFI)
and LIFT schemes
that was previously
only collected in the
Foundation Trust
Consolidation (FTC)
schedules.

• New

disclosure in
the remuneration
report where one or
more executives are
paid more than the
Prime Minister. The
Foundation Trust is
required to explain
the steps it has taken
to satisfy itself that
this remuneration is
reasonable.

• Clarification

that the
operating expenditure
note should include
expenditure on

consultancy and a
requirement for further
analysis of internal audit
costs.
•A

requirement that
where expenditure on
agency/contract staff is
material as part of the
‘other staff’ total, this
should be separately
disclosed.

• In

line with the HM
Treasury Financial
Reporting Manual
(FReM), the total
commitments for PFI
schemes should be
disclosed rather than
only commitments under
the service elements as
was previously required
by the FT ARM.

• Disclosure

requirements
for related parties have
been updated to reflect
changes to Internal
Account Standard
(IAS) 24 clarifying that
where a Foundation
Trust receives key
management personnel
services from another
entity, that entity is
considered a related
party.

The audit committee
is required to review
significant issues that
were considered in
the preparation of our
annual accounts. These
are considered to be as
follows.
Valuation of property,
plant and equipment
Each year the Trust is
required to review the
valuation of its property,
plant and equipment
in line with accounting
standards. Every five
years a formal valuation

is required and the
latest valuation has
an effective valuation
date of 31 March 2014.
Movement in the value
of property, plant and
equipment can be
material to the overall
financial position of
the Trust and so is
included as a significant
item. The Trust has
engaged the District
Valuation Service to
carry out a book review
of the value of land
and buildings owned
by the Trust projected
to 31 March 2016. No
formal valuation is
required in 2015/16 but
the Trust must consider
any movements in
the property market
since the last formal
valuation. In addition,
consideration must be
given as to whether any
assets have suffered an
impairment and need
to be written down at
31 March 2016, i.e. the
Statement of Financial
Position (SoFP) date.
Enquiries with other
NHS organisations
who have carried
out similar valuation
exercises recently are
that building asset
values have risen in
Northamptonshire
during 2015/16 by
around 8% but that land
values have remained
static. This was reflected
in the Trust’s valuation
and has meant an
increase to the Trust’s
asset base of £5.8
million.
Provision for
restructuring costs
There are a number
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of organisational
restructures taking
place to facilitate the
implementation of
2015/16 and 2016/17
CIP schemes for which
staff consultations are
required. Where the
groups of staff affected
have been notified
about the proposed
changes by 31 March
2016, consideration was
given as to whether a
provision for the costs
associated with any
changes should be
recognised. Accounting
for any such costs is
covered under the
IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets.
A provision should
be created when an
‘obligating event’ has
occurred, provided
that there is a valid
expectation that the
event will be carried
out and that this has
been communicated to

affected parties. The
financial value attached
to the provision is
estimated to be the
contractual obligation
of the affected staff
and that which the
organisation will
be required to fund
when the change is
implemented.
The value of the
provision for
restructuring to be
included in the Trust
accounts at 31 March
2016 is material in the
context of the overall
financial position of
the Trust.
Going concern
assessment
In preparing accounts
in accordance with the
NHS Monitor ARM, the
Trust must consider
whether the going
concern assumption
is appropriate. In
2015/16, the Trust had
a £1.9 million deficit

financial plan which is
not sustainable in the
long term. In 2016/17
the plan submitted to
Monitor indicated a small
surplus of £0.2 million
for the year, although
the plan included a Cost
Improvement Plan (CIP)
of 4.5% (£7.9 million) and
reflected a stretch target
for the organisation in
order to achieve financial
balance. The under
achievement of the CIP
programme in 2015/16,
which was supported by
the planned use of nonrecurrent support for
50% of the programme,
means a new level of
focus is needed by the
organisation to sustain
its operations. The
organisation is working
to put in place a plan to
deliver the cost savings
needed and provide
a framework for the
organisation to continue
the work for itself. There
is no presumption of

going concern status for
NHS Foundation Trusts
and directors must decide
each year whether or
not it is appropriate to
prepare the accounts on
a going concern basis,
taking into account
best estimates of future
activity and cash flows. In
making this assessment,
directors should also be
mindful of table 6.2 of the
FReM, which emphasises
that “The anticipated
continuation of the
provision of a service in
the future, as evidenced
by inclusion of financial
provision for that service
in published documents,
is normally sufficient
evidence of going
concern.” At the present
time, management’s view
is that the accounts should
be prepared on a going
concern basis, although
there remain outstanding
risks for 2016/17.

ATTENDANCE AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
1 APRIL 2015 TO 31 MARCH 2016
20 May 2015
(ISA 260
meeting)

24
June
2015

10 Sept
2015

9 Dec
2015

16 Mar
2016

Robert Peto
(Chair of the
Committee)

√

√

√

√

√

Sushel Ohri

A

A

A

√

A

Alastair
Watson

√

√

√

√

√

A denotes apologies for absence
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CHARITABLE SUPPORT
Cynthia Spencer Trust, Cransley Hospice
Trust and Northamptonshire Health
Charitable Fund are the main charities
providing support to our Trust. They
provide support to Cynthia Spencer Hospice,
Cransley Hospice, and other causes and
projects across our Trust.
These charities hold funds that have been
received as donations, specific legacies to
support activities and monies generated by
fundraising. Both the Cynthia Spencer and
Cransley charities are governed by a group
of independent trustees, while the board
of Northampton General Hospital NHS
Trust (NGH) acts as corporate trustee for
Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund.
Local governance of funds
Our local managers and directors
recommend the specific projects where
funds should be spent. There is also a formal
grant process for the two hospices.
Each year, money is raised and spent across
all areas of the Trust. This year, we received
the following grants.

CRANSLEY
HOSPICE
£584,000

CYNTHIA
SPENCER
£635,000

MENTAL HEALTH
AND COMMUNITY
SERVICES
£120,000

Northamptonshire Health Charitable Fund
contributed towards the following activities
and equipment in 2015/16.
1. Access to the clinical key library system
2. Eye gaze communication equipment
3. Patient amenities and activities
4. Complementary therapy sessions
5. Bike maintenance workshops
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DISCLOSURES
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
has complied with the cost allocation and charging
requirements set out in HM Treasury and Office of
Public Sector Information guidance. There are no
political donations to declare. The Better Payment
Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all
undisputed invoices by the due date or within 30
days of receipt of good or a valid invoice, whichever
is later. The Trust’s Payment Performance against this
code is shown in the notes to the Accounts.

The income received by the Trust, other than
from the provision of goods and services for the
purpose of the health service in England relates
to rental income from non-NHS tenants of Trust
properties, income generation from Communicare
(occupational health services) and income from
catering. This is deemed insignificant in value
and therefore had no material impact on the
Trust meeting its principal obligations. There are
no known events after the reporting period that
impact on the financial statements for 2015/16.
The Trust is a partner of First for Wellbeing, a
community interest company, which came into
operation on 1 April 2016.
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OUR QUALITY GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK
Improving the governance of quality
Our quality agenda is underpinned by a systematic governance framework, which is being rolled out in 2016/17
after extensive review this past year. The structure identifies the core governance arrangements at both a local
(for example, team meetings) and corporate level. This includes identifying the role and responsibility of the
Trust’s board and the quality and governance committee in assuring quality across the organisation.

Patient
safety and
experience
group,
governor sub
group

Chief
Operating
Officer, OMT

3 Operational
directorates
governance/
DMT

QUALITY STRATEGY

3 X pathways
PEGs

NED
ASSURANCE &
ACCOUNTABILITY

Strategic
patient
experience
group
1. Service
and team
meetings
Frequency
monthly

4. Quality and
governance
committee

3. Quality
forums

Frequency
Quarterly

Safe
Caring
Responsive
Effective
Well-led
Quality risk ORR
Frequency bi-monthly

Safe
Caring
Responsive
Effective
Well-led
Frequency
monthly

2. Subject
specific
meetings
Frequency
monthly

Clinical
quality review
meeting,
SIAM

Corporate
quality (OMTs)
Finance
Medical
HR
Nursing/AHP

5. Trust board
Frequency
bi-monthly

Sub group/
committees of
Trust board

QUALITY ENABLERS
Service innovation
CIPs/QIPPs
QIA/EIA
Consultation
(Staff, patients)

Staff networks
and leadership
communities

Quality
facilitators and
quality tools
e.g IMROC
and safewards
benchmarking

External inspectors
•
CQC
•
Ofsted
•
AIMS
•
NMC/GMC
•
HEEM

Internal CQC
monitoring and
inspections quality
summits

Feedback
- patients/
carers/staff e.g
iWantGreat
Care

Internal CQC
monitoring and
inspections quality
summits

Quality
account

R&D
team

Quality schedule
and CQUIN

Quality
dashboard
•
Service
•
Directorate
•
Specific

Lessons
learnt,
lead
and plan
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
AHP

Allied health professionals

AIMS

Accreditation for in patient mental health services

CIPs

Cost improvement programmes

CQC

Care Quality Commission

CQUIN

Commissioning for Quality and Innovation

CRHTT

Crisis resolution home treatment team

DMT

Divisional management team

GMC

General medical council

PEGs

Patient experience groups

EIA

Equality impact assessment

HEEM

Health Education East Midlands

ImROC

Implementing recovery through organisational change

NED

Non-executive director

NMC

Nursing and midwifery council

Ofsted

Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills

OMTs

Operational management teams

ORR

Organisational risk register

QIA

Quality impact assessment

QIPPs

Quality, innovation, productivity and prevention programmes

R&D

Research and development

SIAM

Serious incident assurance meeting

Going forward, we are ensuring our governance
arrangements are robust and streamlined, that they
include a review of team meetings and their terms of
reference, as well as ensure core issues are discussed
and fed into pathway governance processes.
This strengthening of core quality and governance
meetings means that issues can be resolved at a local
level and assurance can be provided to the quality
and governance committee in a more succinct and
measured way. This year’s planning has ensured
that the role of the service users and carers will
be developed as part of the agenda to ensure our
quality mechanisms are effective and efficient. This is
linked to the quality strategy, which formulates our
organisational objectives to support quality in front
line clinical care.
We also measure quality using a number of indicators.
The Trust uses a robust CQC self-assessment process,
supported by either announced or unannounced
peer review visits to ascertain the validity of the selfassessment methodology.
In addition, the annual audit plan identifies key
areas of patient care that are reviewed in line with

internal and external requirements. This provides
the organisation with baseline and performance
data for clinical activities such as record keeping and
nutritional screening. These systems also identify
where improvements could be made, which is
monitored locally by clinical leads and in a corporate
sense by the quality team who provide reports
directly to the quality and governance committee.
We also make sure that data relating to patient
safety and our core quality indicators is bought
together on a service line dashboard. This provides
clear indication to managers and team leaders
where any potential issues, concerns or areas of
good practice are across their area.
The function also provides a platform for action
planning where improvement is required. This data
is routinely interrogated as part of the internal
triangulation process prior to any peer review
visits, meetings between quality and clinical teams,
as well as part of our internal quality summit and
governance processes. Looking ahead, the Trust
is reviewing how we can develop this technology
further to support the quality framework and
further underpin the governance arrangements.
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PATIENT CARE
We are continuously striving to improve patient care and develop
our services to meet the needs of our community.
Following the CQC inspection of the Trust in February 2015, we
adjusted approaches and developed plans to address areas that
required improvement. While the CQC recognised our organisation
as ‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ in every service for the ‘caring’ domain,
our overall rating was ‘requires improvement’, which reflects the
continuous quality improvement journey we are on.

OVERALL, THE TRUST
RECEIVED ‘OUTSTANDING’
OR ‘GOOD’ RATINGS FOR
64% OF THE SERVICES.

Looking more closely into service ratings for each domain, it is
important to note that the Trust was not rated ‘inadequate’ in any
clinical area.

We developed a robust action plan
bound by clear governance to address
the areas that required improvement.
While work to address these continues,
we also report activity and outcomes
to the board of directors through the
quality and governance committee.
Quality improvement in the Trust is
underpinned by a systematic governance
framework, which has been extensively
reviewed this year and will now be rolled
out to assure quality is central to all our
patient care activities.

Service improvements
Following our quarterly
CQC self-assessments
across all of our services,
we help our staff to
better understand the
quality agenda and assist
them in achieving and
monitoring our CQC
action plan. In addition,
for continued assurance
of the implementation
of improvements
and changes, every
requirement notice is
tested in practice. Service
leads have attended
and continue to attend
meetings to identify

the differences and
challenge the results our
CQC action plans have
made to patient care.
Feedback from Mental
Health Act (MHA) (1983)
compliance visits by
the CQC during the
year have resulted in
changes to practice that
have been recognised
and supported by the
Mental Health Act
Administration Team.
Quality is also
measured from patient
feedback using the
iWantGreatCare (iWGC)
model. This tool has
allowed us to gather

extensive qualitative
information from
our service users and
carers, to help us
to truly understand
their experience
of care provided.
Every suggestion for
improvement is followed
up with team leaders,
and themes are reported
to the Trust’s board. A
number of initiatives
have been implemented
using this feedback
source, including a
review of in-patient
consultant accessibility
for mental health wards,
improved signage across
the hospital sites and

improved patient care
information in podiatry
services.
Our staff survey is also
utilised to improve
quality and drive service
development. This year,
we implemented the
Workforce Race Equality
Standard (WRES), and
reviewed the appraisal
process and leadership
opportunities. We also
focused on improving
the wellbeing of staff
with new approaches
and activities.
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Monitoring
improvements
Quality is measured
using a number of
indicators, including a
robust CQC peer review
process to ascertain
the validity of the selfassessment methodology.
Our annual audit plan
identifies key areas of
patient care, which are
reviewed in line with
internal and external
requirements. This
provides the organisation
with baseline and
performance data for
clinical activities such
as record keeping and
nutritional screening.
These systems also
identify where
improvements could
be made, which is then
monitored locally by
clinical leads and in a
corporate sense by the
quality team. They then
provide reports directly
to the quality and
governance committee.
Quality improvement is
also routinely identified
from national initiatives
and from best practice
guidance such as NICE.
We map this guidance
against each service
based on relevance
and suitability. When
new implementation
measures are
recommended, our
quality team and
managers work
together to develop the
improvement plan, then
progress is monitored
and reported internally.

together on one service
line dashboard. This
dashboard features
patient safety measures
like numbers of
complaints, falls, serious
incident reviews and
quality indicators such
as safety thermometer
findings, clinical
supervision activity, selfassessment outcome
and staffing levels. This
provides clear indications
to managers and team
leaders where any
potential issues, concerns
or areas of good practice
are across their area.
Our dashboard measure
also provides a platform
for action planning, so
that any improvements
required are managed. It
also supports our reports
to Clinical Commissioners
for the quality schedule.
This data is routinely
interrogated as part of
the internal triangulation
process prior to any peer
review visits, meetings
between quality and
clinical teams and as
part of our internal
quality summit process.
Externally, the Trust
works closely with
commissioners to
develop and maintain
quality driven services
that are responsive to
the needs of the local
population.

We bring data relating
to patient safety and our
core quality indicators
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Services and performance against targets
Measuring our performance against targets requires
focus on service user and patient needs, service
development and the effectiveness of care delivery.
Our transformation programmes are linked to these
key factors and rely on iWGC and staff feedback
to understand our progress. As these programmes
continue to evolve, our services may further adapt
and respond to changes required. This year, we
introduced leg ulcer clinics, however the majority of
our services remained the same.
This year, we responded to the requirements of
the quality schedules linked to NHS England and
our local commissioners, Nene and Corby CCGs. We
addressed gaps identified in quality and forged a
closer partnership with NCC to develop another
quality schedule. Likewise, CQUIN contributed to
the development of our services. In 2015/16 we
successfully piloted initiatives in our maternal mental
health pathway, end of life care and psychological
support services. These elements have been positively
evaluated by service user, patients and carers and will
provide us with a platform to influence future service
design.

We made our
‘Sign up to Safety’
pledge. Based on
improvements
required and our
performance against
targets, next year
the following have
been identified as
priorities.

Our evolution of our patient care will continue with
our transformation programmes and as we move
toward more integrated, personalised care in 2016/17.
Reviewing our performance against targets is a
detailed, involved process that includes CQC rating
reviews, staff survey results, Monitor’s core indicators,
improvements in care from local and national audits,
and measures from our Datix reporting system,
National Early Warning Score (NEWS) assessments and
other processes. More about this can be found in our
Quality Report.
As our community’s healthcare needs grows, we
are continually reviewing our performance of these
healthcare targets, and recognise areas that are
challenging, such as waiting times. To support our
ability to respond to this demand, we have introduced
new initiatives that also link to the national agenda.
An example of this is improving access to mental health
services. We have developed an acute liaison mental
health service and a primary care mental health worker
role to improve and increase our capacity for patients
and service users of mental health.

We will develop
a robust internal process
from which lessons can
be learnt. These will come
from a variety of sources
including serious incidents,
service user and carer
feedback, compliments
and complaints.

We will recognise
good practice, care
and compassion
through our quality
award system.

We will improve
the quality of our record
keeping and care planning
across the organisation.

We will use the
patient experience groups
to work alongside our service
users and carers to develop
strategies that support
involvement in key activities,
for example service re-design
and recruitment
of staff.
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COMPLAINTS HANDLING
Internally our complaints processes and
outcomes are reported to the Trust board,
monitoring arrangements are in place and
information pertaining to a complaint is
held centrally. The organisation works
with a robust complaints policy, training
programme and standard operating
procedures, to support staff in the
investigation of the complaint. During the
CQC inspection the complaints process was
reviewed. One of the key actions identified
was the implementation of a low level
concerns process – this was achieved as part
of the action plan.

IMPROVEMENTS IN PATIENT
AND CARER INFORMATION
Patient and carer information has become
a key part of our action plan since the CQC
review. We audited how we communicate
to service users, patients and carers and
discovered many leaflets were either no
longer required or were no longer relevant
and contained out-of-date information.
Now, we also make all leaflets available in
different languages, fonts and print styles
to accommodate different needs.
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STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONS
We continually strive
to develop positive
partnerships with key
stakeholders. This year,
these relationships have
been even more integral
to the facilitation of
quality improvement
and healthcare across
our patient, service user
and carer population.
Our collaboration with
our commissioners,
NHS England and NCC
has helped shape what
we provide locally
and influenced care
priorities that offer an
opportunity to work
more jointly across
the health economy.
Using quality data
and information to
understand local needs
has allowed us to
identify gaps in service
and link safe, qualitydriven transformation to
effective care.
Working with local
commissioning groups
for the Commissioning
for Quality and
Innovation (CQUIN)
development has
enabled us to pilot new
healthcare initiatives,
which will feed into any
future planning and
decision-making for care
priorities. In addition,
our work in delivering
against the quality
schedule has delivered a
focus on quality that has
been rolled out across
the organisation.
Regular local level
communication with

Healthwatch and
Northamptonshire
Carers through the
patient involvement
team and the patient
experience groups
has provided us with
rich feedback on our
services. In addition,
their support as part
of the Triangle of Care
implementation has
been invaluable.
Our relationships
with local education
providers also continue
to grow. We were again
assessed very positively
against the Health
Education East Midlands
validation process. These
links with our local
education bodies have
helped us shape local
training to ensure that
healthcare students
and staff continue to
be educated using
the most up-to-date
evidence based research.
By ensuring staff have
access to appropriate
training and education
resources, learning and
development drives
the delivery of quality
care to the service user,
patients and carers.
This year, the Trust
engaged in a threeway partnership with
NCC and The University
of Northampton for
the development of
a Community Interest
Company (CIC) called
First for Wellbeing.
Our aim is to create a
single organisation for
the development and
delivery of services that
enhance the physical,
emotional, social and

economic wellbeing of
the county’s population.
First for Wellbeing
launched on 1st April
2016.
In addition, services
linked to third sector
organisations such as
Marie Curie continue to
be run in partnership
with our palliative
pathways and clearly
aids our links with
mental health and
learning disability
providers.

As our transformation of services
continues into 2016/17, our
robust consultation process
continues to include relevant key
stakeholders. Internal processes
are also in place to ensure staff,
service users, patients and carers
are cited on and are able to
feedback on service planning.
Service user, patient and carer
involvement is a core activity for
us and while we acknowledge
there is more to be achieved,
we are committed to moving
this forward.
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In early 2015, the Trust held a patient involvement week. This included a lot of activity focusing on staff and
how they can actively involve service users, patients and carers not only in their care but in Trust activity.
From this week, we were able to plan and deliver key actions to improve involvement and increase its
profile, including the below points.

A review of the patient experience groups (PEG), which resulted in a new
model. This highlighted the need for a PEG in each of the Trust’s three
clinical pathways and a steering PEG to oversee progress and activity.
The role of the PEG has been reviewed and its membership is now
communicated in all core Trust activities, including Patient-led Assessments
of the Care Environment (PLACE), leaflet development and service re-design.

The development of
a carer involvement
training session.

An increase in
service user,
patient and carer
involvement in
recruitment of staff.

The development of
a core service user,
patient and carer
group.

The development
of a service user,
patient carer
database and
activity form.

While these activities were achieved, we also conducted an audit to identify current involvement activity,
which will be used as a benchmark for activity mapping. We also have built a partnership with The
Implementing Recovery Through Organisational Change (ImROC) programme team to carry out work in
patient-centred care, including a co-production project in mental health between staff and service users.
In 2015/16, we were also nationally recognised for our work with the black, minority and ethnic (BME)
reverse commissioning project. Conducted in conjunction with staff, service users, patients, carers and local
leaders, this process has identified key clinical healthcare barriers for the BME communities. This work will
progress to its next phase in 2016/17 and will focus on developing action plans to address the inequalities
identified.
As part of the involvement plan within the Trust, service users, carers and patients are paid to support any
activity they undertake with the organisation. This cost is met internally by service line budgets.
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SUSTAINABILITY
Sustainable development and carbon management are corporate
responsibilities that we take seriously. In addition to the following
legal guidelines, we have introduced a new Sustainable Development
Management Plan (SDMP) that sets out a well-defined plan of action. By
making our objectives for sustainable development and climate change
clear, our board-approved SDMP ensures we are forward thinking and
strategic.
Our SDMP is based on the right mix of social, economic and
environmental factors that are central to providing a health service for
the long term. Our SDMP will help us to keep our promises on carbon
reduction and to make savings by being more efficient. It will also help
us to purposefully implement the following five intentions.

1

Meet the minimum legal and policy requirements
of sustainable development

2

Improve the environment where we deliver care,
for patients and staff

3

Ensure strong arrangements are in place to check
on progress

4

Promote a good reputation for sustainability

5

Make sure our sustainable development
requirements are in line with the overall aims of
our organisation
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EQUALITY
Equality, inclusion and human rights
As a major employer and provider of health and
wellbeing services in Northamptonshire, we aim
to be a leader in the promotion of equality by
valuing diversity, tackling health inequalities and
building strong and sustainable partnerships with
local stakeholders.
With a large, diverse workforce and patient
population, we recognise that promoting human
rights, equality and diversity – while tackling
inequality, discrimination and harassment – is
central to the achievement of our vision and core
values.
We seek to comply with the requirements of
the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED) to make
sure that we consider the needs of all individuals
across our policy development, delivery of
services and employment practices.
In line with our duties as an employer and
provider of NHS services, we also have an
equality and inclusion policy that provides
a framework to ensure compliance with the
Equality Act 2010 and Human Rights Act 1998. In
addition, it is compulsory for all staff to receive
equality, inclusion and human rights training.
We work to the national performance tool for
equality, the Equality Delivery System 2 (EDS2).
Designed to help NHS organisations understand
how equality can drive improvements and
strengthen the accountability of services to
patients and the public, we are focused on
addressing inequalities and delivering positive
outcomes for all groups protected under the
Equality Act 2010. Following on from our early
EDS2 work the organisation is now implementing
its outcomes and planning the next steps to aid
delivery.

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE
The board of directors of the Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust are
accountable for making all relevant information
available to the auditor. Each director has
ensured they are aware of all relevant
information and enquired with their fellow
directors and the auditors to this effect.
They have exercised reasonable care, skill
and diligence to ensure the auditor has been
made aware of all relevant information when
preparing their report.

REGISTERS OF INTERESTS
Directors’ interests are available from the
Trust board secretary
01536 452036
Governors’ interests are available from the
Foundation Trust office
01536 452059
foundationtrust@nhft.nhs.uk

Analysis of our staff survey results from groups
with those protected characteristics highlighted
several areas the Trust must focus on. We need
to continue to work with our staff networks
to bring an end to discrimination in whatever
form it takes. In particular, staff with a disability
require additional support. The Trust will be
working with the staff networks to respond to
the issues highlighted in the coming year and
years ahead.
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REMUNERATION
REPORT
This report provides information about the salaries and
pensions of our non-executive directors and executive
directors, who, as in previous years and for the
purpose of this report, have been classed as our most
senior managers.
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REMUNERATION
REPORT
The nominations
and remuneration
committee is responsible
for determining the
pay and contractual
arrangements for our
executive directors
and for monitoring
and evaluating their
performance. Further
information about
the nominations and
remuneration committee
can be found in the
section on the board of
directors and in the code
of governance.
Standardised terms
and conditions of
service apply to the
executive directors,
who are employed on
open-ended contracts.
With the exception of
the finance director’s
contract, directors’
contracts provide for
six months of notice
of termination, except
in cases of gross
misconduct when
summary dismissal
would be imposed.
The finance director’s
contract provides for
12 months of notice
of termination, except
in cases of gross
misconduct. Directors’
performance is assessed
formally through our
individual performance
and development review
process.
Any termination
payments made to
executive directors
were in accordance
with agreed terms and

conditions. All elements
of executive reward are
based on performance.
Where an exceptional
contribution had been
made, non-recurrent
cash awards were
agreed. The nominations
and remuneration
committee agree the
reward policy for
executive directors.
Payments in 2015/16
were made in line
with this policy, which
reflected the impact
of public sector pay
restraint on other staff
within the trust, market
data, affordability,
corporate and individual
performance.
For 2015/16 there were
three specific elements
agreed that would
determine any rewards
paid: the achievement
of Monitor and CQC
driven corporate targets,
the achievement of
key strategic goals, as
identified in the annual
plan and individual
contribution. Corporate,
strategic and individual
performance objectives
will again be agreed for
2016/17.
Where the Trust engages
contractors, checks
are undertaken to
ensure that the correct
deduction of tax is
made as appropriate.
This includes those
contractors who are
deemed to be ‘highly
paid’ according to the
HM Treasury threshold,
which means they are
paid a rate of more than
£220 per day and are
engaged by the Trust

for a period of more
than six months. If it is
deemed that amounts
can be paid without
the deduction of tax,
assurance is sought from
the contractor that they
will pay the appropriate
amount of tax on the
earnings from the Trust.
This is in accordance
with the requirement
to implement the
recommendations within
the HM Treasury review
of tax arrangements for
public sector appointees.
All directors (executive
and non-executive) are
paid through the payroll
system as they are
treated as office holders.
Details of directors’
remuneration and
pension entitlements are
covered in the following
tables. The Trust board
secretary holds a register
of directors’ interests.

This is available by contacting the office on
01536 452036 or by emailing jane.alton@nhft.nhs.uk

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016
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SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES 1 APRIL 2015 -31 MARCH 2016
2015 - 2016

Name and title
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Taxable
benefits
(nearest
£100)

Performance PensionLong-term
related
related
performance bonuses
benefits
related
(bands of
(bands of
bonuses
£5,000)
£2,500)

Other
Total
remunerati
(bands of
on (bands
£5,000)
of £5,000)

Paul Bertin, chairman*

40-45

1,500

0

0

0

0

40-45

Sushel Ohri, non executive
director*

10-15

900

0

0

0

0

10-15

15-20

400

0

0

0

0

15-20

10-15

700

0

0

0

0

10-15

Moira Ingham, non executive
director*

10-15

100

0

0

0

0

10-15

Alastair Watson, non executive
director*

10-15

500

0

0

0

0

10-15

Angela Hillery, chief executive*

150-155

2,100

0-5

0

110.0-112.5

0

285-290

Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief
executive (until 21 February 2016)

100-105

0

0

0

35-37.5

0

140-145

85-90

1,400

0

0

17.5-20.0

85-90**

200-205

110-115

400

0-5

0

0.0-2.5

0

125-130

95-100

1,100

0

0

180.0-182.5

0

310-315

20-25

300

0-5

0

0

25-30

55-60

80-85

600

0

0

0

0

85-90

110-115

500

0-5

0

27.5-30

0

145-150

15-20

100

0

0

107.5-110

0

125-130

Robert Peto, non executive
director*
Bev Messinger, non executive
director*

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical
director *
Bill McFarland, finance director *
Julie Shepherd, director of nursing,
AHPs and quality*
Bronwen Curtis, director of human
resources and organisational
development (until 5 June 2015)
Chris Oakes, director of human
resources and organisational
development (from 11 May 2015)
Richard McKendrick, chief
operating officer
Sandra Mellors, interim director of
operations (from 29 January 2016)

* Denotes voting right
** Represents remuneration from clinical role
No 'benefits-in-kind' were paid during 2015/16 or 2014/15
Performance-related bonuses are awarded solely at the discretion of the nominations and remuneration committee.
In 2015/16 four awards were made for significant contributions above and beyond those expected of directors.

SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES 1 APRIL 2014 -31 MARCH 2015
2014 - 2015

Name and title
Salary
(bands of
£5,000)

Taxable
benefits
(nearest
£100)

Performance PensionLong-term
related
related
performance bonuses
benefits
related
(bands of
(bands of
bonuses
£5,000)
£2,500)

Other
remuneration
(bands of
£5,000)

Total
(bands of
£5,000)

Paul Bertin, chairman*

40-45

1,900

0

0

0

0

40-45

Michelle Grimwood, non executive
director* (until 31 October 2014)

5-10

200

0

0

0

0

5-10

John Archard-Jones, non executive
director* (until 31 March 2015)

15-20

900

0

0

0

0

15-20

Sushel Ohri, non executive director*

10-15

700

0

0

0

0

10-15

Robert Peto, non executive director*

15-20

500

0

0

0

0

15-20

Bev Messinger, non executive director*

10-15

200

0

0

0

0

10-15

Moira Ingham, non executive director*
(from 1 November 2014)

5-10

300

0

0

0

0

5-10

140-145

2,500

0-5

0

122.5-125

0

275-280

Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief executive
(from 18 August 2014)

70-75

0

0

0

20-22.5

0

90-95

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical director *

85-90

2,300

0

0

17.5-20

85-90**

195-200

115-120

200

0

0

35-37.5

0

150-155

Julie Shepherd, director of nursing, AHPs
and quality*

85-90

1,500

0

0

257.5-260

0

345-350

Louise Payne, director of corporate
support (until 31 August 2014)

40-45

900

0

0

12.5-15

240-245

295-300

20-25

0

0

0

5-7.5

0

30-35

110-115

1,100

0-5

0

0

0

115-120

110-115

200

0

0

55-57.5

0

170-175

Angela Hillery, chief executive*

Bill McFarland, finance director *

Alfred Hanson, director of operations
(operations director south until April
2013, then director of operations until
19 June 2014)
Bronwen Curtis, director of human
resources and organisational
development
Richard McKendrick, chief operating
officer
* Denotes voting right
** Represents remuneration from clinical role

No 'benefits-in-kind' were paid during 2014/15 or 2013/14
Performance-related bonuses are awarded solely at the discretion of the nominations and remuneration committee.
In 2014/15 two awards were made for significant contributions above and beyond those expected of directors.

INCREASE IN CETV

Name and title

CETV at 31 CETV at 31
March 2015 March 2016

CETV at 31
March 2015
plus 0.5%
CPI annual
inflation

Real increase
Employer
in accrued
funded
pension
contribution
during
to growth in
current
CETV
financial year

£

£

£

£

£

Angela Hillery, chief executive

801,147

895,105

805,153

89,952

62,967

Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief executive (until 21
February 2016)

83,670

113,123

84,088

25,941

18,159

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical director

641,070

681,398

644,275

37,123

25,986

1,360,678

0

1,367,481

0

0

599,404

762,924

602,401

160,523

112,366

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development (until 5 June 2015)

0

0

0

0

0

Chris Oakes, Director of Human Resources and
Organisational Development (from 11 May 2015)

0

0

0

0

0

Richard McKendrick, chief operating officer

121,447

145,401

122,054

23,347

16,343

Sandra Mellors, interim director of operations (from 29
January 2016)

414,602

533,092

416,675

20,039

14,027

Bill McFarland, finance director
Julie Shepherd, director of nursing, AHPs and quality
(interim director of nursing from 14 November 2013,
substantive from 1 March 2015)

As non executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for non
executive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Chris Oakes were not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension.
Real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension
scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
The real increase calculation is calculated on a pro-rata basis for those in post for only part of the financial year.
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past
Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report.
Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for members of
the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous discount rate and have not been recalculated.

REAL INCREASE IN ACCRUED PENSION

Name and title

Accrued pension at Accrued pension at Accrued pension at
31 March 2015
31 March 2016
31 March 2015
plus 0.5% CPI
annual inflation
£
£
£

Real increase in
accrued pension
during current
financial year
£

Angela Hillery, chief executive

47,132

53,304

47,367

5,936

Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief
executive (until 21 February 2016)

7,153

9,709

7,189

2,251

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical director

31,722

33,453

31,880

1,572

Bill McFarland, finance director

58,632

58,909

58,925

0

Julie Shepherd, director of nursing,
AHPs and quality

32,793

41,249

32,957

8,292

Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development (until 5 June 2015)

0

0

0

0

Chris Oakes, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development (from 11 May 2015)

0

0

0

0

Richard McKendrick, chief operating
officer

11,267

13,458

11,324

2,134

Sandra Mellors, interim director of
operations (from 29 January 2016)

20,945

26,187

21,050

884

As non executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for non
executive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Chris Oakes were not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by
a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's
pension.
Real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in
accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

The real increase calculation is done on a pro rata basis for those in post part of the financial year.
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past
Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report.
Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for
members of the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous discount rate and have not been recalculated.

REAL INCREASE IN RELATED LUMP SUM

Name and title

Related lump sum Related lump sum Related lump sum
Real increase in
at 31 March 2015 at 31 March 2016 at 31 March 2015 accrued lump sum
plus 0.5% CPI
pension during
annual inflation
current financial
£
£
£
£

Angela Hillery, chief executive

141,395

151,495

142,102

9,393

Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief executive
(until 21 February 2016)

10,534

22,673

10,587

10,799

Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical director

95,166

100,358

95,641

4,716

Bill McFarland, finance director

175,895

176,727

176,774

0

98,379

123,746

98,871

24,875

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Richard McKendrick, chief operating officer

33,802

34,140

33,971

169

Sandra Mellors, interim director of
operations (from 29 January 2016)

62,836

78,560

63,151

2,653

Julie Shepherd, director of nursing, AHPs
and quality
Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational Development
(until 5 June 2015)
Chris Oakes, Director of Human Resources
and Organisational Development (from 11
May 2015)

As non executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for non
executive directors.
As Bronwen Curtis and Chris Oakes were not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a
member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's
pension.
Real increase in CETV - This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase
in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

The real increase calculation is done on a pro-rata basis for those in post part of the financial year.
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past
Experience (SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report.
Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for members
of the NHS Pension scheme are based on the previous discount rate and have not been recalculated.

PENSION BENEFITS

Name and title

Angela Hillery, chief executive
Dominic Hardisty, deputy chief
executive (until 21 February 2016)
Dr Alex O'Neill-Kerr, medical director
Bill McFarland, finance director
Julie Shepherd, director of nursing,
AHPs and quality
Bronwen Curtis, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development (until 5 June 2015)
Chris Oakes, Director of Human
Resources and Organisational
Development (from 11 May 2015)

Total
Real
Real
accrued
increase
increase
pension
in
in
at age 60
pension
pension
at 31
lump sum
at age 60
March
at age 60
2016
(bands of (bands of (bands of
£2500)
£2500)
£5000)
£000
£000
£000

Lump sum
Cash
Cash
Real
Employers
at age 60
Equivalent Equivalent Increase in
contribution
related to
Transfer
Transfer
Cash
to
accrued
Value at
Value at Equivalent
stakeholder
pension at
31 March 31 March
Transfer
pension
31 March
2016
2015
Value
2016
(bands of
To nearest
£5000)
£000
£000
£000
£100
£000

5-7.5

7.5-10

50-55

205-210

895

801

90

0

2-2.5

10-15

5-10

95-100

113

84

26

0

0-2.5

0-5

30-35

130-135

681

641

37

0

0

0

55-60

235-240

0

1,361

0

0

7.5-10

0-25

40-45

160-165

763

599

161

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Richard McKendrick, chief operating
officer

0-2.5

0-2.5

10-15

45-50

145

121

23

0

Sandra Mellors, interim director of
operations (from 29 January 2016)

0-2.5

2.5-5.0

25-30

100-105

533

414

20

0

As non executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for non executive
As Bronwen Curtis and Chris Oakes were not in the pension scheme there are no entries in this table.
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a
particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the
scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or
arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures
shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just
their service in a senior capacity to which the disclosure applies. The CETV figures, and from 2004-05 the other pension details, include the
value of any pension benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in the
scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
Real increase in CETV reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension
due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.
On 16 March 2016, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced a change in the Superannuation Contributions Adjusted for Past Experience
(SCAPE) discount rate from 3.0% to 2.8%. This rate affects the calculation of CETV figures in this report.
Due to the lead time required to perform calculations and prepare annual reports, the CETV figures quoted in this report for members of the NHS
Pension scheme are based on the previous discount rate and have not been recalculated.

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of
the highest paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the
organisation’s workforce.
The banded remuneration of the highest-paid director in Northamptonshire Healthcare
NHS Foundation Trust in the financial year 2015-2016 was £170,000-£175,000 (20142015, £170,000-£175,000).
This was 6.2 times (2014-2015, 6.5) the median remuneration of the workforce, which
was £28,067 (2014-2015, £26,822).
In 2015-2016 no employee received remuneration in excess of the highest paid director.
Remuneration ranged from £13,650 to £174,696 (2014-2015 £14,294 to £174,336).

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and
benefits-in-kind. It does not include severance payments, employer pension
contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.

Band of highest paid director's total (£000s)
Trust median remuneration
Ratio

2015/2016
Total
£

2014/2015
Total
£

170-175
28,067
6.2

170-175
26,822
6.5

There was one director paid more than £142,500 which is deemed to be the Prime Minister's salary.
Benchmarking was undertaken in relation to all directors roles this was completed by an
external organisation with expertise in this area. This was used to determine the
appropriate salary levels in terms of internal relativity and market competitiveness.

STAFF REPORT
Our staff
We aim to ensure we have the right people with
the right skills, attitudes and behaviours in the right
numbers, to support the delivery of safe, effective and
quality care to our community. We do this through a
culture of thorough workforce planning.
Every year, the human resources and organisational
development team put a workforce plan in place to
make sure we allocate people resources effectively
and efficiently. We adopt a multi-faceted approach and
often include reviews of service needs, analysis of key
people management data and gain feedback from key
internal and external stakeholders.
We are committed to developing a flexible, skilled and
motivated workforce that aims to be an employer of
choice, and to harnessing a positive organisational
culture that creates a climate that attracts and
retains staff.
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The Trust has developed five core values based
on the national values set out in the NHS
Constitution. We have worked to embed these
values in everything we do. These values are
designed to inspire and motivate the workforce
to take pride in everything they do and to
provide excellent patient care.

People first: working
together for patients
in everything we do

Respect, dignity and
compassion: valuing
each person as an
individual

Improving lives:
improving health,
wellbeing, preventing
decline and improving
people’s experience of
the NHS

Dedicated to the
quality of care:
insisting on quality,
simpler access and
getting the basics
right every time

Everyone and equality
counts: honesty,
active listening
and consistency in
delivering accessible
services to the
community
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RECRUITMENT
We are dedicated to
building a fully inclusive
organisation through
the recruitment and
retention of a high
calibre workforce that
is able to deliver a high
quality service. Our
practices ensure that the
principles of diversity
and inclusion underpin
all our employment
and service policies
and procedures and
remain committed to
promoting equality,
valuing diversity and
protecting human
rights. The Trust has
recruitment procedures
in place that provide
equality of opportunity,
as well as fair and
effective recruitment
and selection of all staff
groups.
We welcome
applications from
people regardless of
age, disability, gender,
gender reassignment,
race, religion or belief,
sexual orientation,
marital or civil
partnership status,
pregnancy or maternity
status and encourage
applications from groups
who are currently
underrepresented in
the organisation. In
particular, we welcome
applications from
disabled people (with
both visible and nonvisible disabilities),
people from black
and minority ethnic
communities and
lesbian, gay, bisexual
or transgender (LGBT)
people.

We have established
and implemented
recruitment procedures
that provide equality
of opportunity, as well
as ensure the fair and
effective recruitment
and selection of all staff
groups. We also belong
to the ‘two tick’ scheme,
which guarantees
interviews for disabled
persons if they meet the
minimum criteria. We
ensure that this process
is adopted across the
organisation. This year,
we developed training
for managers with
disabled staff within
their team to ensure
staff are fully supported.
Additionally, we are
currently a Mindful
Employer, which means
that we are positive
about mental health
and support staff with
mental health issues
to keep well at work
and seek support.
By ensuring that all
recruitment procedures
and processes comply
with relevant legislation
and NHS guidance, we
make the appropriate
training available to all
staff engaged in the
recruitment process. All
our recruitment and
selection procedures
and guidance have been
established to cover
all staff groups. This
ensures that recruitment
practices are effective,
non-discriminating and
help us to find the best
person available for
any identified vacancy.
These procedures
cover all stages of
recruitment from the

point a vacancy first
arises to appointment,
which promotes good
practice throughout the
recruitment process.

exceptional attendance
by individuals and
continue to formally
recognise them every
year.

ABSENCE
MANAGEMENT

TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

In 2013, we set a target
to achieve a sickness
absence rate no greater
than 4.20% (average
across all service areas).
In early 2015, a revised
Managing Absence
Policy was rolled out
in full to support and
focus our attention
further on reducing
sickness absence levels
and supporting staff
wellbeing within the
workplace.

We encourage all
our staff to apply for
training opportunities
and make sure that
access to training
is linked to each
individual’s objectives.
These objectives are
also linked to our
annual plan and are not
based on a subjective
judgement of the
abilities of particular
groups of staff. Training
is routinely monitored to
ensure fairness, so that
we make sure there are
no disparities between
groups of staff who are
trained.

This year, managers
have been supported by
human resources and
occupational health to
make good progress,
resulting in reported
sickness rates for
quarter 2, 2015/16 as at
4.1%. We must continue
to maintain and improve
further on this in order
to achieve and sustain
our target rate of 3.5%
by the end of 2017/18.
We continue to
implement our local
initiative to support this
drive for management
of sickness absence.
By issuing ‘sickness
postcards’ to staff who
have had a period of
sickness absence, we
remind them of the
supportive interventions
we have available that
assist and support their
health and wellbeing.
In addition, we reward

We are committed to
ensuring our employees
have the opportunities
to train, develop
and progress in the
organisation. Where
a particular group is
under-represented
within the workforce
or at a senior level, we
consider positive action
to redress the balance,
including improving
access to training and
giving encouragement
to apply.
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ENGAGEMENT
With continuing
demand for the services
we provide, this year
we have progressed
our transformation
agenda. This has
resulted in several
staff consultation
programmes throughout
the year, across a range
of our services.
We acknowledge that
with such changes a
degree of uncertainty
can arise for staff,
so we have worked
hard to manage these
change programmes in
a sensitive, yet effective
manner. This involved
the continuation of
significant investment
in pre-consultation
engagement, so that
staff were afforded
further opportunity
to understand the
drivers for change and
proposals, as well as
actively inviting them
to contribute to the
outcomes.
As a result of our
previous experience,
the Trust recognises
the value of engaging,
listening and responding
to staff and the positive
impact that this has for
both our workforce and
our patients. Examples
of where this has been
put into action include
the annual staff quality
awards events, which
recognise outstanding
achievements in areas
such as quality, patient
choice and leadership.

We have a number
of established staff
networks that we work
in partnership with
to help us to develop
our equality practice,
as well as providing
peer support for staff.
Our networks include
our Staff Disability &
Allies Network, BME
Staff Development
Network and LGBT &
Allies Network. Our BME
network has helped us
to establish the internal
action plan following
the introduction of
the annual Workforce
Race Equality Standard
(WRES).

FRAUD
We recognise that while
the majority of people
who work in or use
the NHS are honest,
fraud does exist and is
a serious issue. Fraud in
the NHS, on any scale,
diverts resources from
patient care and services.
Our local counter fraud
team aims to make
people aware that fraud
is being tackled and the
methods used to combat
fraud. During the past
year, this has included
the introduction of
fraud awareness
newsletters, which are
communicated to the
workforce on a quarterly
basis. The purpose of
these communications
are to raise staff
awareness, highlight
key cases and provide
details of who to contact
should our staff have
concerns.

UK MODERN
SLAVERY ACT
2015
Section 54 of the
Modern Slavery Act
2015 requires all
organisations to set
out the steps that the
organisation has taken
during the financial year
to ensure that slavery
and human trafficking is
not taking place, within
the organisation or its
supply chains.
We make every effort
to prevent slavery and
human trafficking in our
Trust, and in our supply
chains, by ensuring our
employment standards,
training, remuneration
and policies reflect
our commitment to
be a high quality
employer conscious of
safeguarding.
Our Safeguarding Adults
Policy is designed to
minimise the risk of
slavery and human
trafficking. The policy,
which was updated
this year, is part of the
inter-agency procedures
for Northamptonshire
Safeguarding Adults
Board. As a member
of this board, we are
also committed to
safeguarding training
for all our staff at level
1 and 2. Slavery and
human trafficking has
been highlighted as a
category of abuse that
we should all be aware
of.

In addition to this
training and policy,
we are committed to
employment practices
that are fair and equal,
both internally and
through our suppliers of
services and equipment.
The Trust also subscribes
to the UK Living Wage,
which is significantly
higher than the
minimum wage. The
living wage is calculated
based on the basic cost
of living in the UK and is
voluntarily subscribed to
by employers.

The Trust
believes it
has low risk
of slavery
or human
trafficking.
We believe the
area of highest
risk is with our
suppliers. We
are therefore
reviewing our
procurement
practice to
explicitly
include the
requirements
of the Act.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND
WELLBEING
We believe that a strong Trust requires a strong
quality-assured occupational health service to
promote and maintain the health and wellbeing
of its staff. Because of this, we have a robust
occupational health and wellbeing service that
has met the Safe, Effective, Quality Occupational
Health Service (SEQOHS) standards of accreditation.
This means we have been given formal recognition
that our organisation has the competence to
deliver against the measures set by the Faculty of
Occupational Medicine.
Our employees deal with the health and wellbeing
of patients on a daily basis, so it is important that
we take proactive steps to ensure their health and
wellbeing are fully supported. This enables our
employees to promote themselves as ambassadors of
health, to flourish and reach their full potential both
in and out of the workplace. In turn, their health

and wellbeing supports and assists us in achieving
our overall business strategy.
We recognise that staff should take responsibility
for their own personal health. However because
their health benefits not just themselves but our
organisation, we are committed to generating
a culture which promotes healthy lifestyles for
our workforce. We encourage healthy living by
introducing programmes such as early intervention
services to support musculoskeletal problems
and mental health issues that include cognitive
behavioural therapy and mindfulness interventions,
as well as wellbeing services such as yoga,
boot camp, Zumba and weight management.
Additionally, the Trust has successfully participated
in its second Global walking challenge.
We are confident that this approach will help
influence an organisational culture that firmly puts
the health and wellbeing of the workforce as a
high priority, so that our staff can achieve a healthy
work-life balance.
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3 FEMALE DIRECTORS

4 MALE DIRECTORS

TWENTY SENIOR MANAGERS

85 SENIOR MANAGERS BAND 8A AND ABOVE
62 FEMALE

23 MALE

4366 4430
TOTAL STAFF TOTAL STAFF

2014/15 2015/16
*Total staff includes those under contract, fixed term temporary staff, honorary, locum and individuals registered in our staff bank.

3737
FEMALE

693
MALE

815BANKSTAFF
3615 PERMANENT STAFF

The largest group in our workforce is made up of nurses from a wide range
of specialities. This reflects both the nature of our service portfolio and our
continuing dependence on the skills provided by this group.
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2015 STAFF SURVEY RESULTS
This year, our staff survey results showed positive growth in a number of areas. There was a 6%
increase in the number of staff who recommend the Trust as a place to work and as a place to
receive care.
Results showed increases in the following areas:

Better
communication
between staff
and senior
management

More staff
agreeing that
their role makes
a difference to
patients and
service users

When compared with similar Trusts, we are
significantly better with:
• Less harassment, bullying or abuse from
patients and service users, their relatives and
members of the public
• Staff motivation at work

More effective
use of service user
feedback

Staff reporting
an improvement
in support from
managers

While we are encouraged by the positive growth in
our scores, we also saw some areas where we have
room for improvement. These areas include:
• Percentage of staff appraised in the last 12 months
• Staff reporting of harassment, bullying or abuse
• Staff satisfaction with resourcing and support

We have identified all related concerns and also reviewed the free text comments made by staff to
address action areas.
Specifically, in the immediate term, the areas that require improvement are already under review.
In particular, we are committed to a project to review our appraisal activity in 2016. Similarly, by
supporting the empowerment of staff to report harassment, bullying and abuse – and indeed areas
of concern about clinical practice – the Trust has taken significant steps to introduce a comprehensive
‘Freedom to speak up’ campaign, supporting the recommendations in the Francis Report (2013). This
means that ‘Freedom to speak up’ training and guidance is now offered to all staff, as well as a full
communications campaign to support staff awareness.
This year, in a significant move to involve staff even more in our improvement journey and support
our move towards a more ‘distributed leadership’ model, we are inviting staff from all work areas to
attend a session where they a will hear more localised feedback about their staff survey results and
will be contributing to the lessons we learn from this feedback and our improvement journey. From
these meetings a plan to address localised and Trust wide issues will be created. There will also be an
opportunity to learn from areas of positive growth and ensure these messages are shared with our
staff. All of this activity and feedback will directly feed into our activity as a HR directorate and our
ongoing objectives.

We were pleased to see that our overall engagement score is
above average. This means that we have a group of staff who
look forward to going to work and are enthusiastic about and
absorbed in their jobs.
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STAFF SURVEY 2015
RESULTS

This year, our staff survey results showed positive growth in a number of
areas. There was a 6% increase in the number of staff who recommend the
Trust as a place to work and if a friend or relative needed treatment, would
be happy with the standard of care provided by the Trust.

2014

Response rate

2015

TRUST
IMPROVEMENT OR
DETERIORATION

Trust

National
average

Trust

National
average

45%

42%

44%

45%

-1%

TOP FOUR RANKING SCORES
KF25. Percentage of staff experiencing harassment, bullying or abuse
from patients, relatives or the public
in last 12 months

31%

29%

22%

28%

-9%

KF3. Percentage of staff agreeing
that their role makes a difference to
patients / service users

89%

89%

92%

89%

3%

KF32. Effective use of patient / service No comuser feedback
parator
score

No comparator
score

3.8

3.69

-

KF4. Staff motivation at work

3.84

4.02

3.44

0.11

3.91

BOTTOM FOUR RANKING SCORES
KF27. Percentage of staff / colleagues
reporting most recent experience of
harassment, bullying or abuse

46%

52%

43%

48%

-3%

KF11. Percentage of staff appraised in 82%
last 12 months

88%

84%

91%

2%

KF24. Percentage of staff / colleagues
reporting most recent experience of
violence

86%

72%

70%

74%

-16%

KF14. Staff satisfaction with resourcing and support

No comparator
score

No comparator
score

3.3

3.33

-
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ANNUAL REPORT
DISCLOSURES

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2016
Number that have existed for less than one year at time of reporting

4

Off-payroll arrangements

Number that have existed for between one and two years at time of
reporting

8

For all off-payroll
engagements as of 31
March 2016, for more than
£220 per day and that last
longer than six months.

30

Of which:

Number that have existed for between two and three years at time of 13
reporting
Number that have existed for between three and four years at time
of reporting

4

Number that have existed for four or more years at time of reporting

1

All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have at some point been subject to a risk based
assessment as to whether assurance is required that the individual is paying the right amount of tax and,
where necessary, that assurance has been sought.

For all new off-payroll
engagements, or those
that reached six months in
duration, between 1 April
2015 and 31 March 2016,
for more than £220 per
day and that last longer
than six months.

For any off-payroll
engagements of board
members, and/or senior
officials with significant
financial responsibility,
between 1 April 2015 and
31 March 2016.

Number of new engagements or those that reached six months in
duration, between 1 April 2015 and 31 March 2016

26

Number of the above that include contractual clauses giving the Trust
the right to request assurance in relation to income tax and National
Insurance obligations

26

Number for whom assurance has been requested

26

Of which:
Number for whom assurance has been received

0

Number for whom assurance has not been received

26

Number that have been terminated as a result of assurance
not being received

0

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior
officials with significant financial responsibility, during the financial
year

0

Number of individuals that have been deemed "board members and/
or senior officials with significant financial responsibility". This figure
should include both off-payroll and on-payroll engagements

62
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GOVERNANCE
Effective governance allows us to grow and develop. By
overseeing our processes, we maintain a compassionate,
inclusive environment, providing safe, quality care and
ensuring high standards of welfare for all service users.
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has
applied the principles of the NHS Foundation Trust Code
of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most recently
revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of the UK
Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012.
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WHO CAN BE A
GOVERNOR?
Any member of the
Trust who is aged 16 or
over can be elected as
a governor. There are
three constituencies:
public, service users
or carers, and staff.
Each elected governor
belongs to, and is
appointed by, one of
these constituencies.
We consult with our
members, the council of
governors and the public
on topics of a strategic
and operational nature
(for example, the annual
plan creation or local
service redesigns). We
welcome the views of
everyone and actively
encourage input in a
number of ways. The
public have access to
forums such as the board
of directors’ meeting.
Our annual public and
members’ meeting was
held on 18 September
2015. Members are
invited to these
meetings as a further
opportunity to share
their views with the
board of directors. We
also hold a number of
events throughout the
year to keep members
informed about our
services and to ensure
that they have ample
opportunity to express
their opinions.
A register of governors’
interests is updated
annually and is
available from the

Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS
Foundation Trust office.
How we have engaged
our members this year
1. Initial
communications. All
new members receive
a welcome letter
and introductory
information.
2. Ongoing
communications. We
continue to issue regular
bulletins and reports
from the chairman. We
also send out governor
and organisational
updates, and a
membership survey.
3. Website members’
area. We maintain a
dedicated place to
find information and
updates.
4. Promotional
materials.
These help to encourage
member recruitment
by staff, service users
and local carers. For
example, the patient
contact centre sends out
membership application
forms with appointment
letters and staff
inductions promote the
benefits of membership
to new employees.
5. Member events.
These are held to share
and discuss the annual
plan and the future of
healthcare services. They
address the Trust and
the wider NHS. Recently
scheduled servicespecific events have
included topics like the
report on the Mental
Health Crisis Concordat.

6. Wider participation.
We encourage
attendance at events
co-hosted with other
local healthcare
providers. As part of
our joint initiative with
Northamptonshire Fire
and Rescue Service, free
‘Heart Start’ courses are
available to all members.
Courses like those
teaching life-saving skills
were also well received
during the last year.
Our membership
strategy
Our current strategy
builds on all of our work
to date, recruiting and
developing an engaged
and representative
membership. The council
of governors approved
an updated strategy in
November 2014. This
strategy focuses on two
main areas: current
member engagement
and the need for
continued base number
growth. The strategy is
due to be refreshed in
2017, so the governors’
membership and
governance sub group
will start this work in
late 2016.

We aim to make membership
engagement a central part of
how we gain an even better
understanding of our patients,
service users, families, carers,
staff and community. We have
over 11,800 members and their
input directly contributes to the
development of the Trust.
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Our ultimate aim: to
increase our members’
sense of Trust ownership
Our membership
recruitment programme
has been ongoing
since 2007. Public and
patient constituencies
are receiving more
investment and focus.
This is in accordance
with the Health and
Social Care Act 2012
section 153 (2) (2), which
requires membership to
be representative of the
people we serve.
To properly ensure that
our membership is a
true representation
of the population we
serve, we commissioned
information from
membership
engagement services
in March 2015. Our
membership base
was found to have no
significant outliers,
though there were
areas with potential
for improvement. In
February and March
2016, we selected the
Campaign Company to
recruit members from
key socioeconomic
groups to ensure that
they will be represented
in the future.
What are our
membership targets?
We carefully review
targets prior to agreeing
them, balancing aims
for membership growth
with investment
in the meaningful
involvement of existing
members. The council of
governors’ membership
and governance

sub-group oversee
recruitment activities
and recommend annual
membership targets,
for endorsement by the
council of governors.

THE TRUST HAS
SUCCESSFULLY
ACHIEVED
THE OVERALL
MEMBERSHIP
TARGET FOR THE
YEAR – THERE
ARE NOW
APPROXIMATELY
300 NEW
MEMBERS.
The council of governors
has agreed a 1% growth
target in 2016/17, which
is a 1.5% reduction
from previous years.
The reduction has
been endorsed by the
council of governors
at their January 2016
meeting. The reduction
allows for more

concentrated member engagement and also
reduces costs of recruitment. This covers all
constituencies to demonstrate growth and to
have a representative membership. These targets
are reflected in our membership report, which is
part of the annual plan and is endorsed by the
board of directors. The board of directors attend
and also receive regular reports on the council of
governors’ meetings. These cover developments
in membership strategy and address progress in
target delivery.

MEMBERSHIP AT YEAR-END

Public

March

March

March

March

2013

2014

2015

2016

6733

6945

7508

7963

2093

2198

2343

2354

1693

1769

1684

1574

10519

10912

11535

11891

members

Patient
and carer
members

Staff
members

Total
members

If you would like to know more about becoming a member of our Trust or
would like to contact your governor or directors, please contact us using the
details below.
Foundation Trust office
Front block
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road
Kettering
Northamptonshire
NN15 7PW

Email: foundationtrust@nhft.nhs.uk
Phone: 01536 452059
Web: www.nhft.nhs.uk
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OUR MEMBERS
As the involvement of our community, staff, patients, service users,
families and carers is vital to our organisation’s delivery of healthcare,
we ensure their interests are well represented by our members and our
council of governors. Our members elect the majority of governors.
We also appoint governors from organisations with whom we have
strong links, for example Northamptonshire County Council.

OVER 7,900
PUBLIC MEMBERS

OVER 2,300
SERVICE USERS AND CARER MEMBERS

AROUND 1,500
STAFF MEMBERS
WHO CAN BE A MEMBER?

Anyone who lives in Northamptonshire, is employed
by our Trust, or has been a patient, service user or carer
of a service user within the last 10 years, can become a
member. The minimum age for membership is 12 years.
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Registers of interests
Directors’ interests
are available from the
Trust board secretary
(phone 01536 452036).
Governors’ interests
are available from the
Foundation Trust office
(phone 01536 452059 or
email foundationtrust@
nhft.nhs.uk).

COUNCIL OF
GOVERNORS
The council of governors
is an important body
made up of elected and
appointed governors
of our Trust. The main
functions carried out by
the council are offering
views on current issues,
forward planning and
discharging specific
statutory responsibilities.
As members of our
organisation, governors
always operate in
accordance with our
constitution.
Elected governors
are appointed for
up to three years.
There are three main
constituencies: public,
patients and carers,
and staff. Each elected
governor belongs to and
is appointed by one of
these constituencies.
During the past year,
elections were held for
new governors. New
and existing governors
remain in post until
one of the following
situations occurs:
• There

is a change in the
constitution

• There

is a change

in the individual’s
circumstances which
means they are no
longer able to be a
governor
• Their

tenure expires

The council of governors
appoints a lead governor
from its membership.
From 20 March 2015
until 30 November
2015 Rosemary Herring,
partner governor of
borough and district
councils was appointed
lead governor. From 1
December 2015 Michael
Darling, public governor
of Daventry and South
Northamptonshire,
was appointed lead
governor.
Governors contribute in
various ways through
committees and subgroups. They appoint or
remove the chairman
and non-executive
directors, as well as
holding responsibility
for their remuneration.
They also appoint or
remove the external
auditor.
The roles of our
committees and subgroups
• Nominations

and
remuneration
committee
This committee
appoints, removes
and re-appoints the
chairman and nonexecutive directors,
and determines their
terms and conditions.
A key focus of the
committee’s work in
2015/16 was to lead
the process for the

appointment of two
new non-executive
directors in anticipation
of the current
tenures expiring. One
appointment was
successfully made
with the second
appointment subject to
further consideration.
An executive search
company was
appointed by the
council of governors
to support this
recruitment process.

• Chair’s

sub-group
Comprising of the
chairman of the
council of governors
and the chairs of each
committee and subgroup, as well as task
and finish groups,
this sub-group plans
and discusses agendas
for the council of
governors’ meetings.

• Membership

and
governance sub-group
This sub-group drives
membership strategy
and considers general
items regarding the
council and the Trust.

• Finance,

planning and
performance sub-group
Providing views on
forward plans, this subgroup also examines
financial and nonfinancial performance
in specific areas,
dictated by a defined
work plan.

• Patient

safety and
experience sub-group
This sub-group
examines issues of
patient safety and
experience.

• Staff

and resources
sub-group
This sub-group
examines issues of staff
and resources.

• Corporate

assessment

sub-group
This sub-group reviews
papers from the board
of directors’ meetings.
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Governor training and
development
The membership and
governance sub-group
monitors ongoing
governor training.
In the last year, we
have made significant
progress identifying and
meeting the training
and development
needs of governors.
Governors have agreed
to undertake mandatory
training, which now
aligns them with
the ‘Skills for Health
Programme’ that all our
staff must also follow.

events and routinely
receive a written report
from the chairman that
outlines key issues raised
at council meetings. If
a formal disagreement
between the council of
governors and board of
directors was to arise,
our constitution contains
a process for resolution.

The council of governors
also features partner
organisations. These
organisations will
sometimes carry out
their own engagement
activities within the local
community. Governors
will announce any
Governors have accessed conflicts of interest
a range of other training or make declarations
of interest where
and development
appropriate.
opportunities, some
which are NHS-wide
The chief executive
and some which are
will highlight meetings
developed and delivered
with key partners in
internally.
the local health and
The council of governors social care economy.
This is communicated
is an important
in a regular report,
piece of the overall
and gives governors
governance jigsaw of
the Trust. In 2015/16 the another opportunity to
declare shared interests
council of governors
conducted an externally of themselves or their
members.
facilitated review
of its effectiveness,
Contribution to our
the result of which
annual plan
provided good assurance
both in absolute and
The council of
comparative terms.
governors’ finance
planning and
How we involve our
performance subgovernors
group contributed
to the development
Directors attend the
of the Trust’s 2016/17
council of governors’
operational plan.
main and sub-group
The Trust also has a
meetings. This allows
successful track record
them to listen and
in engaging members
respond to views
in the development
and questions from
of its annual plan
governors. Directors
also attend key member through, for example,

member events and this
process will continue
in 2016/17. Governors
have a specific duty to
engage members and are
expected to seek their
view on performance and
progress. Some governors
will write to members
in their constituency,
inviting them to express
views and highlight any
concerns.
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GOVERNORS

We held six meetings of the council of governors during 2015/16.

GOVERNOR ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND EXPENSES PAID DURING THE YEAR
Constituency

Class

Name

Number of
meetings
attended
(six meetings)

Expense

Public

Corby & Kettering

Joe Sims

5 of 6

£0

Corby & Kettering

Maureen Shram

5 of 6

£150.65

Corby & Kettering

Brenda McCraith

6 of 6

£116.85

Northampton

Mark Wall*

0 of 0

£0

Roger Webb

3 of 6

£158.45

Northampton

Gail Sutherland

6 of 6

£390.60

Northampton

Peter Evans

0 of 3

£0

Des Savage

3 of 3

£177.60

Wellingborough & East Northamptonshire

Hector Graham

5 of 6

£425.56

Wellingborough & East Northamptonshire

John Walker

5 of 6

£0

Wellingborough & East Northamptonshire

Janet Hathaway

4 of 6

£198.50

Daventry & South Northamptonshire

Katherine Deaville

1 of 6

£0

Daventry & South Northamptonshire

Michael Darling

6 of 6

£1,414.60

Daventry & South Northamptonshire

Anthony Bagot-Webb

6 of 6

£1,806.06

Adult service user

Kevin Boyce

3 of 6

£0

Adult service user

Liz Johnstone*

0 of 0

£64.80

William Miller

3 of 6

£325.20

Adult service user

Beverley Sturdgess

3 of 6

£0

Adult service user

Tony Locock

6 of 6

£382

Adult service user

Dennis Holland

5 of 6

£436.30

Adult service user

Colin Russell

4 of 6

£0

Younger service user

Hummad Anwar

3 of 6

£0

Older service user

Brian Lawrence

4 of 4

£406.56

Carol Thorne-Smith

2 of 2

£0

Carer

Rita Hinde

2 of 4

£0

Carer

Priscilla Brown

4 of 6

£0

Carer

Alan Devenish

4 of 6

£292.95

Carer

Sandra Bemrose

2 of 6

£0

Registered nurses

Alex Scott

6 of 6

£0

Non clinical

Suzanne Johnson

5 of 6

£0

Other clinical

Jacquie Gowans

4 of 6

£0

Doctors and dentists

Nick Mann

2 of 6

£0

Unregistered nurses

Chris Thurston

1 of 5

£0

Borough & District Councils

Rosemary Herring

5 of 6

£863.85

Northamptonshire County Council

Judy Shephard

3 of 6

£0

Northamptonshire Rights & Equality Council

Steven Brooks

4 of 6

£27.40

Older People – Age UK Northamptonshire

Liam Condron

4 of 6

£0

Criminal Justice Services

DCC Andy Frost

0 of 6

£0

The University of Northampton

Mike Twigger

1 of 1

£66.60

John Turnbull

4 of 5

£0

Jane Carr

2 of 2

£0

Patients and
carers

Staff

Partners

Voluntary Impact Northamptonshire
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*Due to governor elections, two governors (who did not re-stand) were in post from 1 April until 23 April
2015. However, there were no council of governors’ meetings held in April 2015.
Members of the board of directors are invited to attend council of governors’ meetings. Directors are
routinely invited to contribute to discussions and to present information on key issues.

DIRECTOR ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS
Name of director

Title

Number of
meetings
attended
(six meetings)

Paul Bertin

Chairman

5 of 6

Sushel Ohri

Non-executive director

4 of 6

Robert Peto

Non-executive director

0 of 6

Alastair Watson

Non-executive director

1 of 6

Bev Messinger

Non-executive director

4 of 6

Moira Ingham

Non-executive director

3 of 6

Angela Hillery

Chief executive

6 of 6

Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr

Medical director

2 of 6

Bill McFarland

Finance director

2 of 6

Julie Shepherd

Director of nursing, AHPs and quality

4 of 6

Richard McKendrick

Chief operating officer

6 of 6

Bronwen Curtis

Director of human resources and organisational
development

1 of 1

Chris Oakes

Director of human resources and organisational
development

2 of 6

Dominic Hardisty

Deputy chief executive

4 of 5

Sandra Mellors

Interim director of operations

0 of 1

KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The Trust engages with key stakeholders on a range of issues that are both strategic (for example, the
annual plan) and operational (for example, local services redesign). The interests of patients and the local
community are represented in a number of ways, including through the structure of the Trust’s council of
governors, public access to board of directors’ meetings and the annual public and members’ meeting.
The council of governors is made up of partner organisations, some of which engage in activities within the
local community. Governors will declare any conflicts of interest or declarations of interest as appropriate.
The chief executive, in her regular report to the council of governors, will routinely highlight meetings with
key partners in the local health and social care economy, providing opportunity for governors to raise any
issues in which they and their members may have a shared interest. Staff governors are routinely invited to
attend the Trust’s staff partnership forum meetings.
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REGULATORY
RATINGS
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Our financials show a planned
deficit of £1.9 million. Although
the final plan shows a deficit
position, the Trust is able to
maintain an overall risk rating
of ‘4’. This is underpinned by our
strong liquidity, which will enable
us to manage a deficit of this scale
and plan further mitigating actions
to manage the financial position
over the medium-term.
The Foundation Trusts’ regulatory
ratings are defined within
Monitor’s Risk Assessment
Framework. The Trust maintained
a “Green” governance rating
throughout 2015/16 and this
positive result mirrored the rating
consistently achieved during
2014/15. In both years, actual
performance in respect of the
governance rating was in line with
planned performance. In respect
of the Trust’s financial risk ratings,
the performance is described
in the financial targets, plan
and performance section of the
Performance Report.

2015/16

Annual
Plan

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

Continuity of service risk
rating

3

3

Financial sustainability risk
rating

3

3

3

4

Governance rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

Continuity of service risk
rating

3

4

4

4

4

Governance rating

Green

Green

Green

Green

Green

2014/15

*From July 2015 the risk rating system changed from continuity of
service risk rating to financial sustainability risk rating.
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STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITIES
Statement of the chief executive’s responsibilities as
the accounting officer of Northamptonshire Healthcare
NHS Foundation Trust
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The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive
is the accounting officer of the NHS Foundation
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the
accounting officer, including their responsibility
for the propriety and regularity of public
finances for which they are answerable, and for
the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in
the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the
basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of Northamptonshire Healthcare
NHS Foundation Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses
and cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer
is required to comply with the requirements of
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting
Manual and in particular to:
• observe

the Accounts Direction issued by
Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis

• make

judgements and estimates on a
reasonable basis

• state

whether applicable accounting standards
as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material departures in
the financial statements

• ensure

that the use of public funds complies
with the relevant legislation, delegated
authorities and guidance and

• prepare

the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Trust and to enable him/
her to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above-mentioned
Act. The accounting officer is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have
properly discharged the responsibilities set out
in Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Accounting
Officer Memorandum.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust has complied with the cost allocation
and charging requirements set out in HM
Treasury and Office of Public Sector Information
guidance. The directors consider the annual
report and accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for patients, regulators and
stakeholders to assess the Trust’s performance,
business model and strategy.
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Scope of responsibility
As accounting officer, I
have responsibility for
maintaining a sound
system of internal
control that supports
the achievement of the
Trust’s policies, aims
and objectives, while
safeguarding the public
funds and departmental
assets for which I am
personally responsible,
in accordance with
the responsibilities
assigned to me. I am
also responsible for
ensuring that the Trust is
administered prudently
and economically and
that resources are
applied efficiently
and effectively. I also
acknowledge my
responsibilities as set out
in the NHS Foundation
Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum.
The purpose of the
system of internal
control
The system of internal
control is designed
to manage risk to a
reasonable level, rather
than to eliminate
all risk of failure, to
achieve policies, aims
and objectives. It can
therefore only provide
reasonable and not
absolute assurance
of effectiveness. The
system is based on
an ongoing process
designed to identify
and prioritise the risks
to the achievement
of the policies, aims
and objectives of the
Trust, to evaluate the
likelihood of those

risks being realised,
their impact should
they be realised, and to
manage them efficiently,
effectively and
economically. The system
of internal control has
been in place in the
Trust for the year ended
31 March 2016 and up
to the date of approval
of the annual report and
accounts.

management of risk.

Capacity to handle risk

• Incident

The quality and
governance committee
and the performance
committee have
delegated responsibility
as part of the
organisation’s risk
management strategy
on behalf of the Trust’s
board of directors.
This ensures the best
leadership, coordination
and prioritisation is
received, on a strategic
and operational basis,
of the risk management
agenda in relation
to clinical, quality,
workforce, operational
and financial risks.
This includes the
identification of the full
range of risks that are
inherent in the delivery
of healthcare.
The risk management
structure is detailed
in the Trust’s risk
management strategy.
It describes the
responsibilities and
accountabilities of all
directors, managers and
staff, including the duty
to identify and report
risks of all kinds, and the
duty to act upon these
using their own skills
and competencies in the

The Trust ensures,
through our
management structure,
that we provide
training and support
on the delivery of risk
management activities
such as:
• Local

and corporate
induction training

• Risk

awareness

reporting and
monitoring

• Risk

management
systems and processes

The risk and control
framework
The significant risks in
relation to the Trust’s
strategic objectives are
described in the Trustwide organisational risk
register. The current and
most significant risks
relate to:
• Delivery

of the
financial plan

• Maintaining

the right
workforce capability
and capacity to deliver
the Trust’s strategic
plan

• Compliance

actions
for improving learning
lessons

The Trust has put in
place controls and
action plans to mitigate
these risks. For example,
a ‘learning lessons’
awareness campaign
has been established,
including regular
workshops for clinical
staff to review and
implement across service
areas lessons learnt from
serious incidents.

Future risks and
associated mitigations
are identified in a
number of ways,
including the board’s
regular ‘horizon
scanning’ of the
environment in which
the Trust is operating,
as well as through the
regular refresh of the
organisational risk
register following the
annual planning process.
The Trust also reviews
and reports on the
determination of its risk
appetite using a matrix
that comprises risk
levels and key elements
(for example financial,
compliance and quality).
During Pricewaterhouse
Cooper’s (PwC)
2015/16 internal audit
programme, three high
risk findings were raised
by PwC following its
review of the Trust’s
Emergency Preparedness
Resilience and Response
(EPRR) arrangements.
EPRR features on the
Trusts ORR and the issues
highlighted by PwC are
being addressed.
The principal risks to
compliance with the
Trust’s condition 4
of the NHS provider
licence relate to poor
corporate governance
arrangements, including
ineffective performance
management and
reporting systems (in
respect of quality,
operations and finance),
and inadequate business
planning processes.
Key measures in place to
mitigate against these
risks include:
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1. The effectiveness of
governance structures
• In

line with Monitor
national guidance, the
board commissioned
an external review
of the organisation’s
governance
arrangements. Ernst
and Young (EY)
undertook this ‘Wellled Framework for
Governance Review’
work during 2015/16
which provided good
assurance regarding
the Trust’s governance
processes including
those relating to
quality governance.
This exercise is
expected to take place
every three years.

• Regular

reviews of
board committees’
effectiveness are
undertaken.

• An

internal audit
report in 2015/16 on
risk management
arrangements provided
a ‘low risk’ report
classification and
identified a number
of areas of positive
assurance.

• The

Well-led
Framework for
Governance Review’s
remit included a focus
on the robustness
of the Trust’s
quality governance
arrangements,
with good levels
of assurance being
attained.

• Representatives

from the council of
governors attend board
of directors’ meetings
and periodically attend

board committees to
observe these sessions
and gain independent
assurance of their
effectiveness.
• Governors

present the
work of their subgroups to the board
on a rotational basis at
each meeting in public
session, highlighting
Trust issues on which
they have gained
assurance and where
further information/
scrutiny is required.

• The

Trust has
robust information
governance and data
quality policies in place,
accessible to all staff,
which cover such issues
as data security and
systems’ data quality.
The Trust also has a
board-appointed senior
information risk owner
and Caldicott guardian.

• The

Trust’s constitution
is regularly reviewed
and updated to reflect
legislative changes
or organisational
requirements with
appropriate advice
obtained from the
Trust’s legal advisors.

2. The responsibilities
of directors and
committees:
• Board

committee
terms of reference
and membership are
regularly reviewed.

• The

board of directors’
structure is reviewed
regularly to ensure its
continued effectiveness
and arrangements for
talent management
and succession
planning are in hand.

3. Reporting lines and
accountabilities between
the board, its committees
and the executive team:
• These

are clearly
defined within the
overall governance
structures of the Trust
and within the terms of
reference of the board
committees. Reports
and minutes from board
committees are included
in the public and private
sessions of the board
of directors’ meetings
respectively.

• Management

of risk
is allocated to two
board committees: the
performance committee
and quality and
governance committee,
with the board taking
an overarching
responsibility for risk
(including ensuring
effective exchange
between the two
committees). The audit
committee’s terms of
reference also include
risk management
responsibilities.

4. Submission of
timely and accurate
information to assess
risks to compliance with
the Trust’s NHS provider
licence:
• The

board routinely
receives and reviews
the organisational
risk register as part of
the Trust’s robust and
well-embedded risk
management strategy.

• Quarterly

submissions to
Monitor and in-quarter
ad-hoc exception
reporting.

• Specific

monitoring

and assurance
arrangements have
been established and
agreed by the quality
and governance
committee to ensure
ongoing compliance
with the Trust’s
provider licence
conditions.
5. The degree and rigour
of oversight the board
has over the Trust’s
performance:
• The

Trust has
well-established
performance
management systems
in place in respect of
our quality, operational
and financial
obligations with
appropriate links to
the organisational risk
register processes.

• The

board of directors
routinely receives and
scrutinises performance
reports at its meetings.
The performance
committee and quality
and governance
committee have
key responsibilities
within the overall
performance
management
framework and quality
strategy of the Trust.

• The

board takes
leadership of the
annual planning
processes (both
operational and
strategic) and receives
and reviews regular
progress reports
on delivery. Board
workshops are held
as part of the overall
annual planning
process, to which
deputy directors
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(operational and
clinical) are invited.
The Trust has applied
the principles of the
NHS Foundation Trust
Code of Governance
on a ‘comply or
explain’ basis. The NHS
Foundation Trust Code
of Governance, most
recently revised in July
2014, is based on the
principles of the UK
Corporate Governance
Code issued in 2012.
The board has an
established process
to assure itself of the
validity of its corporate
Governance Statement
required under NHS
Foundation Trust
Condition 4 (8) (b), with
appropriate sources
of assurance being
provided to the Board,
thereby allowing it to
self-certify compliance
with the Statement.
The risk management
strategy includes an
explanation of the
Trust’s philosophy
towards risk
management within
our strategic aims
and objectives, and
clear definitions of
individuals’ roles and
responsibilities. The
strategy, which is
reviewed by the board
annually, outlines the
Trust’s approach to the
following:
• The

responsibility of
every member of staff
to recognise, respond
to, report, record and
reduce risks while they
are undertaking work
for the Trust.

• The

provision of
high-quality services
to the public in ways
aimed at securing the
best outcome for all
involved. To this end,
the Trust ensures that
appropriate measures
are in place to reduce
or minimise risks to
everyone for whom we
have a responsibility.
These include patients,
staff, contractors and
visitors who are on
Trust premises.

• The

implementation
of policies and training
to ensure that all
appropriate staff are
competent to identify
risks, are aware of
the steps needed to
address them and have
authority to act.

• Management

action
to assess all identified
risks and the steps
needed to minimise
them. This comprises
continuous evaluation,
monitoring and
reassessment of these
risks and the resultant
actions required.

• The

designation of
executive officers
with responsibility for
the implementation
of this strategy and
the execution of
risk management
through operational
and monitoring
committees, as
described in the risk
management strategy
and policy.

• Action

plans to
maintain compliance
with the requirements
for Care Quality

Commission (CQC) and
Ofsted registration,
which contribute to
delivery of the risk
control framework and
registration standards
assurance.
• The

process by which
risks are evaluated and
controlled throughout
the organisation.

In support of the risk
management strategy
and policy, a range
of policies exist that
provide clear guidance
for staff on how to
deal with concerns,
complaints, claims,
accidents and incidents
on behalf of patients,
visitors or themselves.
Risk management is
embedded within the
organisation as follows:
• Compliance

with
the mechanisms for
the reporting of all
accidents and incidents.

• Information

from
incident reporting data
is integrated into new
service developments
through the Datix
incident reporting
system.

and corporate risk
registers and the
National Patient
Safety Agency grading
matrix throughout the
organisation.
•A

financial risk
assessment is
incorporated into the
bi-monthly financial
reporting arrangements
for the performance
committee and the
board.

• An

established ‘freedom
to speak up’ policy is
in place and awareness
of this is promoted
within the Trust, with a
quarterly report to the
quality and governance
committee.

• Outcomes

from
complaints, incidents
and claims are used to
mitigate future risks and
these outcomes are also
aggregated to identify
Trust-wide risks

The Trust’s organisational
risk register fulfils the
functions as described in
the guidance as it:
• Covers

all the
organisation’s main
activities.

• All

serious incidents are
• Identifies the Trust’s
actively managed and
strategic focus.
monitored to ensure
compliance with action • Identifies, scores and riskprofiles the key risks to
plans and being open;
progress is monitored by achieving its objectives.
the board of directors
• Identifies and describes
at each meeting both
the significant systems of
in public and private
internal controls in place
session.
to manage the risk.

• Training

and education
programmes for staff,
including induction
programmes.

• Use

of local, directorate

• Identifies

the review and
assurance mechanisms,
and therefore the
effectiveness of the
systems of internal
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control.
• Identifies

gaps in
controls and assurance
and the link to
board plans. Its main
objectives are riskprofiled.

The organisational
risk register describes
the risks to achieving
the organisation’s
strategic objectives.
They are drawn from
operational indicators of
risk and from horizonscanning discussions
about external risks
to achieving the
strategic objectives.
The organisational
risk register is updated
regularly through
the year. Any gaps
in controls that are
identified are subject
to the implementation
of an action plan and
assurances within
the organisational
risk register. The
organisational risk
register is continually
reviewed by the
performance committee
and quality and
governance committee
and assurance of
the process and
management of risks is
reported to the board
of directors in public
session.
The Trust has a robust
risk assessment and risk
register process in place
to identify both clinical
and non-clinical risks at
local, locality/specialist
and organisational
levels. For those
risks that cannot be
eliminated or managed
at a local or specialist

level and are assessed
to be a significant risk,
they are escalated to
the organisational
risk register. The Trust
uses DatixWeb, a risk
management database
tool incorporating the
use of dashboards for
real-time reporting and
escalation of identified
risks.
The Trust is required to
be registered with either
or both the CQC and
Ofsted for delivery of
our services. The Trust
achieved registration
for all of our services
with the CQC from 1
April 2010, and Ofsted
from 1 August 2013,
without any conditions
of registration. Both
statutory bodies have
undertaken inspections
in the organisation
in 2015/16. The CQC
has not taken any
enforcement actions
against the Trust during
2015/16, nor has the
organisation been
required to participate
in any special reviews
or investigation by
the CQC during the
year. Under its routine
inspection programme,
the CQC inspected
the Trust in February
2015 and published
its resultant report in
August 2015. While
the outcome of this
inspection was that the
organisation ‘requires
improvement’, the Trust
was rated as ‘good’
overall in the ‘caring’
category and received
‘outstanding’ and ‘good’
ratings for many of its
services. In response

to the CQC inspection,
the Trust developed a
comprehensive action
plan and positive
progress has been
made with regard to
implementation. The
Trust is fully compliant
with the registration
requirements of both
the Care Quality
Commission (CQC)
and Ofsted. The
organisation has robust
quality governance
arrangements in place
and is underpinned
by the Trust’s quality
strategy.
The Trust has a
compliance-monitoring
process for all services.
Each service undertakes
a quarterly selfassessment, which

is used to provide
assurance that they
are assessed against
regulatory standards.
In addition, this
information is reviewed
and used to underpin
internal reviews of
compliance and peerreview visits.
Patients, service users,
carers and visitors are
encouraged to report
any issue of concern,
or suggest areas for
improvement using
iWantGreatCare,
leaflets, comment cards
positioned in patient
areas, and through
discharge patient
surveys. Involvement
includes gathering
feedback from external
stakeholders as well
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as using patients’ and
carers’ views. This
involvement enables
these groups to feed
back and scrutinise the
Trust’s activity relating
to patient and carer
involvement. The
organisation also has
a patient experience
group, where patients
are members, which
oversees and monitors
involvement and patient
experience activity in the
Trust.
Our patient advice
and liaison service
(PALS) provides central
reporting of low level
concerns and issues
raised by patients,
General Practitioners
(GPs) and the public. It
is also fully integrated
with the complaints
management process.
These and other
patient experience
issues are considered
at the pathway patient
experience groups,
which report to the
steering patient
experience group and
then ultimately into the
quality and governance
committee.
This, along with other
quality data, is reported
in a quality dashboard
that was introduced in
the organisation during
2013/14. The Trust has
also actively taken
part in the national
Friends and Family Test
model. However, this
has now been replaced
by the iWantGreatCare
initiative, an
implementation that
has successfully seen

unprecedented levels
of feedback from our
service users, carers and
relatives.
Our council of governors
has been in place from
1 May 2009, which
has strengthened
arrangements for
the involvement and
accountability of
patients, carers, staff,
partners and the public.
The council of governors
also has a sub-group
structure in place,
whose remits include
finance, planning and
performance, patient
safety and experience,
staff and resources,
and membership and
governance. These subgroups help support
the Trust’s scrutiny and
assurance processes. The
council of governors’
corporate assessment
group reviews papers
discussed at Trust board
of directors’ meetings
held in public, as well
as the agenda and
minutes of the board
of directors’ meetings
held in private session.
Governor links with
the quality agenda
have continued to
strengthen over the
year. The council of
governors in 2015/16
received presentations,
and had the opportunity
to comment on the
Trust’s iWantGreatCare
and Care Certificate
initiatives.
The council of governors
is an important
piece of the overall
governance jigsaw of
the Trust. In 2015/16 the
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council of governors
conducted an externally
facilitated review
of its effectiveness,
the result of which
provided good assurance
both in absolute and
comparative terms.
Information governance
During the period 1
April 2015 to 31 March
2016 the Trust has
undertaken a range
of actions to improve
the manner in which it
manages and controls
information governance
risks by reviewing and
monitoring information
assets, information
flows and information
governance incidents
via our information
governance team and
information governance
group. This activity
supports the application
and monitoring of
compliance against the
requirements of the
information governance
(IG) toolkit. Achievement
against this is monitored
through the Information
Management and
Technology (IM&T)
Programme Board.
As a result of the
positive approach
undertaken by the
Trust over the last
four years, this year’s
IG toolkit submission
will not be externally
audited. The Health and
Social Care Information
Centre (HSCIC) and NHS
England have confirmed
this is not a mandatory
requirement. The
Trust has exceeded the
minimum standard for
submission.

The Trust has established
a framework to oversee
information governance
compliance within the
organisation. The IM&T
Programme Board
receives monthly reports
on all key information
governance issues.
The information
governance team
received 296 incidents
between 1 April 2015
and 31 March 2016.
This figure includes any
medical records incidents
as well as the reported
loss of smartcards. This
figure also includes 27
incidents that relate to
other organisations that
have been logged by
Trust staff on the Trust
reporting system.
There have been no
incidents classified
as Level 2 in the
information governance
incident reporting tool.
Control measures are
in place to ensure that
we comply with all
our obligations under
equality, diversity and
human rights legislation.
Compliance is reported
on an annual basis in
the published Equality
Information Report, and
in progress reports to
the board of directors
and quality and
governance committee.
The equality and
inclusion process is
assured via the equality
and inclusion assurance
board, chaired by the
director of nursing, AHPs
and quality. It includes
non-executive director
and service user and

carer representation. Its
line of accountability
feeds into the quality and
governance committee
agenda.
The Trust completes
equality analysis to
consider the effects of
our policies, functions
and actions in relation
to groups protected
under the Equality Act
2010. In addition, the
same process is applied
to organisational
change, service redesign
and cost improvement
programmes.
The organisation is using
the NHS Equality Delivery
System (EDS2) and the
Equality Information
Report to prioritise
equality objectives
(cited within a local
plan) and actions and to
influence service reviews,
redesigns, and business
planning. The Trust is
currently planning the
implementation of the
EDS2 for 2016/17.
As an employer,
with staff entitled to
membership of the
NHS pension scheme,
control measures are
in place to ensure all
employer obligations
contained within the
scheme regulations are
complied with. This
includes ensuring that
deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions
and payments into the
scheme are in accordance
with the scheme rules,
and that member
pension scheme records
are accurately updated
in accordance with the
timescales detailed in

the regulations. Similar
controls are also in
place for employees
entitled to membership
of the local government
pension scheme (LGPS),
or individuals who
contribute to the
National Employment
Savings Trust (NEST)
pension scheme.
The Trust has
undertaken risk
assessments, and carbon
reduction delivery
plans are in place
in accordance with
emergency preparedness
and civil contingency
requirements, as based
on UKCIP 2009 weather
projects. This ensures
that the organisation’s
obligations under the
Climate Change Act
2008 and the adaptation
reporting requirements
are complied with.
Review of economy,
efficiency and
effectiveness of the use
of resources
The Trust reviews
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness through
the review of finance
and performance at
budget manager, service
director and overall
Trust level. In addition
to a system of devolved
budget management,
the Trust operates a
service review process
where achievement of
performance, quality
standards and financial
targets is considered.
There is also a system
of reporting finance
and performance to
the board of directors,
supported by detailed
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performance and
financial reporting
to the Performance
Committee.
For an indication
of economy and
efficiency in the
organisation, the Trust
used benchmarking
information from
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2016.
Information from
the 2014/15 national
reference costing
exercise is being
used to identify
services where our
reference costs are
significantly higher
than the national
average. Further
detailed work is being
undertaken as part of
the cost improvement
planning process
for 2016/17 and
in support of
ongoing efficiency
improvement. This
work will enable the
Trust to understand
why costs of individual
services appear to be
high and to identify
opportunities to
improve economy and
effectiveness through
our productivity and/
or cost improvement
programmes.
The Trust is a member
of NHS Benchmarking
and has participated
in benchmarking
exercises in mental
health inpatient
and mental health
community services,
learning disability
services and
community services
in 2015/16. The

Trust is also a member
of the Healthcare
Financial Management
Association Mental
Health (HFMAM) Cluster
Benchmarking Club,
which will support more
detailed benchmarking
of mental health cluster
costs in future years.
The Trust has
implemented informal
Service Line Reporting
(SLR) since March 2015
and is moving to formal
reporting in early
2016/2017. In addition
to showing profitability
and contribution
by service lines the
system also currently
provides reference
cost comparison with
our service line unit
costs and comparison
by service line with
reference costs of
our statistical nearest
neighbours, enabling
internal benchmarking
between wards
and teams. This is
underpinned by a high
level patient level
costing that also enables
comparison between
patients and between
clinicians.
Annual Quality Report
The directors are
required under the
Health Act 2009 and the
NHS (Quality Accounts)
Regulations 2010 (as
amended) to prepare
Quality Accounts for
each financial year.
Monitor has issued
guidance to NHS
Foundation Trust boards
on the form and content
of annual Quality
Reports that incorporate

the above legal
requirements in the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual
Reporting Manual.
Under the Health Act
2009 and the National
Health Service (Quality
Accounts) Regulations
2010 (as amended), the
directors are required
to prepare Quality
Accounts for each
financial year. Monitor
has issued guidance to
NHS Foundation Trust
boards on the form
and content of annual
quality reports that
incorporate the above
legal requirements in
the NHS Foundation
Trust annual reporting
manual.
The organisation has
clear governance
and leadership
arrangements to ensure
the development and
achievement of quality
improvements across the
organisation. Executive
responsibility for quality
rests jointly with the
director of nursing, AHPs
and quality and the
medical director.
The quality team
works with operational
managers and deputy
directors to monitor
progress in delivering
our core quality
initiatives inclusive
of Commissioning for
Quality and Innovation
(CQUIN), the quality
schedule and the quality
account.
Quality initiatives within
the Trust continue to
be underpinned by our
quality strategy, which
is continually being

reviewed and updated.
The organisation
has established
arrangements for
the regular review of
service performance,
monthly monitoring of
a range of quality and
effectiveness indicators
and supporting
innovation, including
quality improvements
in efficiency and cost
effectiveness. The key
document for quality
measurement and
reporting is the quality
account, of which
a bi-annual update
is delivered to the
quality and governance
committee. In addition,
we have introduced a
monthly dashboard,
subject to continuous
development, which
allows pathways
to receive detailed
information relating
to their services in
line with all aspects of
quality and safety. Data
from the dashboard is
reviewed and submitted
in report format
to the quality and
governance committee.
This document will
give an indication of
any issues relating to
quality. These concerns
need to be highlighted
so that actions can be
developed to ensure the
Trust maintains its vision
to deliver high quality
care for all.
Statutory reporting on
elective wait times is
required for only two
Trust services, with
wait lists and access
times fully monitored
for all. Data quality
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is assured through a
combination of timely
patient level reporting
for each service and
the reporting of both
access times for patients
seen and wait times for
patients still waiting
to be seen, through
the organisation’s
established
performance
framework meetings.
Internally, performance
in this area is measured
against a 13-week
expectation (as
opposed to the national
18-week expectation)
with action planning
required as standard
for areas of underattainment. Risks
to data quality in
this area can occur
where significant
system change is
required such as the
migration of mental
health and learning
disability services
to another patient
administration system
in 2015/2016. These
risks are managed in
conjunction with the
new system providers
to ensure minimum
negative impact. The
Trust also commissioned
its internal auditors
during 2015/16 to
undertake an electronic
patient record
programme review.
The internal audit
programme also entails
an audit of quality
account indicators,
of which data quality
is a key component.
Furthermore, the Well-
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led Governance Review’s
remit also focussed
on board assurance
of the robustness of
information.

quality, including:

We are addressing risks
attached to specific
data reporting that
our auditors have
highlighted. The Trust
had identified the
risks attached to its
decision to transfer
data from the ePEX
system to SystmOne. We
transferred our data to
the new system because
it enabled a positive
impact on patients’
clinical care.

3. Serious incidents, GP
concerns and complaints

At each of its meetings,
the quality and
governance committee,
on behalf of the
board of directors,
receives reports on
patient safety, patient
experience, clinical
effectiveness, statutory
registration assurance
and assurances on
learning from national
inquiries. In addition to
this, thematic reviews
of service areas or
indicators of concern
are commissioned by
and shared with the
quality and governance
committee as they arise.
Through these thematic
reviews and regular
reporting, we have a
clear understanding
on where we need
to focus to improve
clinical practice and
effectiveness and reduce
the incidents of harm.
In addition to this, the
Trust’s board of directors
receives reports on
issues impacting on

1. Progress on key
strategic objectives
2. Patient stories

4. Safer staffing
5. Service developments
6. Achievement of
national indicators
7. Equality and inclusion
8. Infection prevention
and control
9. Safeguarding
10. Agency usage
11. Organisational risk
register
All policies continue to
be reviewed and are
implemented across
the increased range of
physical and mental
health services. The
Trust policy board meets
regularly to review
and ratify Trust-wide
policies. A Trust-wide
clinical audit programme
is in place to ensure
prioritised audits are
undertaken across
services in response
to local, regional and
national drivers. These
audits are supported
and coordinated
through the quality
assurance and support
team and are reported
on formally through
the clinical audit and
effectiveness committee,
chaired by the medical
director, and into the
quality and governance
committee. The audit
committee also meet
on an annual basis with
the medical director and

director of nursing, AHPs
and quality in order that
they can share issues
or raise any concerns in
respect of clinical risk
and patient safety.
Clinical quality issues,
particularly relating
to best practice and
national guidance, are
scrutinised and discussed
at the quality forum.
Representatives from
all relevant profession
groups attend this
forum to ensure clinical
quality is reviewed.
The forum also reviews
impact assessments
on the quality of
care when there are
changes in services,
either as a result of
the cost improvement
programme or because
of service redesign.
Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer,
I have responsibility
for reviewing the
effectiveness of the
system of internal
control. My review of
the effectiveness of
the system of internal
control is informed by
the work of the internal
auditors, clinical audit
and the executive
managers and clinical
leads within the Trust,
who have responsibility
for the development
and maintenance of
the internal control
framework. I have
drawn on the content
of the quality report
included in this
annual report and
other performance
information available
to me. My review is also

informed by comments
made by the external
auditors in their reports.
The board of directors,
the audit committee, the
performance committee
and the quality and
governance committee
have advised me on
the implications of the
result of my review of
the effectiveness of
the system of internal
control. A plan to
address weaknesses
and ensure continuous
improvement of the
system is in place.
The organisational risk
register provides me
with evidence that the
effectiveness of controls
that manage the risks
to the organisation
achieving its principal
objectives have been
reviewed. My review is
also informed by:
12. Routine reporting on
incidents to the board of
directors
13. PALS, GP concerns
and complaints reports
14. Delivering and
monitoring safe staffing
reports to the board of
directors
15. The Trust’s
assurance structure and
reporting for statutory
body registration
requirements
16. Internal audit
assessment of the
Trust’s risk management
structure processes
17. Patient-led
assessment of the
care environment
(PLACE) scores (which
have replaced PEAT
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inspections)
18. External Well Led
Governance Review
19. Board development
days
20. The work of the
audit committee, the
quality and governance
committee, the
performance committee,
the SI review committee
and complaints review
committee
21. Internal and external
audit reports
22. The work of the local
counter-fraud specialist
23. Operational service
directorates presenting
at the Trust board’s
performance committee
and quality and
governance committee
24. Trust responses to
external inquiries and
reports
25. Directorate and
service performance
reviews
The review and
maintenance of the
effectiveness of the
system of internal
control is undertaken as
follows:
26. The Trust board
receives reports from the
quality and governance
committee, the
performance committee
and the audit committee
in public session. These
reports highlight
issues of assurance and
concern for the board
of directors. In addition,
minutes from these
meetings are received
in private session by
the board of directors.

The audit committee has
oversight of corporate
governance arrangements
and receives appropriate
external assurance.
27. The audit committee
ensures the establishment
and maintenance of
an effective system of
internal control and risk
management.

CONCLUSION

30. The internal auditors
verify that a suitable
and effective system of
risk management and
internal control is in place
on an annual basis. They
have direct access to the
chairman of the audit
committee to raise any
issues of concern.

My review confirms that the
Trust has a generally sound
system of internal controls that
supports the achievement of
our policies, aims and objectives
and that any control issues
have been addressed. No
significant control issues have
been identified. The Trust is
committed to the continuous
improvement of processes of
internal control and assurance
and as such may introduce
additional controls within the
forthcoming financial year
(2016/17), as the Trust board of
directors deems necessary.

31. The clinical audit
programme is developed
with input from internal
audit and joint working is
undertaken to minimise
duplication and maximise
effectiveness of audit
activity.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

28. All managers have
the responsibility
for developing and
implementing the risk
management strategy and
policy through the line
management of individual
directorates.
29. The performance
committee assures
effective control on
financial and performance
matters.
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CONCLUSION
My review confirms that Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has a
generally sound system of internal controls
that supports the achievement of our
policies, aims and objectives and that
any control issues have been addressed.
No significant control issues have been
identified.
The Trust is committed to the continuous
improvement of processes of internal
control and assurance and as such may
introduce additional controls within the
forthcoming financial year (2016/17),
as the Trust board of directors deems
necessary.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016
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INTRODUCTION
As a leading provider of health and
wellbeing services, quality is at the
heart of everything we do.
This quality report explains our approach to our services
and care, how we measure our performance and use our
analysis of these measures to progress and continuously
improve.
This year, our priorities built on our learnings and
successes from last year – and we used these and the
feedback we received from patients, service users,
families and carers to set our future priorities for the
coming year.
With five objectives aligned to the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) regulatory framework, our quality
strategy continues to reflect our commitment to uphold
a clear and unwavering definition of quality care.
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OUR QUALITY STRATEGY
Our quality strategy is described in the diagram below. For each priority, we have described the
objective to support it, and have detailed how the objectives will be met.

QUALITY AT

THE HEART OF

EVERYTHING
SAFE
To protect people from abuse and
avoidable harm
• Patient safety dashboard for ‘harm-free care’
• Evidence-based safe staffing
• Workforce and talent management
• Incidents and complaints learning cycles
• Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults

CARING
Staff to involve and treat people with
compassion, kindness, dignity and respect

CONTINUALLY IMPROVING
BASED ON FEEDBACK FROM
ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS

EFFECTIVE

To achieve good outcomes and quality of life
for people by offering care, treatment and
support based on the best available evidence
• Quality forum as the centre of best practice
• Patient reported outcome measures and

•
•
•

iWantGreatCare as a vehicle to drive
improvements
Patient and carer improvement partnership
Research, innovation and evidence-based care
Clinical competencies, knowledge and skills
National and local audit or benchmarking

• Six C pledges and care makers

•

• Patient feedback mechanisms – Patient Led

WELL-LED

Assessment of the Care Environment (PLACE)
• Cascade of objectives on compassionate care
• Equality and inclusion at the heart
• Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults

RESPONSIVE
To organise services so that they meet
people’s needs
• Access targets (for example referral to

treatment time)
• Flexible approaches – personalised care planning
• Integrated Care Closer to Home (ICCtH) programme

To deliver quality person-centred care,
support learning and innovation and promote
an open and fair culture through leadership,
management and governance of the
organisation
• Effective governance structure
• Leadership development for a highly

capable trust
• Empowered staff acting in the interest

of patients
• Clinical supervision – policy and practice
• Staff wellbeing programme
• Staff engagement surveys and feedback process
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WHAT QUALITY MEANS TO US
STATEMENT OF QUALITY
From chief executive, Angela Hillery
I am really pleased
to share our quality
report, which provides
information on our
quality achievements for
2015/16 and our quality
priorities for 2016/17.
In this year’s report,
we share insight into
our achievements, the
findings of the CQC’s
reviews of our services,
as well as how we are
making changes as a
result. We will continue
working hard to find
ways to involve our
patients, service users,
carers and their families
and to build an open
and transparent learning
organisation.
Last year, feedback from
patients, service users
and carers taking part in
iWantGreatCare (iWGC)
was encouraging. This
trend has continued
during 2015/16, and
iWGC is still a priority
for 2016/17. We plan
on building on the

insight we gain from this
valuable feedback by
identifying themes and
giving this information
directly to the people
providing the care. This
is a great tool to help
us develop and grow
as an organisation.
We will also continue
to prioritise training
and education for our
non-registered staff
groups, so that we
nurture a workforce that
meets the needs of our
patients, service users
and carers.
I mentioned last year
that our quality priorities
set high expectations of
all our staff members
who provide care, and
this year it is truer than
ever. We know every
individual makes the
difference, so we insist
that everyone keeps high
quality, personalised
care at the heart of
everything they do.

Thank you for taking the time
to learn more about our quality
priorities. To the best of my
knowledge and belief, this quality
account is true and accurate.
I welcome your feedback at the
contact details below.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
St Mary’s Hospital
London Road, Kettering NN15 7PW
Email: chief.executive@nhft.nhs.uk
Phone: 01536 452045
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STATEMENT FROM OUR DIRECTOR OF NURSING, ALLIED HEALTHCARE
PROFESSIONALS AND QUALITY
As we continue
to strive for
excellence
in care for
our patients,
service users,
carers, friends
and family,
we have used
the findings
and learnings
from the CQC
organisational
inspection in
February 2015
to build on the
quality of our
services.
From these reviews of
our service delivery,
we understand we
must focus more
on embedding the
management of patient
risk, clinical supervision
and safer staffing. To
continue delivering
services that are safe,
caring and effective,
we are focusing more
on our responsiveness,
leadership and
monitoring. Like last
year, lessons learnt
continued to be a
priority this year.
We are focused on

actively communicating
these lessons to those
who need to know
about them, and we
support change and
improvement wherever
they are necessary.
With these priorities
in mind, we invested
in activities that raised
awareness and reignited our staff’s
passion for personalised,
compassionate care. Our
second Safeguarding
is Everybody’s Business
event helped raise
the importance of
safeguarding children
and vulnerable adults
with our staff and
the general public.
In addition, our Child
Exploitation nurse works
as an integral part the
multi-agency Children’s
Exploitation Team
(Reducing Incidents of
Sexual Exploitation –
RISE). This team is led by
the Northamptonshire
Police.
As our Chief Executive
Angela highlighted,
iWGC has also helped
us get timely personal
feedback from service
users and, crucially,
to act promptly with
improvements to patient
care. In our quality
account, we share
more about this, and
about the growth and
evolution of patient
involvement across

the Trust. You will
read about its impact,
and about how our
community and inpatient
mental health teams
have been working
with service users to
develop care plans. True
partnerships of this sort
help connect and unify
us with our community,
and enable our service
users to directly affect
the recruitment of staff
for the services they use.
Our Sign up to Safety
programme was
also established this
year, following the
introduction of the new
national campaign.
In line with national
objectives, we are using
this programme to build
and strengthen our
patient safety. Our aim
is to belong to an NHS
system that becomes the
safest globally.

involvement continues,
we are looking
forward to creating
more innovative,
quality improvements
and to better serving
the community we
are passionate about
caring for.

JULIE SHEPHERD
Director of Nursing,
AHPs and Quality
26 May 2016

Lastly, we have increased
our focus on making
sure black and minority
ethnic (BME) service
users, carers and their
families have improved
access to our services,
and have a better
experience of them. The
fact that our chair of the
BME staff development
network, Judith Glashen,
was awarded NHS
Leader of Inclusivity of
the Year is testament to
our commitment in this
area. As our journey to
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QUALITY REPORT
PART TWO
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QUALITY AIMS, PRIORITIES
AND RESULTS
INTRODUCTION
We are passionate about
embedding the principles of
safety, experience and clinical
effectiveness into our organisation.
We have been working in partnership with our
stakeholders to achieve this goal. Our commitment to
these principles means that this year’s priorities will
help shape the future care we provide and support the
organisation as we continue to make sure that quality is
at the heart of all we do.
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OUR QUALITY PRIORITIES FOR 2016/17
Patient safety

1
2

3

To reduce the levels of
harm associated with
medication incidents.
To increase the levels
of reporting associated
with National Early
Warning Score (NEWS)
by ensuring that all
patients have NEWS
undertaken at relevant
points during their
inpatient admission.
To increase the levels
of reporting associated
with the venous
thromboembolism (VTE)
assessment by ensuring
that all patients have
this review undertaken
at relevant points
during their inpatient
admission.

How we decided on our
priorities
Our priorities for the
coming year were set
after consultation with
our board of directors,
governors, quality forum
members, the nursing
advisory committee and
our patient experience
group (which includes
representation from
Healthwatch, patients
and carers). We also
formally linked the
quality priorities with
our Sign up to Safety
pledge and our quality
strategy.

Clinical effectiveness

1

2

3

To work collaboratively
internally to share
our patient safety
experiences and
outcomes in order to
improve learning from
incidents, complaints
and compliments, and
reduce harm.
Develop the skills
and competence of
appropriate band 1-4
clinical facing staff in the
organisation.
The Trust will use iWGC,
and other sources of
feedback to learn from.
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OUR PRIORITIES FOR 2016/17
PATIENT SAFETY
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

Safe

To reduce
the levels
of harm
associated
with
medication
incidents.

• This

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

is a
• Medication
continuing
management
priority for
training and
the Trust
competencies are
because we
available to all
understand
relevant qualified
it is critical
clinical staff. As
to the
part of this, we
safety and
will continue
wellbeing
to ensure our
of our
bank colleagues
service users have access and
and carers.
are assessed
accordingly.
• Last year
the Trust
• All medication
made
incidents will be
positive
scrutinised within
progress
the Medicine
with this
Safety Group,
priority,
with lessons
but we are
learnt circulated
focused on
across the
driving this
organisation.
forward
• Medication
with our
concerns that
Sign up
meet the criteria
to Safety
for a serious
pledge.
incident are
investigated and
outcomes are
included in safety
planning.
• Audits

and
thematic reviews
of medication
incidents will
be conducted as
appropriate.

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

• The

numbers of
• Improvements in
staff undertaking the level of harm
the training
associated with
and their
medication incidents
competency will
will be measured via
be monitored,
Datix reporting. This
and compliance
will identify the type
figures will be
of incident, the level
fed back to
of harm associated
service leads to
with it, the service
manage.
it relates to and any
outcomes.
• The Medicine
• This data will be
Safety Group
compared with
outcomes will be
the previous year’s
circulated via the
outputs.
Trust’s internal
• Improvement will
communication
also be noted via
systems.
the numbers of
• Serious incident
medication related
investigations
investigations
relating to
undertaken in 2016/17
medicinein comparison with
related harm
2015/16, when the
will be identified
Trust undertook eight
and reviewed
local clinical reviews.
collectively
• Identification of staff,
to identify
service user and carer
any trends or
concerns regarding
commonality.
medication issues
• Medication
will be monitored
incidents will
from investigation
continue to be
interviews, discussions
recorded on
with patient advice
the Trust’s Datix
and liaison service
system and will
(PALS) and from staff
be reviewed in
survey reporting.
line with our
• Themes and trends
policy.
will be identified
and compared with
the previous year’s
outcomes.

120

PATIENT SAFETY
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

Safe
Effective

To increase
• The
• NEWS training
• NEWS
• Increased NEWS
the levels of
undertaking
will continue to
compliance will
reporting will be
reporting
of safe,
be part of the
be monitored
measured via the
associated
effective,
clinical education
via internal
internal Trust audits
with
patient care
package offered
audit, and the
and compared with
National
is a priority
via various
outcomes will
previous results.
Early
for the Trust.
courses within
be circulated to
Where issues have
Warning
The NEWS
the Trust.
team leaders
occurred, NEWS
Score (NEWS) assessment is
and the deputy
incidents will be
• The resuscitation
by ensuring
central to this,
directors of
identified via Datix
officer will
that all
both in terms
operations.
reporting. This will
continue to
patients
of maintaining
identify the type of
source best
• Incidents
have NEWS
the wellbeing
incident, the level of
practice for NEWS pertaining to
undertaken
of our patients
harm associated with
and will lead
NEWS will be
at relevant
and service
it, the service it relates
any review of
monitored via
points
users and in
to and any outcomes.
models across the
Datix reporting
during their
recognising
• A baseline of data
organisation.
and/or serious
inpatient
deterioration
will be established, so
incident
• Issues related to
admission.
and
that we can compare
outcomes.
NEWS incidents
appropriate
NEWS information
Overall
will be monitored
intervention.
with the previous
compliance will
via Datix and
year.
be monitored via
serious incident
the Trust’s quality • Improvement will
investigations will
forum.
be noted via the
be undertaken as
numbers of NEWSappropriate.
• NEWS training
related investigations
figures will be
undertaken in 2016/17
collected and
in comparison with
fed back to team
2015/16.
leads for action.
• Identification of
staff, service user
and carer concerns
regarding NEWS
will be monitored
from investigation
interviews, discussions
with PALS and
from staff survey
comments. Themes
and trends will
be identified and
compared with
the previous year’s
outcomes.
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PATIENT SAFETY
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Safe
Effective

REASON

To increase
• The
the levels of
undertaking
reporting
of safe,
associateffective,
ed with
patient care
the venous
is a priority
thromboemfor the Trust.
bolism (VTE)
The VTE
assessment by
assessment
ensuring that
is central to
all
this.
patients have
this review
undertaken
at relevant
points during
their inpatient
admission.

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

• VTE

• VTE

training
will continue
to be part of
the clinical
education
package offered
via various
courses within
the Trust.
Areas of noncompliance
that become
apparent from
this assessment
tool will be
escalated to the
deputy medical
directors for
action.

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

compliance
• Increased VTE
reporting will be
will be
measured via the
monitored via
internal Trust audits
internal audit, in
addition to safety and the safety
thermometer. These
thermometer
will be compared with
reporting.
previous results.
Outcomes will
• Where issues have
be circulated to
occurred, VTE
team leaders
incidents will be
and the deputy
identified via Datix
directors of
reporting. This will
operations.
identify the type of
• Overall
incident, the level of
compliance will
harm associated with
be monitored via
it, the service it relates
the Trust’s quality
to and any outcomes.
forum.
• A baseline of data will
• VTE training
be established, so that
figures will be
we can compare VTE
collected and
information with the
communicated to previous year.
team leads and
• This data will be
service lines for
compared with
action.
the previous year’s
outputs. Improvement
will also be noted via
the number of VTErelated investigations
that take place in
2016/17 in comparison
with 2015/16.
• Identification

of staff,
service user and carer
concerns regarding
VTE will be monitored
from investigation
interviews, discussions
with PALs and from
staff survey comments.
Themes and trends
will be identified
and compared with
the previous year’s
outcomes.
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

Well led

To develop
• The
• At the point of
• The patient
a culture in
organisation
advertisement,
involvement
which service
recognises
service users
team will
users and
that service
and carers
monitor how
carers are
users and
will send
many service
actively
carers should information to
users and carers
involved in the
play a key
service leads
are requested
recruitment of
role in the
for use in the
to support
clinical staff.
recruitment
interview
with interview
of clinical
process.
activity.
staff. It is
• Service user
paramount
and carer
that staff are
information will
appointed
be maintained
who have
centrally so
values and
that managers
beliefs
can request
aligned with
involvement
the needs of
in recruitment
our service
activity.
users and
• Skills and
carers.
preferences as
indicated by
service users
and carers will
be identified so
that the most
appropriate
service user and
carer can be
approached to
provide support
for the activity.

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT
• We

will undertake
an evaluation with
relevant service users
and carers postinterview. The feedback
will be used to tailor
our process to meet
the needs of the
service user, carer and
interviewee.

• At

the end of 2015/16
the patient involvement
team instigated a
process to identify the
number of requests
for service user and
carer involvement in
recruitment against
the number of posts
advertised in 2016/17.

• In

2015/16 74
recruitment panels had
a service user/carer as
a panel member. The
Trust’s aim is to increase
this by 15%.

• Once

finalised, the
information captured
onto the involvement
database will be used
as a benchmark in
2016/17 so that, we can
review performance,
and further develop our
service offering.
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

Well led

To develop
a culture
in which
service users
and carers
are actively
involved in
the training of
clinical staff.

• The

CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

Effective
Safe

To ensure

• The

• Duty

• The

• The

Duty of
Candour is
embedded
into our
clinical
practices and
incident
processes.

HOW WE WILL ACHIEVE HOW WE WILL
IT
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

organisation • At the point of
• The patient
• We will undertake
recognises that
development, service involvement
an evaluation
service users and users and carers will
team will
with all relevant
carers should
be sent information
monitor how service users and
play a key role
related to the
many service
carers involved
in the training
course content
users and
in training. The
of clinical staff.
and requirements.
carers are
feedback will be
It is paramount
Service user and
requested to
used to tailor the
that service
carer information
support with
training to meet
user experience
will be maintained
education
the needs of the
and knowledge
centrally so that
activity.
service user, carer,
forms part
managers can
participants and
of the Trust’s
request involvement
facilitator.
educational
in education activity.
• This is a new
provision, so
indicator for
• Service user and
that we increase
the Patient
carer nominated
staff awareness
Involvement
skills and choices
of involvement
Team – therefore
will be identified
and the ‘patient
a benchmark
so that the most
experience’.
will need to be
appropriate service
developed as part
user and carer can
of the 2016/17
be approached to
action plan
provide support to
process.
the activity.

organisation
recognises
that it
should
support and
develop
an open
and honest
culture
across its
services.

of Candour
will be embedded
into our training
process. In
addition, a list of
Duty of Candour
requirements will
be available in a
document for all
staff who complete
investigations.

• In

the new team
meeting format,
our investigation
process and
outcomes will be
part of the new
core agenda. This
will include Duty of
Candour.

patient
safety team
will monitor
the Duty
of Candour
process
related to
Trust-based
reportable
incidents.

patient safety team
will monitor Duty of
Candours. This will be
reviewed based on the
number of processes
undertaken and the
number of Duty of
Candours that could
not be completed, with
reasons why. This will be
compared with 2015/16
benchmark data.

• Feedback

on Duty of
Candour processes will
be sourced from the
complaints feedback
form, iWGC and PALS
concerns. This qualitative
data will be compared
with 2015/16 outputs.
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INVOLVEMENT - A CASE STUDY
Approximately 18 months ago I began to believe that my life wasn’t over, when I
met the involvement team led by Janice Anderson.
This followed a traumatic time in hospital when I was given a diagnosis that meant I
would be on medication for many years. As well as gaining confidence in myself and
meeting new people, I am now able to voice my opinions and experiences so that
I can facilitate change, and hopefully help the Trust deliver a better service for all
mental health service users, their carers and families.
The progression of involvement over the past year has been really exciting. For
me, I have been involved in so many projects, from devising information leaflets to
speaking out at the patient experience groups, as well as working on a new Care
Programme Approach (CPA) policy and form that will put the service users at the
very centre of their care plan of truly individualised care. And I’m part of the new
Implementing Recovery Through Organisational Change (ImROC) that aims to give
each service user hope, choice and opportunity to live the life they really want.
Throughout all of this involvement has been the drive for true co-production (service
users and carers working alongside professionals at every point).
I can honestly say that this is exactly what has been happening for me and many
others with lived experience of the mental health service.
I am actually now co-chair of the recovery community group and have delivered a
co-produced presentation on recovery, working alongside all the staff, service users
and carers involved in the group. I am also part of the inpatient recovery group
meetings.
It has been a challenging and exciting time and whilst not always easy it has given
my life purpose. I have met some great people, made new friends, and gained
skills and hope. I have been totally supported throughout my involvement and
co-production at every step and I know that all of this is making a huge positive
difference for many service users and their carers within Northamptonshire. We still
have a long way to go but we are definitely making progress.
LUKE
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

Safe

To work
• We already
• We will create
collaboratively know that we
and support
internally
are able to
opportunities to
to share our
learn lessons
share learning
patient safety
at a local level
across the
experiences
following a
organisation
and outcomes
patient safety
using any
in order to
incident. But
appropriate
improve
there is a
outcomes
learning from
national drive
to shape
incidents and
for lessons
our internal
complaints
to be shared
dissemination
and to reduce
and learnt
processes
harm.
across the
and change
organisation.
practices.
As a result,
the Trust
is focused
on working
collaboratively
with our staff
to share, learn
and circulate
lessons
and good
practices.

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

• We

• The

will be able
to monitor
our lessons
learnt activity
and platforms,
and identify
outcomes from
these that have
contributed to
our internal
safety agenda.
National and
local circulation
of risks, safety
concerns and
best practices
will continue to
be shared with
staff groups
via the Trust’s
established
communication
network.

Trust will be
able to identify how
many staff members
attend lessons learnt
events, workshops
and feedback
sessions.

• This

objective will
be measured by
judging the success
and/or impact of
any new initiative or
lesson learnt from
the lessons learnt
process.

• We

will also be
able to recognise
any lessons or
safety messages
for inclusion in our
own communication
process.

• The

number of
investigations
undertaken that
have a joint
focus will provide
evidence of the
need to share
information and
jointly plan for
patient safety across
the health system.
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

Caring
Effective

Develop the
skills and
competence
of relevant
new band 1-4
clinical facing
staff in the
organisation.

• It

CQC
DOMAINS

PRIORITY

REASON

HOW WE WILL
ACHIEVE IT

HOW WE WILL
MONITOR IT

HOW WE WILL
MEASURE IT

Effective
Responsive

The Trust will
use iWGC and
other sources
of feedback to
learn from.

• Patient,

• Patient,

• The

• The

is
• The Trust will
• The care
• The Trust will
identify how many
paramount
identify the staff certificate team
new starters have
that our
groups who will
and recruitment
undertaken the
staff have
need to undergo team will work
care certificate
the skills,
the care
together to
knowledge
certificate when
identify new staff and the number
of successful
and
commencing
who will need to
completions.
competence
employment at
undertake the
• The care certificate
to deliver
the Trust.
care certificate.
students’ feedback
quality care
• All new clinical
will be sought in
to service
staff bands 1-4
order to measure
users and
will undertake
a number of core
their carers.
care certificate
indicators. This
training
feedback will be
and will be
used to develop the
assessed against
course in line with
its clinical
national guidance.
competencies.

service user
and carer
feedback
is vital to
our drive
to listen
and use
experience
to shape
care
delivery
and service
design.

service
user and carer
feedback will
be gathered
using the Trust’s
recognised
systems.
Outcomes will
be triangulated
and services will
be required to
respond to their
feedback.

iWGC
and Patient
Experience team
will monitor
the embedded
feedback process
and any required
actions.

number of
feedback reports
received via iWGC
will be identified
and described
alongside any
triangulated data.
Comparisons will be
made with 2015/16
outcomes.

• The

number
of initiatives
undertaken
following feedback
will be captured
with any potential
benefits.
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STATEMENTS OF ASSURANCE FROM THE BOARD
Our statements of assurance contain information about the Trust
and address the requirements of the quality account regulators.
Payment by Results
Following the national decision not to proceed with Mental Health
Payment by Results (PBR), formal joint work streams with the CCG
focused on development of this PBR ceased at the start of 2015/16.
Following the Monitor consultation on mental health payment
options at the end of 2015/16, a national service development
improvement plan inclusion requirement was placed in all contracts
for the 2016/17 development of local mental health payment
options with a go-live timescale of 2017/18. The Trust will work with
the CCG and other commissioners to evaluate best options, and
PBR or equivalent requirements will subsequently be specified as
required.
Review of services
The Trust provided 158 different services in 2015/16. 48 of these
services were fully contracted service lines, six were non-recurrent
pilot service lines and 48 were sub-contracted services under service
level agreement.
We have reviewed all available data for the quality of care in each
of these relevant health services. The income from the services
reviewed in 2015/16 makes up 94.7% of the total income from all
the Trust’s various health services during that time.
There were six national clinical audits and one national confidential
enquiry that reviewed services the Trust provided in 2015/16. During
that time, whenever it was eligible, the Trust took part in 100% of
the national clinical audits and 100% of the national confidential
enquiries.
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NATIONAL CLINICAL AUDITS
This table shows the national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that the Trust was eligible
to take part in during 2015/16. The data from all the audits and enquiries was collected during the same
time period. We have detailed the number of cases we used for each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the
number of registered cases that the audit or enquiry needed.

NUMBER
REQUIRED

NUMBER
AUDITED

National Audit
of Intermediate
Care 2015

All patients
who met
the audit
criteria

All
patients
who met
the audit
criteria

Parkinson’s UK

All patients
who met
the audit
criteria

20

100% Data collection was completed. National and
regional reports were due at the end of March
2016. However, these were not available at the time
of submission of this quality account.

Sentinel Stroke
National Audit
Programme

1

1

100% This was a data capture exercise only.
Organisational audit data collection was
completed, and a report received in December 2015.
The results of this report were fed back at the
county-wide stroke meeting.

TITLE

Cardio Metabolic 100
Assessment and
Treatment for
Patients with
Psychosis (CQUIN)
Prescribing
Observatory in
Mental Health
(POMH)

100%
of
eligible
sample

A national summary report was published in
November 2015. The audit was a benchmarking
process and it has been difficult to draw
conclusions as the Trust’s Intermediate Care Team
(ICT) service does not fit into any of the given
parameters.

85

100% Data from this audit was collected in December
of 2015, and submitted online in January 2016.
eligible The report is due in April 2016.
sample

All patients
who met
the audit
criteria

All
patients
who met
the audit
criteria

100% Data from this audit was collected and submitted
of online in October 2015. The report was due in May
eligible 2016.
sample

All coroner
reported
incidents
are
reported as
part of this
enquiry

All
suicides
reported
to the
coroner

This
was a
data
capture
exercise
only

15a. Prescribing
valproate for
bipolar disorder
National
confidential
enquiry into
suicides and
homicides

% ACTIONS TAKEN TO IMPROVE QUALITY OF HEALTHCARE

The report for this enquiry was received in
December 2015. Results were fed back at the
county-wide meeting led by the head of psychology.
A number of recommendations were highlighted
including advice that good physical health care may
help reduce risk in mental health patients and that
the commissioners and providers should review
acute mental health services (in relation to bed
pressures). The Trust is currently developing a
suicide prevention strategy and will be looking to
develop new community services, which provide
increased support to service users in crisis.
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LOCAL CLINICAL AUDITS
This table shows the number of local clinical audits that we reviewed in 2015/16. The Clinical Audit and
Effectiveness Committee (CAEC) will continue paying close attention to outcomes and reports. It will also
look at re-audits and check on the effectiveness of any changes.

YEAR AUDIT COMMENCED/APPROVED

REPORTS REVIEWED BY THE CAEC IN 2015/16

2014/15

16

2015/16

28

AUDITS
REPORTED TO
THE CLINICAL
AUDIT &
EFFECTIVENESS
COMMITTEE
(CAEC) FROM
APRIL 2015
It is often not realistic for
audits to be commenced
and completed within a
financial year, so audits
can span two or more
financial years.

2. Effectiveness of the
delayed transfer of care
policy
3. Exploring CMHT staff
experience of psychology
and how they utilise
this service across
Northamptonshire
4. Discharge from a
CMHT: the service user
experience
5. Investigating service
users’ experiences of the
implementation of a
patient rated experience
measure (PREM) known
as the three helpful
experiences checklist in
Wellingborough CMHT

The audits listed
below include all those
presented to the Clinical
Audit and Effectiveness
Committee during
2015/16. They are
categorised according to
their year of approval/
commencement. In
future, we will report
audits in their financial
year, not calendar year
as previously reported.

6. British HIV Association
National Audit and
survey of management
of pregnancy in women
living with HIV

2014/15

9. Average Length
of Stay (ALOS) versus
Length of Hospital Stay
(LHS) in Berrywood
Hospital and the
Welland Centre

1. Monitoring of physical
health of inpatients
at The Sett who are
prescribed antipsychotics

7. Audit of fridge
temperature monitoring
8. Psychiatric inpatient
rehabilitation: a service
evaluation of prescribing
practice processes and
outcome related factors

10. Rectal chlamydia and
gonorrhoea in women
attending integrated
sexual health services in
Northamptonshire
11. HIV partner
notification audit
12. Audit of the quality
of hospital discharge
letters for patients
admitted to the
specialist care centres of
Northamptonshire
13. CG170 autism:
the management and
support of children and
young people on the
autism spectrum
14. CG72 Attention
deficit hyperactivity
disorder: diagnosis and
management of ADHD
in children, young
people and adults
15. Re-audit on
VTE risk assessment
and prescription of
prophylactic treatment
16. Evaluating the
impact of operational
changes in adult
community mental
health teams

2015/16

1. Audit of medicine
reconciliation record

forms on older adults’
inpatient wards at
Forest Centre, St Mary’s
Hospital
2. Audit on National
Early Warning Score
(NEWS) assessment and
patient transfer for
elevated NEWS score
in community hospital
rehabilitation wards
3. Audit of standards of
physical examination
of patients to a mental
health inpatient unit
4. To ascertain the extent
of adherence of the
Trust’s VTE prophylaxis
policy at the Forest
centre, St. Mary’s
Hospital, Kettering
5. Midwifery/health
visitor handover audit
6. Retrospective
audit of incidence
of blockage of Freka
enteral feeding tubes in
Northamptonshire
7. Dispensing within the
crisis team
8. 2015 British
Association for Sexual
Health and HIV (BASHH)
national audit on the
management of 13-15
year olds attending
sexual health services
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9. Monitoring of
clozapine patients: full
blood counts and plasma
levels
10. Monitoring of
patients for postinjection syndrome
following Olanzapine
long-acting injection
11. Contraceptive
implant audit

September 2015)
15. Use of antipsychotic
drug prescribing in
dementia care plan for
inpatients at the Forest
Centre in St. Mary’s
Hospital
16. Mental Capacity
Act (MCA) training and
knowledge audit

13. Evaluation of acute
liaison mental health
service

17. Joint visits with
health visitor and social
worker for children
under the age of two
years who are subject to
a child protection plan
(CPP)

14. Trust-wide overview
of both electronic and
paper record keeping
audits submitted to
quality support team
(Quarter 2: July–

18. Eating disorders
outpatient service in
children and adolescent
mental health services
(CAMHS), compliance
with the National

12. Evaluation of primary
care liaison workers
service

Institute for Health and
Care Excellence (NICE)
guidelines

(Quarter 3: October–
December 2015)

19. Re-audit on memory
clinic compliance
with Memory Services
National Accreditation
Programme (MSNAP)

25. Process for covert
administration of
medicines

20. Compliance with
Photo Identification
Policy – Quarter 3 report
21. National Early
Warning Scores (NEWS) –
Quarter 3 report
22. Malnutrition
Universal Screening
Tool (MUST) – Quarter 3
report
23. Trust-wide overview
of both electronic and
paper record keeping
audits submitted to
quality support team

24. Auditing the auditors

26. Re-audit of
availability of equipment
required to perform
complete physical
examination
27. Are patients having
their physical health
(bloods, ECG) assessed
within 24 hours of
admission?
28. Qualitative report
on the recording of
the voice of the child
and observations of
parenting in health
visitor patient records
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IMPROVEMENTS
IN CARE FROM
AUDITS
As a result of
our audits,
the following
improvements
in care
have been
introduced this
year.
Audit of challenging
behaviour pathway
in learning disability
service
The service has
developed a care
pathway tracker to
enable clarity around
the pathway and ease of
access to information in
patient records.
Audit of dementia
pathway in learning
disability service
A working group has
developed a checklist
that links to the
care pathway, which
includes physical health
assessment, mental
health assessment and
Dementia and Learning
Disabilities (DLD)
questionnaire.
Monitoring of blood
sugars on patients
prescribed Glucocorticoid
medications/steroids
A protocol for
monitoring of blood
sugars for palliative
care patients has been
developed and has been
implemented across both
palliative care units.

Discharge from a
Community Mental
Health Team: The service
user experience
The audit highlights
the benefits that
patients describe from
being involved in
and supported in the
discharge process at the
earliest convenience.
To audit the
effectiveness of the
Delayed Transfer of Care
Policy
The audit has led to a
change in the Delayed
Transfer of Care policy
to ensure the procedure
for identifying and
recording a delayed
discharge is clear to all
staff.
Compliance with the use
of a WHO-style checklist
for ECT
Introduction and
compliance with
completion of the World
Health Organisation
(WHO)-style checklist for
ECT as a proactive way of
reducing the possibility
of errors and of key
issues being overlooked.
The audit showed
improved compliance.
Retrospective audit of
incidence of blockage
of Freka enteral
feeding tubes in
Northamptonshire
The findings of the audit
indicate a noticeable
difference between the
use of 9 FG and 15 FG
tube sizes, with size 9
FG tubes being more
prone to blockage. As a
result, discussions with
Northampton General
Hospital and Kettering

General Hospital about
using 15 FG as a first line
tube of choice will take
place.
A.786.15 Dispensing
within the crisis team
The audit showed
protocol was not being
followed, and staff
were issuing medication
during pharmacy
opening hours. These
instances were occurring
too frequently to be
deemed exceptional
circumstances, so a
review of practice was
held. This resulted in a
decision to no longer
allow nursing staff to
dispense medication.
The team doctors
are now using more
FP10 prescriptions to
facilitate supplies and
each medic has access to
FP10 prescriptions. The
protocol still allows for
the doctors to dispense
from stock outside of
pharmacy opening hours
– only when they deem
the use of an FP10 as
inappropriate.

Qualitative report on
the recording of the
‘voice of the child’
and observations of
parenting in health
visitor patient records
Training has been
implemented in the
health visitor workforce
to address Five to thrive.
This is so that there is
a prompt to remind
practitioners to consider
the ‘voice of the child’
at every contact and
to record observations
around parenting. A
recent re-audit has
shown significant
improvement compared
to the original audit.

Piloting the joint
use of established
PROMS measure
and an innovative
PREMS measure
of the outcomes
of psychological
interventions with
N-STEP, including a
qualitative exploration
of service users’
experiences of these
measures
A three changes checklist
is now used as a measure
of outcome with all
N-STEP service users.
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RESEARCH AND
INNOVATION ADVICE
AND SUPPORT
There is evidence to suggest
that people and organisations
who are involved in research
tend to perform better.
With this in mind, we have
developed and embedded
a Research and Innovation
(R&I) strategy. The delivery of
this strategy is overseen by
the research and innovation
strategy group (R&ISG),
which is chaired by our medical
director Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr.
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OUR FIVE KEY STRATEGIC RESEARCH AND INNOVATION GOALS
1. Develop a research
culture
The R&I team run a
monthly ideas forum
where any member of
staff can submit an idea
for discussion. The forum
is made up of senior R&I
staff with lay and patient
representation. To date,
there have been 16 ideas
presented to the project
ideas group. The group is
supported with advice on
literature reviews, project
planning, evaluation,
funding sources, surveys
and more. Experienced
health researchers, Dr
Stephen Rogers and Dr
Sheila Hardy, have broadly
supported the forum.
2. Improve capability
and capacity
Dr Koranteng, a
nationally-recognised
research investigator,
is supporting clinicians
who are interested in
developing research
delivery skills on national
portfolio studies. The
R&I team offer advice
about and support
for obtaining NHS
permission, as well as the
set up and delivery of
research or innovation
within the health
economy.

3. Find out what works
The Trust is a partner of the National Institute for
Health Research (NIHR) Clinical Research Network
East Midlands, and hosts an integrated research
delivery team. By January 2016, the team had
recruited 137 patients, carers and staff to NIHR
portfolio studies from services provided by the
Trust. This figure is lower than in previous years,
which reflects both a regional and national trend in
research recruitment.
The Trust has a portfolio of approximately 20
research studies, most of which sit within specialist
areas, such as dementia and mental health. The
type of research we delivered has evolved from
simple observational research studies (60%) to
more complex interventional research trials (40%).
A full list of all NIHR clinical trials that the Trust
participates in is available on the Trust’s website.
When compared with similar trusts in the region
for commercial dementia research, the Trust
has performed well. We offer innovative new
treatments to this patient group, and the model
for commercial research delivery is in development.
This development of a clinical research facility will
support access to clinical trials for patients from
across all other Trust services.
The Trust is also a partner of the NIHR Collaboration
for Leadership in Applied Health Research and
Care (CLAHRC) East Midlands, an organisation that
bridges the second evidence gap and translates
research into practice. This year the Trust has
collaborated on the delivery of four major CLAHRC
projects.
The R&I team has supported a wide range of
own account research, innovation and evaluation
initiatives, including the evaluation of the primary
care mental health pathway, in collaboration with
partners such as Nene Clinical Commissioning Group
(Nene CCG), the Centre for Mental Health, the BME
Reverse Commissioning Project and the Evaluation
of Nurse Delivered.

4. Develop collaborative
partnerships
In addition to the
formal partnership
arrangements with the
NIHR CRN EM and NIHR
CLAHRC EM, the Trust
is actively engaged in
the Academic Health
Science Network (AHSN)
East Midlands, of which
our chief executive
Angela Hillery is a board
member.
We also partner and
collaborate with
The University of
Northampton, the
Institute of Health and
Wellbeing (of which
Dr Alex O’Neill-Kerr is
a board member), and
The Open University.
We are currently
developing partnerships
with The University
of Nottingham, the
Institute of Mental
Health, and a specific
area of development of
the Northamptonshire/
Nottingham
Neuromodulation
Network (N4), as well as
Medilink East Midlands.

5. Ensure the engagement of patients and the public
This remains a high priority for all research, innovation and evaluation. There
is lay and patient representation at the R&ISG and the ideas forum, and all
our research bids require a high level of lay and patient engagement prior to
submission. Our R&I engagement with the BME Reverse Commissioning Project
ensures that PPI engagement is representative of the community we serve.
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COMMISSIONING FOR QUALITY AND
INNOVATION INCOME
A proportion of our income in 2015/16 was conditional upon
achieving quality improvement and innovation goals. We agreed
these goals with our NHS commissioners when entering into a
contract, agreement or arrangement for the provision of relevant
health services, through the Commissioning for Quality and
Innovation (CQUIN) payment framework. We achieved 88.9%
payment for the agreed goals.
The total income in the contract for CQUIN for 2015/16 was
£3,255,645, of which £2,816,074 was from Nene and Corby CCGs. The
2015/16 CQUIN figure allocated from NHS Nene and Corby CCGs was
£2,456,074.
Within 2015/16 the organisation responded positively to both the
allocated and negotiated CQUIN schemes and worked hard to
implement new innovations and practices within the designated
clinical areas. A number of patient centred successes were noted as
part of the CQUIN evaluation process – these outcomes will have a
positive and lasting effect for the service users and their carers.
Within our forensic in-patient setting a new carer support group was
set up. Using the principles of co-production, carers were consulted
on what support and guidance they would like to receive; the first
meeting was held in March 2016. The same unit also adopted a no
smoking environment and following a period of education and
discussion with staff, service users and carers and some staff have
received extra training in smoking cessation so that service users
have access to advice and support throughout the 24-hour period.
Another of the CQUIN’s focussed on end of life care. Its aim was to
share good practice and audit new models of individualised care
planning across the local health economy. In addition training and
development opportunities were devised and rolled out to staff
working within the county.
The CQUIN’s also highlighted areas where further development
was needed.
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SERIOUS INCIDENTS
This year, there were 48 serious incidents in total, with 32 in mental health
services, 13 in adult services, and 3 in children’s and ambulatory services. The
Trust reported 0 never events in 2015/16.
NHS England produced a new Serious Incident Framework on 27 March 2015
that changed the criteria for reporting serious incidents. The framework
has allowed for the most serious, harmful and/or complex incidents to be
investigated, permitting an additional 15 working days for investigation.
As expected, there has been a decrease in the number of incidents being
investigated, however we are using other methods to review and learn
lessons from incidents that have not met the framework’s new criteria.
The Trust’s patient safety team are working collaboratively with Nene
CCG and other local patient safety leads to ensure that there is a robust
mechanism internally to review all incidents. Wherever appropriate, serious
incidents are being investigated jointly with our partner organisations. This
will provide an opportunity to develop closer working relationships and
embed learning across the wider health economy. We continue to be open
with patients and families when a serious incident has been identified and
administrative mechanisms are in place to monitor this.
As part of our investment in this area, we are part of an East Midland
initiative reviewing a new model for incident investigation based on a
Human Factors model. In addition, we continue to prioritise lessons learnt
and have developed a strategy to support this work, with communication
processes established to underpin the strategy. Lastly, our new quality
governance framework now expects clinical teams to discuss serious incident
outcome as part of their internal meeting agenda.
The Trust continues to provide training in serious incident investigation in
order to develop the staff’s skill base in this area.

LESSONS LEARNT
Since July 2015, a ‘lessons learnt bulletin’ has been distributed to all staff
on a monthly basis. It contains analysis on key areas of learning from
recent serious incidents and complaints. The bulletin was developed in
collaboration with the communications team and forms part of the ongoing
learning lessons strategy. Following informal feedback, we are trialling a
shorter format for the bulletin, which was reduced from two pages to one in
February.
Since September 2015, we have run monthly face-to-face workshops to
analyse reported incidents. They focus on embedding learning to staff.
Feedback from these sessions has been very positive. Attendees have said
that they found the workshops worthwhile and informative. They noted
that they either learnt something new or found it to be a useful refresher,
and they gained greater insight.
Moving forward, further options for ongoing learning are being considered.
It is envisaged that learning lessons webinars will be prepared during
2016/17, which will give clinicians an opportunity to learn from their peers at
a time and location that is convenient to them.
Incident reporting systems have been updated during the year, which will
help to reduce the duplication of reports. Embedding action plans centrally
will also allow all involved professionals to have immediate access to them.
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REPORTING AGAINST CORE INDICATORS
Our quality priorities for the coming year are outlined in this part of our account.
This table shows how we have performed against key quality indicators set by Monitor. The Health and
Social Care Information Centre offers data from outside the Trust for the following indicators.

Trust
score
2013/14

Trust
score
2014/15

2015/16
Year to
date

National
average
score

FT
Highest
score
2015/16

FT
Lowest
score
2015/16

Non FT
Highest
score
2015/16

Non FT
lowest
2015/16
score

13. The data made available to the National Health Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust with regard to
the percentage of patients on Care Programme Approach who were followed up within seven days after
discharge from psychiatric inpatient care during the reporting period.
Percentage of patients
on Care Programme
Approach (CPA)
followed up within
seven days of discharge
from an inpatient
facility.

96.4%

97.2%

97.0%

97.0%

99.2%

83.3%

100%

93.4%

17. The data made available to the National Health Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust with regard to
the percentage of admissions to acute wards for which the Crisis Resolution Home Treatment Team acted
as a gatekeeper during the reporting period.
Percentage of
admissions to acute
wards for which the
Crisis Resolution Home
Treatment Team acted
as a gatekeeper during
the reporting period.

97.6%

97.8%

98.9%

97.0%

100%

69.0%

100%

92.6%

19. The data made available to the National Health Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust by the Health
and Social Care Information Centre with regard to the percentage of patients aged:
(i) 0 to 15; and
(ii) 16 or over,
Readmitted to a hospital which forms part of the Trust within 28 days of being discharged from a hospital
which forms part of the Trust during the reporting period.
(i) 0 to 15 and

1.89%

2.13%

4.00%

10.00%

13.60%

0%
5.74%

14.94%

0%
3.75%

(ii) 16 or over

7.02%

7.15%

7.69%

11.45%

17.15%

0%
4.88%

17.72%

0%
3.35%

NOTE: Comparative data is published by HSIC for 2011/12 readmission. Data is due to be refreshed August
2016. Lowest score and second lowest score have been provided as lowest score for both indicators 0%.
In the published year the Trust’s performance was that 0 patients were re-admitted to hospital within 28
days of being discharged for both 0-15 and 16 or over.
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Trust
score
2013/14

Trust
score
2014/15

2015/16
Year to
date

National
average
score

FT
Highest
score
2015/16

FT
Lowest
score
2015/16

Non FT
Highest
score
2015/16

Non FT
lowest
2015/16
score

21. The data made available to the National Health Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust by the Health
and Social Care Information Centre with regard to the percentage of staff employed by, or under contract
to, the Trust during the reporting period who would recommend the Trust as a provider of care to their
family or friends.
The percentage of staff
employed by, or under
contract to, the Trust
during the reporting
period who would
recommend the Trust
as a provider of care to
their family or friends.

N/A

77%

77%

79%

100%

50%

96%

48%

22. Patient experience of community mental health services indicator score with regard to a patient’s
experience of contact with either a health or social care worker.
Patient experience of
community mental
health services indicator
score with regard to
a patient’s experience
of contact with either
a health or social care
worker.

75%

87%

84%

90%

90.9%

80.9%

91.8%

81.6%

NOTE: Data is taken from survey undertaken in 2014/15, though published in 2015/16. Questions used to
complete this indicator are questions 5, 6 and 7 of the Mental Health Survey. This was a change in 2014.
Comparative data is based on the composition of the indicator in 2013 and has not been updated since
then.
25. The data made available to the National Health Service Trust or NHS Foundation Trust by the Health
and Social Care Information Centre with regard to the number and, where available, rate of patient safety
incidents reported within the Trust during the reporting period, and the number and percentage of such
patient safety incidents that resulted in severe harm or death.
The number of patient
safety incidents reported
within the Trust during
the reporting period.

3352

3705

Where available, rate of
patient safety incidents
reported within the
Trust during the
reporting period.
Number of patient
safety incidents resulting
in severe harm or death.
% patient safety
incidents resulting in
severe harm or death.

1815

2587

6723

8

4811

840

33.16

42.00

75.08

0

80.78

30.97

5

9

4

26.5

76

0

8

11

0.15%

0.24%

0.22%

1.02%

1.10%

0.00%

0.20%

1.30%

NOTE: Trust Score 13/14 and 14/15 data shows full year effect. 2015/16 data provided is as published by NRLS April 2016
for the period 1 April 2015 to 30 September 2015. The available data set that allows benchmarking of this information
provides a rate per 1,000 bed days. As a mental health and community trust the rate will show an inflated rate, as it does
not take into consideration community contacts. This will be an issue for all mental health and community trusts.
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STATEMENTS OF ASSURANCE FOR SELECTED CORE INDICATORS
Statement 1

Statement 2

Indicator

Trust
score

The Trust considers
that this data is as
described for the
following reasons

The Trust has taken the
following actions to improve
our Trust score, and so the
quality of its services, by:

13. The percentage of patients on Care
Programme Approach (CPA) who were
followed up within seven days after
discharge from psychiatric in-patient care
during the reporting period.

97.0%

• This

• We

17. The data made available to the
National Health Service Trust or NHS
Foundation Trust with regard to the
percentage of admissions to acute wards
for which the Crisis Resolution Home
Treatment Team acted as a gatekeeper
during the reporting period.

98.9%

• This

• The

19 (i). The data made available to the
National Health Service Trust or NHS
Foundation Trust by the Health and Social
Care Information Centre with regard to
the percentage of patients aged:

4%

• This

• Continued

7.69%

• This

(i)

0 to 15

Readmitted to a hospital that forms
part of the Trust within 28 days of being
discharged from a hospital that forms part
of the Trust during the reporting period.
19 (ii). The data made available to the
National Health Service Trust or NHS
Foundation Trust by the Health and Social
Care Information Centre with regard to
the percentage of patients aged:
(ii)

16 or over,

data reflects
how the Trust
has maintained
performance above
the target for seven
day follow-ups from
hospital.

data reflects
how the Trust
has maintained
performance above
the target for the
gatekeeping of
acute mental health
admissions.
data reflects
a very low rate of
readmissions for
this cohort (two
readmissions within
28 days in 2015/16
for this age cohort).

have developed a new
alert system from ward
to community service to
ensure all patients are
prepared for discharge and
follow-up arrangements
are fully in place. The wards
are also ensuring correct
contact details for the
service user are available to
community services.
deployment and
development of the Acute
Mental Health Liaison
Service has helped ensure
further improvements for
the crisis pathway.

alignment
between community and
inpatient provision has
helped maintain strong
performance for this
indicator.

data reflects
• Continued alignment
a low rate of
between community and
readmissions for this inpatient provision has
cohort.
helped maintain strong
performance for this
indicator.

Readmitted to a hospital that forms
part of the Trust within 28 days of being
discharged from a hospital that forms part
of the Trust during the reporting period.
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Statement 1

Statement 2

Indicator

Trust
score

The Trust considers that this data
is as described for the following
reasons

The Trust has taken the following actions to
improve our Trust score, and so the quality
of its services, by:

21. The
percentage
of staff
employed
by, or under
contract to,
the Trust
during the
reporting
period
who would
recommend
the Trust as
a provider of
care to their
family or
friends.

77%*

• As

• Our

• This

• We

22. The Trust’s 84%
“patient
experience of
community
mental health
services”
indicator score
with regard
to a patient’s
experience of
contact with
a health or
social care
worker during
the reporting
period.

a Trust we have focussed
on galvanising our staff in our
mission to put the service user at
the core of all we do and also to
ensure we provide safe, quality,
compassionate care consistently.
Our continued growth in this
recommendation reflects this.

is reflected in our reports
from iWantGreatCare and service
evaluations.

strategic target is 80%. For our
national survey our results have grown
each year since 2013. In 2014 and 2015
we went a step further and shared the
results with staff as presentations and
detailed information about their local
areas. The aim was to involve our staff in
understanding our survey results, what
we are doing well and what we could do
better. This enhanced focus on our staff
feedback and collective responsibility
for addressing our areas of concern and
sharing good practice is a positive step
towards improving our Trust score in this
area.

have developed co-produced recovery
groups to review co-production of care
planning and delivery of care to ensure our
service users and carers are an integral part
of our service planning and delivery both
on an individual and strategic level.
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Statement 1

Statement 2

Indicator

Trust
score

The Trust considers that this data
is as described for the following
reasons

The Trust has taken the following actions to
improve our Trust score, and so the quality
of its services, by:

25. The
number
and, where
available,
rate of
patient safety
incidents
reported
within the
Trust during
the reporting
period,
and the
number and
percentage
of such
patient safety
incidents that
resulted in
severe harm
or death.

4

• The

• Ensuring

Trust takes its incident
reporting responsibilities
seriously. Training opportunities
are regularly available to staff
in relation to ensuring issues or
incidents are reported in the most
appropriate manner. In addition,
incident trends are analysed to
understand good practice and
where improvements can be
made.

• In

March 2016 the organisation
was ranked 56 out of 220 NHS
Trusts and Foundation Trusts for
their openness and transparency
under a new ‘Learning from
Mistakes League’ launched
by Monitor and the NHS Trust
Development Authority. The
league table was developed by
giving providers scores based on
the fairness and effectiveness of
procedures for reporting errors,
near misses and incidents, and
staff confidence and security in
reporting unsafe clinical practice
and the percentage of staff who
feel able to contribute towards
improvements at their Trust.

that the Trust has an annual
work plan for learning lessons and that
communication opportunities are sought
to disseminate key messages.

• Reviewing

and updating the serious
incident investigation training package,
so that it is in line with best practice and
ensures that emergent concepts such
as human factors models have been
incorporated.

• Set

clear objectives and priorities for
2016/17 in relation to the Sign Up to Safety
Campaign.

• Within

the Trust’s new quality and
governance framework ensure safety data
is scrutinised within the appropriate forum.

• Empowering

staff to undertake thematic
reviews where patterns are emerging, so
that systematic causes can be identified,
actioned, monitored and improvements
made.

• Revise

and publish the serious incident
policy ensuring it is contemporary.

• Identify

a triangulation process for serious
incident investigations and the mortality
and morbidity review.

• Ensure

that core training relative to patient
safety is available to all relevant staff and
that uptake is monitored and challenged.

*Quarter 2 Staff Family and Friends Test (FFT) data is provided as latest published comparative data.
Following a review undertaken by NHS England, the Lead Official for Statistics concluded that the
characteristics of the Friends and Family Test (FFT) data mean it should not be classed as Official Statistics.
All Staff FFT data can now be viewed via NHS England and not HSIC. Comparative data is published data for
quarter 2 2015/16, and quarter 4 data will be available 26 May 2016.
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HOSPITAL EPISODE STATISTICS – SECONDARY USES SERVICE AUDIT
Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (RP1) submitted records during 2015/16 to the
secondary uses service for inclusion in the hospital episode statistics, which are included in the latest
published data. The percentage of records in the published data:
The percentage of records in the published data

Admitted
patient care

Outpatient
care

Accident and
emergency care

Included patient’s valid NHS Number

98.8%

99.9%

N/A

99.6%

N/A

Included the patient's valid General Medical Practice Code 99%

*April to February 2016 data – No figures reported for A&E (as we are not Acute).

INFORMATION
GOVERNANCE
ASSESSMENT
REPORT

The NHFT Information
Governance Toolkit
completed as
satisfactory/green and at
88%.

CLINICAL
CODING

The Clinical Coding
Audit of ICD-10
clinical coding was
undertaken by a Clinical
Classifications Approved
Auditor. The accuracy
was 98% for primary
diagnoses. The sample
size for mental health
in-patient service area
audited was 50.

LOCAL
INDICATOR

The below details
the findings in
the draft report
from our auditors,
PricewaterhouseCooper
received on 13 May
2016.
Develop the skills and
competence of all new
band 1-4 clinical staff

Finding
The care certificate is a
new qualification that
is being delivered by
the Trust to its staff for
the first time during
2015/16. The population
for the indicator should
be made up of all new
band 1-4 clinical staff
(excluding agency staff)
who have completed
the certificate. During
our testing, difficulties
were encountered in
reconciling all new band
1-4 clinical staff to those
who have completed
the care certificate.
Through discussion with
the Professional Practice,
Education and Training
Team we understand
that a number of
individuals who appear
to fit this criteria, do not
actually undertake the
care certificate. These
include:
- Band 3 and 4 nurses
who are awaiting their
Pin to qualify; and
- Staff who have recently
attained a high grade
qualification prior to
commencing in the
post (although this
changed from quarter 4
onwards).

The impact of the above
exclusions is that the
basis of the indicator ‘all
new band 1-4 clinical
staff’ differs from the
narrative regarding the
indicator. Although the
Trust is right to make
these exclusions, the
Trust needs to ensure
that when this indicator
is presented, there is
clarity on the population
to ensure transparency
for the users of the
accounts.
We also performed a test
to reconcile between
the staff members who
were reported as having
completed the certificate
(and due to be included
in the indicator) and the
ESR listing. We found
two members of staff,
who did not appear on
the listing from ESR.
In discussion with the
Director of Nursing
AHPs and Quality we
understand that this
is because the listing
that was provided to
us only showed each
employee’s current
grade and not the grade
at which they joined.
The Director of Nursing
AHPs and Quality has
carried out additional

investigations regarding
the populations and
has identified further
reconciliation issued
between the ESR listing
and those who have
undertaken the care
certificate.
Implications
The population who
make up the indicator
will not be clear to users
of the accounts.
There is a risk of
inconsistent treatment
for similar staff members
either not being wholly
included or excluded
from the indicator.
Agreed action and
responsible person
The Trust will clearly
define and document
the individuals who are
required to undertake
the Care Certificate. This
will include the staff
groups who appear
as band 1-4 clinical
staff but are actually
excluded.
Responsible person:
Kate Howard, Deputy
Director of Nursing
Target date: September
2016
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PERFORMANCE AGAINST THE RELEVANT INDICATORS
AND PERFORMANCE THRESHOLDS
In 2015/16 we achieved 15 out of the 16 of our statutory targets. Our performance against target is
summarised in the table below.
Indicator
number

Section A: Scored Indicators
2015/16

2015/16
Target

2014/15
Outturn

Inmonth
Target

Q1

Q2

Q3

Q4

1

Adult CPA patients receiving
follow-up contact within seven
days of discharge

95%

97.2%

95%

97.5%

95.7%

97.7%

97.2%

2

Adult CPA patients having
formal review within 12 months

95%

95.5%

95%

95.1%

97%

95.9%

96.7%

3

Commissioning early
intervention in psychosis - new
patients taken on

84

91

7

31

52

75

102

4

Early intervention in psychosis patients seen within two weeks
of referral

50%

N/A

50%

78.3%

80%

92.3%

76.7%

5

Admissions to inpatient services
having access to crisis resolution
home treatment teams

95%

97.8%

95%

98.7%

98.3%

98.6%

97.7%

6

Delayed transfer of care - adult
mental health, older adults
mental health and learning
disability

7.5%

4.3%

7.5%

3.4%

5.7%

5.3%

5.1%

7

Access to healthcare for people
with a learning disability (selfcertification)

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

8

75%
Improving access to
psychological therapies: patients
seen within six weeks of referral

N/A

75%

70%

63.3%

71.3%

69.5%

9

Improving access to
95%
psychological therapies: patients
seen within 18 weeks of referral

N/A

95%

99%

98.7%

97.8%

99.3%

10

18 week RTT (non admitted
patients) - complete pathways

95%

100%

95%

100%

99.5%

100%

99.4%

11

18 week RTT (non admitted
patients) - incomplete pathways

92%

99.8%

92%

100%

100%

99.7%

99.8%

12

Data completeness: identifiers

97%

98%

97%

97%

97%

97.7%

98.7%

13

Data completeness: outcomes
(patients on CPA)

50%

78.6%

50%

78.7%

77.4%

93.1%

98.7%

14

Data completeness: community
services - referral information

50%

65.7%

50%

66%

66%

66.2%

66%

15

Data completeness: community
services - care contact
information

50%

99.9%

50%

99.9%

99.7%

99.8%

99.8%

16

Data completeness: community
services - referral to treatment
information

50%

100%

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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OUR ACTIONS TO
IMPROVE DATA
QUALITY
Data quality is a cornerstone
of everything we do, including
clinical, performance and
information activities. In
the last few years, we have
been fully compliant with
national data quality reporting
expectations.
The Data Quality Dashboard,
which is part of the Trust’s
main electronic reporting
system, is being revitalised
in 2016. Staff will now have
enhanced ability to check if any
important pieces of information
from the patient record are
missing or inconsistent. They
can also check on the context,
relevance and timeliness of the
information that is captured.
We will continue in our actions
to ensure this system is used
consistently across all levels of
the Trust.
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QUALITY REPORT
PART THREE
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PROGRESS AGAINST OUR 2014/15 PRIORITIES
PATIENT SAFETY
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Safe

OBJECTIVES

WHAT WE
ACHIEVED

HOW WE
HOW WE
MONITORED IT MEASURED IT

We are
• The new
• As a starting
• We have
• Medication incidents are reported
on Datix, which identifies level of
committed to pharmacy
point, over
been
harm. The Trust had no incidents
reducing the
provision
the past year
reviewing
investigated by a serious incident
level of risk
includes
we have
the learning
process, and eight medication
associated
patient
been trying
from
incidents evaluated locally via a
with
safety lead
to reduce
incidents
clinical review.
medication
(pharmacy),
the risk from
at the
• This year, we have continued to
management
which ensures
medication
medicines
deliver mandatory training sessions
incidents
that we check
incidents
safety group,
for medicines management, rapid
across the
how effective
by ensuring
which is
tranquilisation and IV study days.
organisation.
our medication learning
the driving
Additional training sessions have
management
bulletins are
force behind
been facilitated this year for the
systems are
sent out each putting
IV study day, in line with a CQUIN
and build,
month.
medication
being delivered in the community.
where
management
• We have
needed, a new
initiative into • We have delivered additional
also spent a
medicines management training
framework
practice.
lot of time
sessions including twilight sessions
for education,
reviewing
to ensure that bank staff were also
communication
and
compliant with this mandatory
and
developing
training.
competence
the
• This year we have supported the
across the
medicines
nurse preceptorship course by
workforce.
safety group
developing and delivering a new
so that it is fit
training session on the human
for purpose
factors of medicines management.
to allow
• We continue to support the junior
a forum
doctor’s induction programme by
delivering a session on medicines
for open
management.
discussion.
We have
• We have supported the Trust’s
learning lessons plan by sponsoring
also been
a learning lessons bulletin in
increasing
October 2015 on learning from
our training/
medication incidents.
workshops
• As part of the learning lessons
for staff as
plan the medicines safety officer
part of the
delivered a training workshop on
learning
learning from medication incidents.
lessons plan
This has been subsequently rolled
for the
out locally to front line staff at the
Trust and
community hospitals. This has been
delivering
successful and received positive
local training
feedback from those involved.
to the
• A lessons learnt bulletin is shared
community
following the medicine safety
hospitals.
group. This is discussed at the
quality forum.
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PATIENT SAFETY
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Safe

OBJECTIVES

Understand
• To make sure
and continue
children and
to implement
young people
the common
are safe and
assessment
supported and
framework
use the EHA
(CAF) in
framework as
non-universal
a tool when
and specialist
assessing the
services (child
child or young
and adult).
person.
We recognise
that the CAF
will shortly be
replaced with
the early help
assessment
(EHA).

WHAT WE ACHIEVED

HOW WE
HOW WE
MONITORED IT MEASURED IT

• Involvement in

• This has

complex case
discussions as part of
the multi-professional
team working
with families who
require early help
and have benefited
from guidance and
support.
• Processes and

procedures with
regards to the EHA
have moved on
significantly in the
past year, and there
is a more robust
and collaborative
approach between
non-universal and
specialist services.

been
monitored
as part of
the Trust’s
quality
schedule via
quarterly
reporting.

• The outcomes of

referrals are reviewed
and measured in
partnership with a local
multi-agency to ensure
the best outcomes for
the child.
• The Trust has
implemented new
templates on the patient
records system, which
enable us to pull data
and measure activity
around specialist
services. To date the
early intervention team
are recording between
16 and 48 clinical hours
per month, which is
being used to attend
and support the EHA
process.
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Respon- We are
sive
committed
to listening
to
feedback
from
service
users,
patients,
carers and
families
and acting
on that
feedback

CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Caring

OBJECTIVES WHAT WE
ACHIEVED

HOW WE
HOW WE
MONITORED IT MEASURED IT

• Ensure

• The iWGC

iWGC
and other
sources of
feedback
are
responded
to in a
timely
manner.

• iWGC

has been
a great
success
and we
now
know
in more
depth
what
patients
feel
about our
services.

OBJECTIVES

• The number of initiatives undertaken

following feedback has been captured
and other
and reported to the Trust’s Quality and
sources of
Governance Committee .
feedback
have been
• 99% of comments are positive and highly
praise the compassion and dedication of staff
monitored
and the quality of service received.
by the
Quality and • There are indications that the number of
concerns expressed through complaints has
Governance
decreased. This will be monitored as iWGC
Committee
becomes further embedded.
on a
• iWGC has been successfully introduced in all
monthly
care pathways, including prisons.
basis.
• Information captured through iIWGC has
been used to improve services e.g. the use
of call bells at community hospitals, change
of reception staff times at the Highfield site
and change of the consultant timetable at
Berrywood Hospital.
• The number of feedback reports via iWGC
has been monitored and described alongside
other data collected and reported to the
Quality and Governance Committee .
• We receive about 2500 reviews a month. This
number would increase significantly if every
patient was given the opportunity to review
the service at least once during treatment.

WHAT WE ACHIEVED

HOW WE
MONITORED IT

We will clearly • Embed service • We have a bank of
• The involvement
show our
user and carer
service users and
team will be
commitment
involvement
carers able to support
promoting
to stakeholder
across the
involvement until services and offering
engagement
Trust.
are able to recruit their
support to staff,
by including
own.
service users and
more patients,
carers during
• The involvement team
service users
Involvement
have supported the
and carers who
Week, which is
development of the new
would like
currently being
patient experience group
to be part of
planned.
format across the Trust.
the ongoing
• Service users have been
development
asked to let us know
of the Trust.
what their skills are so
that we can utilise their
wealth of knowledge
across Trust activity.

HOW WE
MEASURED IT
• The numbers

of service users
and carers who
are interested in
engaging with
our services has
increased by 10%
in 2015/16.
• The Trust now
has a database
of individuals
who wish to be
involved.
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A CLOSER LOOK AT PATIENT FEEDBACK
Our Integrated Sexual Health Service staff (based at Northampton General
Hospital) have a long history of collecting feedback and using it to improve patient
experience. During the last year, over 1,600 patients have commented about the
quality of our drop-in service and have awarded it a rating of 4.89 out of 5.

98% OF PATIENTS WOULD RECOMMEND THE SERVICE TO
FRIENDS AND FAMILY.
The majority of reviews were highly complimentary about the quality of treatment.
The team were scored 4.9 out of 5 for care and treatment, kindness and compassion
of staff, being treated with dignity and respect, being involved in decisions about
treatment, as well as information about care and treatment.
While staff celebrated this feedback, they were also focused on addressing two
themes that emerged from feedback during the year.
1. Long waiting times to be seen in the clinic
With 104 comments received about this during the calendar year of 2015, our
managers tested different approaches to reduce waiting times. These included
offering drop-in patients an allocated time, so they were able to leave and come
back, as well as a triage process and appointment-only clinics where patients can
phone for a next-day appointment.
2. The need for refurbishment of the waiting and clinic areas
Our managers used this feedback to support a case for funding, and conducted a
refurbishment programme that involved staff and patient feedback on the design
of the waiting and clinical areas. This has been completed.
As a result of these changes, from January 2016 we have received only four adverse
comments about waiting times, and several complimentary comments about the
speed of service.
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Effective Develop the

skills and
competence
of all new
band 1-4
clinical staff.

OBJECTIVES WHAT WE ACHIEVED HOW WE
MONITORED IT

HOW WE
MEASURED IT

• The team

• The care certificate team

• From April 2015

• We are

currently
to the end of
introducing
request
the financial
a service user
new staff
year 2016, 99
feedback
members
clinical staff
evaluation.
complete
working within
Staff will
evaluations bands 1-4 have
be required
following
commenced the
to request
the noncare certificate. Of service user
registered
the 99 staff 31 are
feedback
staff care
still in progress.
and provide
certificate
evidence to
• 68 staff have
inductions.
complete
completed with
Manager
the care
3 staff leaving
evaluations
certificate.
the Trust prior
are
to completion.
• This
requested
Therefore 95.6%
information
when a
successfully
will then be
member of
passed within
captured by
staff joins
the allocated
the nona clinical
timescale.
registered
area.
staff
• To improve
administrator
participation
and put on
by managers,
the database
evaluations
with any
will be created
other
using Survey
evidence.
Monkey. This
should minimise
the amount of
time it takes for
managers to
complete the
evaluation.

have received 46 completed
evaluations. The evaluations
are now completed at the final
assessor/staff meeting in an
effort to increase the feedback
received going forward. The
team has also added a service
user feedback form that
has been produced in two
versions including an easy read
version for those with learning
difficulties.
• Examples of comments
received from the feedback
questionnaire include:
“Everything – it will benefit me in
my new job role”
“Organised”
“The teachers had good skills”
“Useful – covered a wide range of
things”
“I feel that the information we
received was very satisfying and
helpful”
• 87 staff members have
attended the non-registered
staff induction/care certificate
programme
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CLINICAL EFFECTIVENESS
CQC
PRIORITY
DOMAINS
Safe

During
2015/16, the
Trust will
be focusing
on learning
lessons from
our incidents,
complaints,
good
practices and
compliments.

OBJECTIVES

WHAT WE ACHIEVED HOW WE
MONITORED IT

HOW WE
MEASURED IT

• The Trust will

• Information on

• Good practices and

ensure that PALS
are available
for feedback
and enquiries
via a variety of
methods, such
as social media,
posters, leaflets,
pop-up banners,
roadshows and
by attending
groups to explain
what PALS
can offer. We
will ensure the
service is more
accessible to
patients, service
users, carers and
family members.
• A priority

for PALS is
to improve
participation
of equality
monitoring.
Moving forward
the service will
look at ways of
accessing underrepresented
groups.

• The Trust

compliments have been
PALS, complaints,
received 184
collated and published
involvement and
complaints
around the Trust in
iWGC is provided
during
various forums, including
to all participating 2015/16
lessons learnt.
services when the
compared to
• iWGC results are widely
listening booth is
329 during
published so that teams
taken to various
2014/15.
can see how our service
locations around
• There were
users and carers rate us.
the Trust to
14 complaints
• PALS has really increased
publicise patient
reopened
and developed its profile
experience.
during
in 2015/16.
2015/16
• Numbers of complaints,
compared
good practice and
with 23
compliments are collated
during
and themes and trends
2014/15.
have been identified
and compared with the
• PALS received
previous year.
391 concerns
during
2015/16
compared
with 400
during
2014/15.
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OUR PROGRESS DURING 2015/16
This section shows our local improvement planning and progress made against our priorities in the 2014/15
quality report, since its publication.

DUTY OF
CANDOUR
The Trust has embraced
and actively undertaken
its responsibility to
implement regulation
20: Duty of Candour
across its provision.
The intention of this
regulation is to ensure
that organisations are
open and transparent
with the people who use
its services. This applies
not only to general
care, but to times when
things go wrong with
treatment plans.
Following an incident
at the Trust, service
users, patients and
carers are notified of the
safety concern within
10 working days, and
an apology is given,
although this often
happens much sooner. In
the extremely rare case
that Duty of Candour
cannot be undertaken,
it is escalated so that
the decision can be
confirmed or challenged.
Service users, patients
and their families are
involved in serious
incident investigations,
and are contacted
at the start of the
investigation so that
they have input into

the terms of reference.
It is also at this point
that the investigator
offers additional support
to the individual and/
or their carer. At the
end of the process,
the investigator gives
feedback and a written
copy of the investigation
outcome to the service
user, patient or carer. In
some cases, the service
user, patient or carer
may not wish to receive
feedback or be involved
in the investigation –
this right is noted and
wishes are respected.
Duty of Candour is
important to the Trust,
which is why we have
added it to our quality
priorities for 2016/17.
All communications
related to an
investigation are kept
centrally so a full picture
of the process can be
sourced for future use
as needed. As part of
any investigation, the
investigator is provided
with a Duty of Candour
information page,
which clearly details
what their role and
responsibility is in the
process. This document
is usually completed by
the investigator and
returned to the central
file so a full picture of

contact with the service
user, patient or carer
can be seen (including
any contact attempts
that were made, but
were unsuccessful).
For individuals under
16, or those who
lack mental capacity,
each case is reviewed
individually using the
expertise of the carer (if
appropriate), and the
professionals involved in
the care.
Culturally, the Trust
promotes openness and
honesty in a number
of different ways.
Firstly, Duty of Candour
training is available to
all investigators and
senior managers who
handle complaints
and serious incidents.
However, we recognise
that this needs further
development. An
e-learning package is
being created so that
all staff can understand
the legislation and its
application, as at the
moment this is limited
to those who are
investigating incidents.
In addition, via the
training package the
Trust will be able to
track how many staff
have been trained,
this will be used to
set a benchmark for

the organisation.
Secondly, learning
lessons from incidents
is a core priority for
the organisation and
while we have improved
this process (and its
outcome) both internally
and with our health
provider colleagues,
this work continues.
We have updated our
Serious Incident and
Complaints policies
and we have started
reviewing the Being
Open policy in line with
internal deadlines.

152

Sign up to Safety (SU2S) is a new national patient
safety campaign. Its mission is to strengthen patient
safety in the NHS and make it the safest healthcare
system globally. The Trust has embraced this initiative
as a positive opportunity to improve our commitment
to providing quality, safe care for all.
The five Sign up to Safety pledges are
1. Putting safety first
Commit to reduce avoidable harm in the NHS by half
and make public our locally developed goals and plans.
2. Continually learn
Make our organisation more resilient to risks by acting
on feedback from patients and staff and by constantly
measuring and monitoring the safety of our service.
3. Being honest
Be transparent with people about our progress to
tackle patient safety issues and support staff in being
candid with patients and their families if something
goes wrong.
4. Collaborating
Take a lead role in supporting local collaborative
learning, so that improvements are made across all of
the local services that patients use.
5. Being supportive
Help people understand why things go wrong and how
to put them right. Give staff the time and support to
improve and celebrate progress.
The SU2S initiative will help to strengthen patient
safety by working collaboratively with local CCGs
and service providers, as well as gaining and sharing
feedback and ideas from each other and our local
community, patients, service users and carers. This
action will make sure our focus is in the right areas.
Our next steps during 2016/17 will be to develop a
safety improvement plan based on the five safety
pledges and the key areas requiring our focus. All
agreed actions will be published on the Trust’s website
for staff, patients and the public to see.
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STAFF SURVEY RESULTS
The selected results from the 2015 National Staff Survey (financial year) look
specifically at our Trust responses to key questions regarding bullying, harassment,
equal opportunities and discrimination (key factors in the Workforce Race Equality
Standard) and the differences between responses for white and BME members of staff.

KF25

KF26

KF21

The Trust in
2014

The
Trust in
2015

Average
(median) for
combined
MH/LD and
community
trusts

Percentage of staff
experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from
patients, relatives or the
public in last 12 months

white

31%

21%

27%

BME

29%

29%

30%

Percentage of staff
experiencing harassment,
bullying or abuse from staff
in last 12 months

white

21%

18%

20%

BME

26%

20%

23%

Percentage of staff
believing that the
organisation provides equal
opportunities for career
progression or promotion

white

93%

91%

91%

BME

68%

74%

78%

6%

5%

5%

25%

16%

13%

white
Q17b In the 12 last months have
you personally experienced
discrimination at work from
your manager/team leader
BME
or other colleagues?
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PATIENT EXPERIENCE
Responses to the Friends and Family Test
We use iWantGreatCare to collect feedback from friends and family. Our system offers the opportunity to
comment using a free text message.
The Trust continues to seek and provide regular feedback as part of our everyday routine. We also continue to
make sure that action is taken as a result of feedback, with the help and support of our staff, patients, service
users and carers. We are proud to have been chosen as a finalist in the National Friends and Family Test Awards
for our work in prisons.

MONTH/
YEAR

TOTAL
LIKELY TO
KINDNESS
NUMBER OF RECOMMEND AND
RESPONSES
COMPASSION
OF STAFF

INFORMATION INVOLVEMENT DIGNITY
ABOUT
AND
CARE AND
RESPECT
TREATMENT

AVERAGE
5 STAR
RATING

April 2015

1,976

94.33%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.83

May 2015

2,324

93.37%

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.82

June 2015

2,426

95.14%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.81

July 2015

2,862

95.07%

4.9

4.9

4.8

4.9

4.85

August
2015

2,092

95.94%

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.86

September
2015

2,447

94.44%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.84

October
2015

2,491

94.10%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.82

November
2015

2,384

93.54%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.82

December
2015

2,073

95.42%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.84

January
2016

2,041

95.20%

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.9

4.86

February
2016

2,308

92.89%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.80

March
2016

2,769

93.30%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.83

Full year

28,193

94.40%

4.9

4.8

4.8

4.9

4.83
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REDUCTION IN COMPLAINTS ABOUT ATTITUDE AND COMMUNICATION
Key complaints data for 2015/16

THE TRUST RECEIVED

THERE WERE

PALS RECEIVED
391 CONCERNS

184 COMPLAINTS
DURING 2015/16

14 COMPLAINTS

REOPENED DURING 2015/16

DURING 2015/16

COMPARED WITH 329

COMPARED WITH 23

COMPARED WITH 400

DURING 2014/15

DURING 2014/15

The number of formal complaints has reduced from
2015/16, which could be attributed to the fact that
many complaints are resolved locally by the staff that
provide the care. We actively encourage our teams to
deal with concerns as they arise so that they can be
remedied promptly, taking into account the individual
circumstances at the time.
The Trust continues to actively monitor the key themes
identified from complaints received and is working
to triangulate this information with information
generated through other sources of feedback, such
as serious incident reporting, iWGC and staff sickness.
In addition to this, the Trust has also developed a
process for identifying low-level concerns. This is so
we can build a clear picture of complaints across the
organisation.

DURING 2014/15

A number of systems and processes have changed
following patient, service user and carer feedback.
Some examples of these changes include:
• Signage updated to make it easier for patients and

carers to find services
• Consultant access to the in-patient mental health wards
• Patient leaflets were reviewed for services that our

patients and carers felt it would be helpful to include
more information on
• Information about routines on our wards has been

displayed on some of our wards, so that it is easier for
carers to plan visits
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STAFF ENGAGEMENT
Staff engagement
remains a key measure in
understanding the culture
of our organisation and
as a measure of quality.
Because there is a known
association between
quality of service and
staff engagement, our
goals are to consistently
increase our staff
recommendation of
the Trust as a place of
work and a place where
they would be happy to
receive care. We measure
this through two types
of test each year, both
our quarterly Friends
and Family Test (FFT)
questions, which simply
asks two questions about
the Trust as a place to
work and a place to
receive care and the
National Staff Survey,
which asks a series of
questions, including
questions similar to the
two above.
Our fourth quarter FFT
results continue to show
improvements compared
with 2014, and compared
with quarters one and
two. Recommendation
as a place to work
has reached 64% and
recommendation as a
place to receive care has
reached 78%.
A close look at feedback
from both the national
and quarterly surveys has
shown us that positive
responses are increasing.
This year, in a move
to understand these
responses further and
to involve staff more in

making the changes that
are appropriate for their
areas, we are delivering
staff workshops. These
will use the local level
results from our surveys.
Our staff workshops
will be engaging,
interactive and focused
on the information for
each division. Using
appropriate visuals for
each directorate, senior
participants will be
working through:
• What the information

from the survey for their
area is telling them
• Describing what they see,

feel and hear from the
staff survey results
• A forward look at what

they want to see in 12
months
• What they need to do to

get there
The outcome of the
workshops will be a teamowned, focused action
plan that moves the team
from where they were
then to where they want
to be. These action plans
will be supported with
a communication plan
that helps to share the
outcomes, learning and
actions.
The National staff survey,
which was conducted
in quarter three, was
published in February
2016. When compared
with Trusts of a similar
type our results were
significantly better
in 26 questions. The
key findings used by
the Department of

Health to measure staff
engagement indicated
above average scores
when compared with
others. The questions
focused on ‘staff
recommendation as
a place to work and

happiness with the
standard of care provided
if a friend or relative
needed treatment’
showed an increase of 6%
and an overall score that
places us above average
in these categories.

OUR RESULTS FOR QUARTER THREE –
NATIONAL STAFF SURVEY
• 62% recommend the Trust as a place to work
• 69% said if a friend or relative needed treatment,

they would be happy with the standard of care
provided by the Trust

COMPARED WITH OUR 2014 SURVEY,
OUR RESULTS WERE
Significantly better for 26 questions.
Our biggest improvements included:
• Better communication between senior

management and staff
• More staff satisfied with their level of pay
• More staff satisfied their work is valued by the

organisation
• Fewer staff experiencing harassment, bullying or

abuse from patients, relatives or the public
• More staff agreeing their role makes a difference

to patients/service users
• More effective use of patient/service user

feedback and more staff report receiving regular
updates on patient/service user feedback for their
area
• Fewer staff feeling pressure in the last three

months to attend work when feeling unwell
• Staff reporting an improvement in support from

immediate managers
Significantly worse for one question
• This question focussed on appraisals and

performance reviews and the identification of
training, learning and development needs within
them
The scores show no significant difference on 33
questions
Our staff motivation is above average for trusts of
our type

157

62%

26 QUESTIONS

SHOWED IMPROVEMENTS IN STAFF RESPONSES

RECOMMEND THE TRUST

AS A PLACE TO WORK

*RESULTS FOR Q3 NATIONAL STAFF SURVEY

69%

RECOMMEND THE TRUST
AS A PLACE TO RECEIVE CARE

*RESULTS FOR Q3 NATIONAL STAFF SURVEY
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CARE QUALITY
COMMISSION
(CQC) RATINGS
Our results
In February 2015 the
CQC visited the Trust
to inspect our services.
During the assessment,
the CQC rated the
organisation on five key
criteria (safe, effective,
caring, responsive and
well led). As a result,
there were 18 reports
produced that assessed 49
service lines. Each report
identified areas of good
practice and areas for
improvement.
The CQC also provided
a general report that
rated the Trust overall as
‘requires improvement’.
We are committed to
delivering the best
possible compassionate
care. So we recognised
from this report that
we needed to improve
practices, with particular
focus on safe staffing,
effectiveness through
education, responsiveness
and leadership through
supervision.
Our culture of caring was
clear to the CQC. In this
category, the CQC rated
the Trust ‘good’ overall.
This was supported by a
rating of either ‘good’
or ‘outstanding’ in
caring for all services. We
received ‘outstanding’
or ‘good’ ratings for
64% of our services, and
there were no clinical
areas or domains rated
‘inadequate’.

We view our results
as a detailed story of
two halves. We have
regulatory assurance that
we can deliver good and
outstanding services,
and at the same time we
know that we have work
to do to improve things
in certain areas. We are
confident that we are
responding to all concerns
raised by the CQC. Since
receiving their initial
feedback we have begun
taking action as part
of our commitment to
continuous improvement.
In their overall report,
the CQC said that they
“found the Trust to be
well-led at board level.
The Trust’s values are
visible in most of the
services provided and the
work that the leadership
team are undertaking to
instil these throughout
the organisation in order
to promote a caring,
transparent and open
culture is notable. The
executive team impressed
us both individually
and collectively and
demonstrated cohesion
and determination to
improve and enhance the
quality of care provided
to those who use services
within the Trust.”
They also identified
that “innovation was
encouraged from all
staff members across
all disciplines. Staff said
they were encouraged
to develop new ideas
and to make continuous
improvement in the
service provided. Older
People’s Mental Health
Inpatient services at the

Forest Centre are to be
particularly commended
due to the state of the art
facilities, excellent use of
therapeutic tools and the
involvement of patients in
their care.”
Our actions
Following the CQC
inspection, the Trust
worked hard during the
latter part of 2015 to
develop a robust action
plan that was bound
by a clear governance
structure. The plan
included 201 actions. The
majority were identified
from the CQC reports,
however the Trust also
identified further actions
that it believed were
integral to moving the
services forward. Activity
and outcomes were
reported to the Trust
board via the Quality and
Governance Committee,
while the actions were
rooted in clinical practice
and owned by the
leadership teams.
We made excellent
progress with our action
plan at the end of this
year, with the majority
of actions (198 of the
201) implemented by 1
April 2016 and the final
three actions progressing
well, with one due for
completion on 12 April
2016. All requirement
notices have been
addressed.
Achievement of actions
was initially verified by
the appropriate deputy
director, and evidence
was submitted for review
which was scrutinised.
Once agreed, the action
was signed off by the

deputy director on
the database. For the
requirement notices, once
the deputy director had
reviewed the evidence,
this was escalated to the
service line director for
approval. All requirement
notices were then
referred to the director
of nursing, AHPs and
quality, and the deputy
chief executive for final
scrutiny. Our work with
this action plan resumes
in the year ahead, and
assurance work for the
actions and how they
have been embedded
into clinical practice
continues.
The Trust undertakes
quarterly CQC selfassessments across its
services. These help
and support staff in
understanding the
quality agenda. The selfassessments also assist
with the achievement and
initial monitoring of the
CQC action plan.
To help us make sure
we stick to our action
plan, each ‘requirement
notice’ has been tested
in practice to ensure
that any improvements
and changes are being
embedded. It also ensures
that service leads continue
to attend, confirm
and challenge in these
meetings, to identify the
difference the CQC action
plans have made to their
clinical areas.
Evidence of improvement
continues to be collected
and distributed across
the organisation. For the
Trust, the rating reflects
the journey we, and many
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If service users, patients, carers or their
families want to give feedback, raise
a concern, make a compliment or get
involved we are very pleased to hear
from them, as their important voices can
help us on our journey of continuous
improvement. They can contact our
patient advice and liaison service (PALS)
or visit the ‘get involved’ pages on our
website

other NHS trusts, are on to deliver
consistent, effective and quality care
for our patients in the face of many
complex challenges.
Our progress in recent months is very
positive and our patients tell us this in
their feedback. Our latest iWGC results
rate us 4.8 out of 5 for good care. We
are also extremely proud of our staff
and how the CQC have recognised their
dedication to providing quality care.
Everybody at the Trust is committed to
this quality improvement journey as our
number one priority. Compassionate,
personalised care is something we all
care deeply about.

www.nhft.nhs.uk/getinvolved

OUR CQC RATINGS BY WARD AND DOMAIN
Safe

Effective

Caring

Responsive

WellLed

Overall

RI

RI

G

RI

G

RI

MH Rehab Ward RI

RI

G

RI

RI

RI

LD Wards

RI

G

G

G

G

G

OAMH Wards

G

G

O

O

G

O

Community
AMH

RI

G

G

G

G

G

MH Crisis

G

G

G

G

G

Forensic Wards

G

RI

G

RI

Community
OAMH

G

G

G

Community
Children’s

RI

RI

CAMHs Wards

RI

Spec Comm
CAMHs

Acute MH
Wards

Breakdown

Overall

O

4

2

G

50

6

RI

31

9

I

0

0

85

17

Key
O

Outstanding

G

Good

G

RI

Requires
improvement

RI

RI

I

Inadequate

G

G

G

G

RI

RI

RI

G

G

G

G

G

G

RI

G

RI

RI

RI

Community
Adults

RI

RI

G

G

G

RI

Community
Beds

RI

RI

G

RI

RI

RI

EoL

G

RI

G

G

RI

RI

Community
Dental

RI

G

G

RI

RI

RI

Community LD

G

G

G

G

G

G

SMS

G

G

O

O

G

O

Trust

RI

RI

G

RI

RI

RI
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OUR RATINGS GRID
The table below shows the Trust’s ratings grid, with key messages relating to the improvement strategies
we identified. There were over 200 actions included in our plan, so we have provided a sample of those
implemented during this year.

CQC
CRITERIA

RATING

HOW YOU PLAN TO ADDRESS ANY AREAS THAT
REQUIRE IMPROVEMENT OR ARE INADEQUATE

DATE BY WHEN
YOU EXPECT IT TO
IMPROVE

Overall
rating

Requires
improvement

The improvements identified in the report have been
developed into a Trust CQC action plan.

Our action plan
commenced in
the latter half of
2015/16. It was
completed in April
2016, with evidence
of continued
improvement during
this time period. The
overall action plan
progress has been
reported at Trust
board and the quality
and governance
committee.

The plan has been robustly devised with internal
stakeholders and includes:
• The improvement required
• The expected outcome
• The evidence to demonstrate the change/improvement

has occurred
Each action has a designated lead. Once achieved, the
outcome requires the deputy director to review the
evidence before the action can be signed off.
If the improvement was linked to a requirement notice,
these were reviewed by the responsible director, and
verified by the director of nursing, AHP and quality and
the deputy chief executive. The director sign-off process
was audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers in January 2016
and was deemed to be effective.
Safe

Requires
improvement

The core themes safer staffing and seclusion rooms
(which were identified in the report) have been included
into the overall Trust CQC action plan.
We have implemented the following changes as a result:
• Safety thermometers have been identified.
• Clinical discussions took place for a ‘generic’ safety

thermometer and its reporting mechanisms.
• Submissions from pilots and the safety thermometer

monthly data is monitored by the quality team and fed
back to clinical services.
• Funding for podiatry services processes to monitor

equipment is now in place.
• Instruments have been ordered and a Central Sterile

Although these
actions were
completed within
the timeframes, we
expect to identify
improvements in
safety thermometers
by the end of June
2016. In addition,
localised training
pertaining to
emergency resilience
will continue within
2016/17.

Services Department (CSSD) agreement has been
approved. A tracking system has been developed.
• Our emergency policy procedure was reviewed and

updated based on best practice.
• This policy was distributed to staff and added to our

intranet.
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CQC
CRITERIA

RATING

HOW YOU PLAN TO ADDRESS ANY AREAS THAT REQUIRE
IMPROVEMENT OR ARE INADEQUATE

Effective

Requires
The core themes access to education and clinical records (which
improvement were identified in the report) have been included in the overall
Trust CQC action plan.
We have implemented the following changes as a result:
• A record keeping training review, followed by our sharing best

practice with staff on an e-learning platform. This review was
based on CQC feedback and has been piloted across the Trust.
• The roll out of SystmOne for mental health and learning

disabilities offered an opportunity to train over 1,000 staff
on record keeping standards. This was added to our training
programme and a hand-out to support learning.
• The ImROC process commenced in the inpatient mental health

areas, and is being further developed.
• Audit feedback was included in many team meetings. To ensure

consistency, we developed a template of core meeting agenda
items that has been distributed to all teams.

DATE BY WHEN
YOU EXPECT IT TO
IMPROVE
Our action plan
commenced in
the latter half of
2015/16. It was
completed April
2016, with evidence
of continued
improvement during
this time period.
However, these
elements continue to
be reviewed as part
of the self-assessment
process to ensure
practice has been
embedded.

• Record keeping audits are discussed at our Quality Forum, and

any discussions are minuted.
• We are piloting mobile solutions in community nursing.

The outcome of this will steer how we respond to challenges in
mental health and learning disability.
• Wherever possible and appropriate, our bank staff have access

to clinical systems.
Caring

Good

This domain was rated as ‘good’, however any areas for
improvement were included on the Trust action plan.
Some notable areas the CQC reported on included the
following:
• Patients were treated with dignity and respect. Staff showed a
good understanding of individual need on the basis of gender,
race, religion, sexuality, ability or disability.
• The majority of the feedback we received from patients and
carers was positive and they spoke highly of the care and
treatment they had received.
• We observed positive interaction between staff and patients.
Staff engaged well, communicated softly, effectively and
encouraged patients to follow their care and treatment.
• There were good examples of engaging people in
individualised care planning.
• Access to independent advocacy services was available and
promoted across the Trust.
• Patients in mental health services were involved in the
recruitment of new staff.
• ‘Patient stories’ were used at Trust board meetings to promote
involvement and understanding. Patients and families said they
were kept well informed and felt involved in the treatment
received. We saw self-care was promoted where appropriate.
• Patients were supported to carry out their wishes while they
were staying in the hospices.
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CQC
CRITERIA

RATING

HOW YOU PLAN TO ADDRESS ANY AREAS THAT REQUIRE
IMPROVEMENT OR ARE INADEQUATE

Responsive Requires
The core themes of broad patient restrictions and shared
improvement learning from incidents (which were identified in the report)
have been included into the overall Trust CQC action plan.
We have implemented the following changes as a result:
• Our recruitment and retention is now regularly reviewed and

individually tailored as required.
• Safer staffing is reported to the Quality and Governance

Committee based on national guidelines.
• Retention payments have been implemented.
• Relationships with local universities were forged and student

feedback is collected and acted on.
• We have a process in place to support students whose

placement experience has not been positive.
• Preceptorship that is robust, relevant and contemporary is in

place.
• A new lower level concern process has been implemented for

CMHT services and is recorded on Datix.
• A feedback process is in place for team managers.

DATE BY WHEN
YOU EXPECT IT TO
IMPROVE
Our action plan
commenced in the
latter half of 2015/16.
198 actions were
completed by 1 April
2016, with evidence
of continued
improvement during
this time period.
The Trust has really
focussed on staff
recruitment and
retention in 2015/16
– the work against
a national shortage
of nursing and some
allied healthcare
professional staff will
continue.

• iWGC feedback is provided on a monthly basis and individual

reports can now be developed.
• Complaints, PALS, GP concerns and other patient feedback

data is triangulated and reported to the Quality Forum.
• We completed an audit of patient information

communication, which specified how patients can access
different versions of leaflets and communications (including
other languages and font sizes for easy reading).
Well led

Requires
The core themes of supervision processes and wards not
improvement participating in external accreditation schemes (which were
identified in the report) have been included in the overall Trust
CQC action plan.
We have implemented the following changes as a result:
• A risk register was reviewed and is now updated on a monthly
basis at the team leads’ meetings.
• Following a consultation review of systems that engage
with staff about Trust-wide changes, we have implemented
learnings that are being piloted as part of our 2016/17
transformation plan.
• Staff are now made aware of any changes using our
communication channels.

Our action plan
commenced in the
latter half of 2015/16.
198 actions were
completed by 1 April
2016, with evidence
of continued
improvement during
this time period.
The Trust continues
to review its
communication
strategies to
ensure they are
contemporary and
potentially utilising
the correct media
platforms (e.g.
Twitter).
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HOW OUR QUALITY ACCOUNT WAS PREPARED
Many people and health and wellbeing bodies were involved in
developing our quality account and agreeing priorities for the next year.
These included:
• Allied healthcare professional leads
• Education and training team
• Nursing advisory committee
• Our governors
• Patient experience team
• Patient involvement team, including patients, service users and carers
• Pharmacy
• Quality forum
• Quality team
• The Trust’s non-executive directors
• The Trust’s executive team
• The quality and governance committee
Themes identified in complaints and serious incidents were also used to
help identify priorities for improvement during the next year.
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OUR QUALITY CARE PRIORITIES
AN EASY READ VERSION
These are the things we will do to make your care better next year:

We will make sure you are safe by:

Making sure everyone understands
about your medicines

Making sure we always check you
have the best care

Making sure we always check you
have the best care at the right time

We will always do our best to listen
to you and involve you by:

Working with all the people involved
in your care when new staff join
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Working with all the people involved
in your care when we train new staff

Helping people to speak up about
complaints or when things go wrong

We will make sure that your care
is the best it can be by:

Sharing stories and feedback with our
staff to help us give you even better
care

Showing our staff new ways to give
you even better care

Learning from your feedback and
when we get things wrong
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APPENDICES
ANNEX 1
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STATEMENTS FROM
STAKEHOLDERS
The Trust‘s mandatory
obligations for items to
be included in the Annual
Report are determined
by Monitor’s Annual
Reporting Manual. We
welcome suggestions
from our key stakeholders
regarding content
and incorporate these
suggestions where it is
appropriate to do so.
Clinical Commissioning
Groups, Healthwatch and
the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee (OSC) were all
invited to comment on
the Quality Report and we
welcome their responses.
We include the feedback
from our stakeholders
exactly as it is received.
Where we were able to
make adjustments to the
Quality Report we did so.
We will continue to work
with our stakeholder
partners to provide further
assurance that we deliver
patient-centred, quality
services.
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ANNEX 2
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STATEMENT OF
DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES

from local Healthwatch
organisations dated
16/05/2016 and feedback
from the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee
dated 16/05/2016

The directors are required
under the Health Act 2009 • feedback from governors
dated 15/03/2016
and the National Health
Service (Quality Accounts) • the Trust’s complaints
Regulations to prepare
report published under
Quality Accounts for each
regulation 18 of the
financial year.
Local Authority Social
Services and NHS
Monitor has issued
Complaints Regulations
guidance to NHS
2009, dated 25/05/2016
Foundation Trust boards
• the 2015 national staff
on the form and content
survey 23/03/2016
of annual quality reports
(which incorporate the
• the Head of Internal
above legal requirements)
Audit’s annual opinion
and on the arrangements
over the Trust’s control
that NHS Foundation Trust environment dated May
boards should put in place 2016
to support the data quality • CQC Intelligent
for the preparation of the
Monitoring Report dated
quality report.
February 2016

In preparing the quality
report, directors are
required to take steps to
satisfy themselves that:
- the content of the
quality report meets the
requirements set out in
the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual
2015/16 and supporting
guidance

and prescribed
definitions, is subject to
appropriate scrutiny and
review and
- the quality report
has been prepared
in accordance with
Monitor’s annual
reporting guidance
(which incorporates
the quality accounts
regulations) (published
at www.monitor.gov.uk/
annualreportingmanual)

as well as the standards
to support data quality
for the preparation
of the quality report
(available at www.
monitor.gov.uk/
annualreportingmanual).
The directors confirm
that to the best of their
knowledge and belief
they have complied with
the above requirements
in preparing the quality
report.

By order of the board

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

PAUL BERTIN
Chairman
26 May 2016

- the quality report
presents a balanced
picture of the Trust’s
performance over the
period covered
- the performance
information reported
in the quality report is
reliable and accurate

- there are proper
internal controls over the
- the content of the quality collection and reporting
report is not inconsistent
of the measures of
with internal and external performance included in
sources of information
the quality report, and
including:
these controls are subject
to review to confirm
• board minutes and papers
for the period April 2015 to that they are working
effectively in practice
March 2016
- the data underpinning
reported to the board over the measures of
performance reported
the period April 2015 to
in the quality report
March 2016
is robust and reliable,
• feedback from
conforms to specified
commissioners dated
data quality standards
13/05/2016, feedback
• papers relating to quality
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FINANCIAL
REPORT
Monitor, the sector
regulator for health
services in England,
in exercise of powers
conferred on it by
paragraphs 24 and 25
of Schedule 7 of the
National Health Service
Act 2006, directs that
the keeping of accounts
and the annual report
of each NHS Foundation
Trust shall be in the
form as laid down in
the annual reporting
guidance for NHS
Foundation Trusts within
the NHS Foundation
Trust Annual Reporting
Manual, known as
the FT ARM, that is in
force for the relevant
financial period. The
accounts have been
prepared in accordance
with paragraphs 24 and
25 of Schedule 7 to the
National Health Service
Act 2006 as laid down in
the FT ARM.

These accounts cover
the financial year
2015/16 and provide
figures for 2014/15
for comparison where
required. After making
enquiries, the directors
have a reasonable
expectation that the
Trust has adequate
resources to continue in
operational existence
for the foreseeable
future. For this reason,
we continue to adopt
the going concern
basis in preparing our
accounts. These pages
include the following
financial statements and
information:

Accounting policies
for pensions and other
retirement benefits
are set out in the
notes to the accounts
and details of senior
managers’ remuneration
can be found in the
remuneration report.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

• Statement

of
comprehensive income
(SoCI)
• Statement of financial
position
• Statement of changes
in taxpayers’ equity
• Statement of cash
flows
• Notes to the accounts
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STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE
ACCOUNTING OFFICER OF NORTHAMPTONSHIRE HEALTHCARE NHS
FOUNDATION TRUST
The NHS Act 2006 states that the chief executive
is the accounting officer of the NHS Foundation
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the
accounting officer, including their responsibility
for the propriety and regularity of public
finances for which they are answerable, and for
the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in
the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer
Memorandum issued by Monitor.
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed
the Trust to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the
basis set out in the accounts direction. The
accounts are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Trust and of its income and
expenditure, total recognised gains and losses
and cash flows for the financial year.

the financial position of the Trust and to enable
her to ensure that the accounts comply with
requirements outlined in the above-mentioned
act. The accounting officer is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Trust and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have
properly discharged the responsibilities set out
in Monitor’s NHS Foundation Trust Accounting
Officer Memorandum.

ANGELA HILLERY
Chief executive
26 May 2016

In preparing the accounts, the accounting officer
is required to comply with the requirements of
the FT ARM and in particular to:
1. Observe the accounts direction issued by
Monitor, including the relevant accounting and
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable
accounting policies on a consistent basis
2. Make judgements and estimates on a
reasonable basis
3. State whether applicable accounting standards
as set out in the FT ARM have been followed,
and disclose and explain any material departures
in the financial statements
4. Ensure that the use of public funds complies
with the relevant legislation, delegated
authorities and guidance and
5. Prepare the financial statements on a going
concern basis
The accounting officer is responsible for
keeping proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
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FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

NOTE

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

178,889

171,010

Revenue
Operating income from patient care activities

4

Other operating income

5

10,001

11,143

Operating expenses

6

(186,431)

(177,425)

2,459

4,728

Operating surplus/(deficit)
Finance costs:
Finance income

12

171

200

Finance expense - financial liabilities

14

(2,854)

(2,891)

Finance expense - unwinding of discount on provisions

32

(18)

(21)

Public dividend capital dividends payable

(1,153)

(819)

Net finance costs

(3,854)

(3,531)

0

0

(1,395)

1,197

Impairments and reversals

(539)

(110)

Gains on revaluations

5,748

5,054

Gain/(loss) from transfer by absorption
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period
Other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of defined benefit pension scheme (liability)/assets
Total comprehensive income for the period
The notes that follow form part of these accounts.

311

(252)

4,125

5,889

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31ST MARCH 2016

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
NOTE

£000

£000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

15

100,711

95,289

Intangible assets

16

1,350

1,358

Trade and other receivables

20

0

0

102,061

96,647

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

19

149

123

Trade and other receivables

20

6,106

6,994

Other financial assets

21

0

0

Other current assets

22

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents

23

31,421

33,634

37,676

40,751

Non-current assets held for sale

15

Total current assets
Total assets

355

475

38,031

41,226

140,092

137,873

(20,844)

(20,087)

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

24

Other liabilities

26

(176)

(144)

Borrowings

25

(1,345)

(1,299)

Other financial liabilities

31

0

0

Provisions

32

(6,935)

(8,026)

(29,300)

(29,556)

Total current liabilities
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Total assets less current liabilities

8,731

11,670

110,792

108,317

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

25

(36,318)

(37,663)

Trade and other payables

24

0

0

Other financial liabilities

31

0

0

Provisions

32

(443)

(479)

Other liabilities

26

(374)

(643)

73,657

69,532

Public dividend capital

37,255

37,255

Retained earnings

19,216

20,479

17,303

12,226

Total assets employed
Financed by taxpayers' equity:

Revaluation reserve
Pension reserve
Total taxpayers' equity
These financial statements were approved by 'those charged with governance'
on behalf of the board of directors on 26 May 2016 and signed on its behalf by:

Angela Hillery, chief executive

41

(117)

(428)

73,657

69,532

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS'
EQUITY

Public Retained
Donated
Revaluation
dividend
asset
reserve reserve
capital (PDC) earnings

£000

Total

£000

£000

£000

37,255

20,479

12,226

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period

0

(1,395)

0

0

Transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

Impairments
Net gain/(loss)and
on reversals
revaluation of property, plant,
equipment

0

0

(539)

0

0

0

0

5,748

0

0

0

5,748

Asset disposals

0

132

(132)

0

0

0

0

Remeasurement of defined net benefit pension scheme
asset/liability

0

0

0

0

0

311

311

Other recognised gains and losses

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2016

37,255

19,216

17,303

0

0

(117)

73,657

Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2014

Taxpayers equity at 1 April 2015

£000

Gov’t
grant Pension
reserve reserve
£000

£000

(428)

69,532

0

0

(1,395)

0

0

0
(539)

35,349

19,197

7,367

0

0

(176)

61,737

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the period

0

1,197

0

0

0

0

1,197

Transfers between reserves

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Impairments
Net gain/(loss)and
on reversals
revaluation of property, plant,
equipment

0

0

(110)

0

0

0

(110)

0

0

5,054

0

0

0

5,054

Asset disposals

0

85

(85)

0

0

0

0

Remeasurement of defined net benefit pension scheme
asset/liability

0

0

0

0

0

(252)

(252)

0
1,906

0
0

0
0

0

0

0
0

0
1,906

37,255

20,479

12,226

0

0

(428)

69,532

Other recognised gains and losses
New PDC received
Balance at 31 March 2015

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED
31ST MARCH 2016

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

Operating surplus/(deficit)

2,459

4,728

Depreciation and amortisation

4,606

4,836

Impairments and (reversals)

(591)

(1,575)

Pension liability

42

14

(Gain)/loss on disposal

50

47

NOTE

Cash flows from operating activities

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

(26)

0

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

963

(520)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

32

Other movements in operating cash flows
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

0

0

901

1,784

32

(550)

(1,145)

(4,870)

0

0

7,291

3,894

171

200

(4,290)

(7,839)

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

16

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing activities
Net cash inflow/(outflow) before financing

515

585

(519)

(1,147)

(4,123)

(8,201)

3,168

(4,307)

Cash flows from financing activities
Public dividend capital received
Capital element of PFI obligations
Capital element of finance lease payments
Interest paid
Interest element of PFI obligations
Interest element of finance lease payments
PDC dividends paid
Cash flows from other financing activities

0

1,906

(1,292)

(1,269)

(8)

(8)

(78)

(76)

(2,773)

(2,813)

(2)

(2)

(1,228)

(970)

0

0

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing

(5,381)

(3,232)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(2,213)

(7,539)

33,634

41,173

31,421

33,634

Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts)
at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents (and bank overdrafts)
at the end of the financial period
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NOTES TO
ACCOUNTS
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NOTES TO
ACCOUNTS
1.0 ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND OTHER
INFORMATION
Monitor is responsible
for issuing an accounts
direction to NHS
foundation trusts under
the NHS Act 2006.
Monitor has directed
that the financial
statements of NHS
foundation trusts shall
meet the accounting
requirements of the
Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting
Manual (FT ARM)
which shall be agreed
with the Secretary of
State. Consequently,
the following financial
statements have been
prepared in accordance
with the FT ARM
2015/16 issued by
Monitor. The accounting
policies contained in
that manual follow
International Financial
Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and HM Treasury’s
FReM to the extent that
they are meaningful
and appropriate to
NHS foundation trusts.
The accounting policies
have been applied
consistently in dealing
with items considered
material in relation to
the accounts.

1.1 ACCOUNTING 		
CONVENTION
These accounts have
been prepared under
the historical cost
convention modified

to account for the
revaluation of property,
plant and equipment,
intangible assets,
inventories and certain
financial assets and
financial liabilities.

1.2 CONSOLIDATION
1.2.1 SUBSIDIARIES
Subsidiary entities
are those over which
the Trust is exposed
to, or has rights to,
variable returns from
its involvement with
the entity and has the
ability to affect those
returns through its
power over the entity.
The income, expenses,
assets, liabilities,
equity and reserves
of subsidiaries are
consolidated and shown
in the appropriate
financial statement lines.
The capital and reserves
attributable to minority
interests are included
separately in the
Statement of Financial
Position.
The amounts
consolidated are taken
from the published
financial statements
of the subsidiaries for
the year (except where
a subsidiary’s financial
year end is before 1
January or after 1 July,
then the actual amounts
for each month of the
Trust’s financial year
are obtained from
the subsidiary and
consolidated).
Where subsidiaries
accounting policies are
not the same as those

of the Trust (including
where they report
under UK Financial
Reporting Standard
(FRS) 102) then amounts
are adjusted during
consolidation where
the differences are
material. Any balances,
transactions and
gains/losses between
entities are removed on
consolidation.
Subsidiaries that are
classified as held for sale
are measured at the
lower of their carrying
amount and fair value
less selling costs.
Northampton General
Hospital NHS Trust (NGH)
is the corporate trustee
for the NHFT charitable
funds and as such the
power to govern the
financial and operating
policies of the funds
sits with them. As the
value of the charitable
funds is not considered
to be material to the
Trust’s accounts and
the funds are managed
on its behalf by NGH,
they have not been
consolidated in these
accounts.
The Trust has not
accounted for any
subsidiaries in the
financial statements for
this period.

1.2.2 ASSOCIATES
Associate entities are
those over which the
Trust has the power to
exercise a significant
influence. Associate
entities are recognised
in the Trust’s financial

statement using the
equity method. The
investment is initially
recognised at cost.
It is increased or
decreased later to reflect
the Trust’s share of the
entity’s profit or loss or
other gains and losses
(e.g. revaluation gains
on the entity’s property,
plant and equipment)
following acquisition. It
is also reduced when any
distribution e.g. share
dividends are received
by the Trust from the
associate.
Associates that are
classified as held for sale
are measured at the
lower of their carrying
amount and fair value
less selling costs. The
Trust has not accounted
for any associates in the
financial statements for
this period.

1.2.3 JOINT VENTURES
Where the Trust has
joint control with
one or more parties,
and has the rights to
the net assets of the
arrangement, it is called
a joint venture.
Joint ventures are
accounted for using the
equity method.
The Trust has not
accounted for any joint
ventures in the financial
statements for this
period.

1.2.4 JOINT OPERATIONS
Joint operations are
arrangements where the
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Trust has joint control
with one or more other
parties and has the
rights to the assets,
and obligations for the
liabilities, relating to the
arrangement. The Trust
includes in its financial
statements its share of
the assets, liabilities,
income and expenses.

payments are recognised
in the period where the
service is received from
employees. The cost of
annual leave entitlement
earned but not yet
taken by employees is
included in the financial
statements where they
are allowed to carry it
into the next year.

The Trust has not
accounted for any
joint operations in the
financial statements for
this period.

1.4.2. PENSION COSTS

1.3 INCOME
Income for services
provided is recognised
when those services are
received, measured at
the fair value of those
services. The main
source of income for
the Trust is contracts
with commissioners for
healthcare services.
Where income is
received for a specific
activity that is to
be delivered in the
following financial year,
that income is deferred.
Income from the sale
of non-current assets is
recognised only when
all material conditions
of sale have been met,
and is measured as the
amount due under the
sale contract.

1.4 EXPENDITURE ON
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1.4.1 SHORT-TERM 		
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Salaries, wages and
employment-related

1.4.2.1 NHS PENSION 		
SCHEME
Past and present
employees are covered
by the NHS Pension
Scheme. The scheme is
an unfunded, defined
benefit scheme that
covers NHS employers,
general practices and
other bodies, allowed
under the direction of
Secretary of State, in
England and Wales. It
is not possible for the
Trust to identify its
share of the underlying
scheme liabilities. For
this reason, the scheme
is accounted for as a
defined contribution
scheme.
Employers pension
cost contributions are
charged to operating
expenses as they become
due.
The only additional
pension liabilities for
early retirements funded
by the scheme are those
where the retirement is
due to ill health. The full
amount of the liability
for the additional
costs is charged to the
operating expenses
when the Trust agrees

to the retirement,
regardless of the
method of payment.

1.4.2.2 LOCAL 			
GOVERNMENT PENSION
SCHEME
The Trust employs a
number of staff who
are members of the
Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).
These staff transferred
during 2013/2014
under TUPE following a
tender process for the
children’s respite service,
where some services
were previously run
by Northamptonshire
County Council (NCC).
The LGPS is a multiemployer pension
scheme and each
employer’s share of fund
assets and liabilities are
identifiable.
In accordance with IAS19
Employee Benefits the
scheme is accounted
for as a defined benefit
pension scheme as
follows:
• The Trust recognises its

share of assets within
the pension scheme
at fair value and its
liabilities at the present
value of the defined
benefit obligation to
the staff it employs in
the Foundation Trust
Accounts.
• The increase in the

liability arising from
the pensionable service
earned by the staff
during the financial year
is recognised within
operating expenses

in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
• The re-measurement

of the net defined
benefit liability (asset)
is recognised within
reserves and reported as
Other Comprehensive
Income in the Statement
of Comprehensive
Income. It comprises:
- Actuarial gains
and losses
- Return on
plan assets,
excluding
amounts
included in
net interest on
the net defined
benefit liability
(asset) and
- Any change
in the effect
of the asset
ceiling excluding
amounts
included in
net interest on
the net benefit
liability (asset)
The interest cost coming
from the unwinding
of the discount on the
scheme liabilities during
the financial year is
recognised within the
finance costs.
IAS19 requires that
all actuarial gains and
losses be recognised
immediately in
Taxpayers’ Equity. So,
actuarial gains and losses
happening during the
year as a result of the
re-measurement of the
defined benefit liability
are recognised in the
Income and Expenditure
Reserve reported
as an item of Other
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Comprehensive Income.
While IAS19 permits the
re-measurement of the
defined benefit liability
to be recognised as a
separate component
of Taxpayers’ Equity,
the Foundation
Trusts Annual Report
Manual requires it to
be recognised in the
Income and Expenditure
Reserve.
The net surplus or
deficit of the scheme
is recorded on the
Statement of Financial
Position (SoFP). This net
surplus or deficit is the
value of the schemes
assets allocated to the
Trust less the present
value of the schemes
liabilities plus or minus
the scheme actuarial
gains or losses.
IAS19 does not specify
whether an entity
should separate current
and non-current
portions of assets and
liabilities arising from
post-employment
benefits. The Trust has
chosen to include the
net surplus or deficit
on the pension scheme
within non-current
assets (where there is a
net surplus position) or
non-current liabilities
(where there is a net
deficit position).
Accounting for the
LGPS as a defined
benefit scheme under
IAS19 requires the Trust
to make a number
of assumptions. The
Trust has adopted
the assumptions
recommended by the

LGPS scheme actuary,
Hymans Robertson.
The IAS19 assumptions
and further information
is shown in Note 9.2 to
the accounts.

recognised in operating
expenses except where it
results in the creation of
a non-current asset such
as property, plant and
equipment.

1.6 PROPERTY, PLANT 		
AND EQUIPMENT

1.4.2.3 NATIONAL 		
EMPLOYMENT SAVINGS
TRUST (NEST)

1.6.1 RECOGNITION

The Pensions Act 2008
requires the Trust to
automatically enrol
all eligible staff into
a workplace pension
scheme.

Property, plant and
equipment is capitalised
where:

If staff meet the
eligibility criteria
for the NHS Pension
scheme they will be
automatically enrolled
into it. If staff are
eligible under auto
enrolment law but do
not meet the eligibility
criteria for the NHS
Pension scheme they
will be automatically
enrolled into the NEST
scheme, which is the
Trust’s designated
alternate scheme.

• It is probable that future

NEST is a defined
contribution pension
scheme and details of
the contributions paid
by the Trust on behalf of
employees are shown in
Note 9.3 to the accounts.

1.5 EXPENDITURE ON 		
OTHER GOODS 		
AND SERVICES
Expenditure on
goods and services is
measured at fair value
and is recognised
when they have been
received. Expenditure is

• It is used for delivering

services or for
administrative purposes
economic benefits
will flow to, or service
potential be provided to
the Trust
•

It is expected to be
used for more than one
financial year

• The cost of the item can

be measured reliably and
• The item has a cost of at

least £5,000 or
• Collectively, a number

of items have a cost
of at least £5,000 and
individually have a cost
of more than £250. The
assets are functionally
interdependent, were
purchased around the
same time, are expected
to have the same
disposal dates and are
under single managerial
control or
• Items are part of the

initial equipping and
setting-up cost of a new
building, ward or unit,
whatever their individual
or group cost.
Leased assets valued at
the start of the lease at
less than £5,000 will not

be capitalised and will
be expensed through
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
Where a large asset,
for example a building,
includes a number of
parts with significantly
different asset lives, e.g.
plant and equipment,
then these parts are
treated as separate
assets and depreciated
over their own useful
economic lives.

1.6.2 MEASUREMENT
1.6.2.1 VALUATION
All property, plant and
equipment assets are
measured to begin
with at cost, taking
into account the costs
involved in purchasing
or building the asset
and bringing it to the
location and in the
condition required for it
to do its job. All assets
are measured going
forward at valuation.
An item of property,
plant and equipment
which is surplus with
no plan to bring it back
into use is valued at fair
value under IFRS 13 fair
value measurement, if
it does not meet the
requirements of IAS 40
investment property or
IFRS 5 non-current assets
held for sale.
Land and buildings used
for the Trust’s services
or for administrative
purposes are shown
in the Statement of
Financial Position
at their revalued
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amounts, being the
fair value at the date
of revaluation less any
further depreciation and
impairment losses.
Revaluations are
performed regularly
to ensure that carrying
amounts are not
materially different from
those that would be
calculated at the end of
the reporting period.
Fair values are calculated
as follows:
• Land and non-specialised

buildings – market value
for existing use.
• Specialised buildings –

depreciated replacement
cost.
Until 31 March 2008, the
depreciated replacement
cost of specialised
buildings has been
estimated for an exact
replacement of the asset
in the same location. HM
Treasury has adopted a
standard approach to
depreciated replacement
cost valuations based
on modern equivalent
assets and, a different
site can be valued if it
still works for the service
being provided. HM
Treasury agreed that
NHS foundation trusts
must apply these new
valuation requirements
by 1 April 2010.
The Trust carried out
a valuation based on
modern equivalent
assets at 31 March 2014
and this is how the
properties are valued in
the Trust’s accounts. An
annual desktop review

of asset values is carried
out by an External
Valuer for the Trust
to make sure that any
significant changes are
identified and shown in
the accounts.
Properties being
built for service or
administration purposes
are carried at cost,
less any impairment
loss. Cost includes
professional fees but
not borrowing costs,
which are recognised as
expenses immediately,
as allowed by IAS23 for
assets held at fair value.
Assets are revalued and
depreciation begins
when they start to be
used.
Until 31 March 2008,
fixtures and equipment
were carried at
replacement cost, as
assessed by indexation
and depreciation of
historic cost. From 1
April 2008 indexation
ceased. The carrying
value of existing assets
at that date is being
written off over their
remaining useful lives.
From 1 April 2008,
new fixtures and
equipment are carried at
depreciated historic cost,
as this is not believed to
be materially different
from fair value.

1.6.2.2 SUBSEQUENT 		
EXPENDITURE
Further spending
relating to an item of
property, plant and
equipment is recognised
as an increase in the

carrying amount of the
asset when it is probable
that additional future
economic benefits or
service potential as a
result of the spending
to fix the item will be an
advantage to the Trust
and the item can be
valued reliably.
Where part of an asset
is replaced, the cost
of the replacement is
capitalised if it meets
the criteria above. The
carrying amount of
the part replaced is
derecognised.
Spending on repairs and
maintenance is charged
to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
at the time it happens as
this does not generate
extra benefits in the
future.

1.6.2.3 DEPRECIATION
Items of property,
plant and equipment
are depreciated over
their remaining useful
economic lives in a way
consistent with the
using up of economic or
service delivery benefits.

Information technology
5-10 years
Mainframe IT equipment
8 years
Fixtures and fittings		
5-10 years
Freehold land is
considered to have an
endless life and is not
depreciated.
Assets purchased using
finance leases are
depreciated over their
useful economic lives, or
where shorter, the lease
term.
Property, plant and
equipment that have
been reclassified as
Held for Sale stop being
depreciated when they
are reclassified.
Assets being built
and residual interests
in off-Statement of
Financial Position PFI
contract assets are not
depreciated, until the
asset is brought into use
or reverts to the Trust,
respectively.

1.6.2.4 REVALUATION 		
GAINS AND LOSSES

Revaluation gains
are recognised in the
revaluation reserve,
unless, they reverse a
revaluation decrease
that has already been
Buildings			
recognised in operating
determined by working
expenses, then they are
with an External Valuer
recognised in operating
Plant and machinery		
income.
5-15 years
The Trust has decided
the useful economic lives
for each category of
asset to be:

Medical and other
equipment
5-15 years
Transport equipment		
7 years

Revaluation losses
are charged to the
revaluation reserve
while there is an
available balance for
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the asset concerned, and
then they are charged to
operating expenses.
Gains and losses
recognised in the
revaluation reserve
are reported in
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
as an item of other
comprehensive income.

1.6.2.5 IMPAIRMENTS
In accordance with the
FT ARM, impairments
that clearly come
from the using up of
economic benefits or
service potential in the
asset are charged to
operating expenses. A
compensating transfer
is made from the
revaluation reserve
to the income and
expenditure reserve
of the lower of these
two amounts: (i) the
impairment charged
to operating expenses;
and (ii) the balance in
the revaluation reserve
identified to that asset
before the impairment.
An impairment that
arises from a clear using
up of economic benefit
or service potential
is reversed when,
the reason the loss
happened changes back
to the original state.
Reversals are recognised
in operating income by
restoring the asset to the
original carrying amount
it would have had if
the impairment had
never been recognised.
Any remaining reversal
is recognised in the
revaluation reserve. If a

transfer was made from
the revaluation reserve
to the income and
expenditure reserve at
the time of the original
impairment an amount
is transferred back to
the revaluation reserve
when the impairment
reversal is recognised.
Other impairments are
treated as revaluation
losses. Reversals of other
impairments are treated
as revaluation gains.

1.6.2.6 DE-RECOGNITION
Assets intended for
disposal are reclassified
as Held for Sale once all
of the following criteria
are met:
• The asset is available

for immediate sale in its
present condition subject
only to terms which are
normal for such sales
• The sale must be highly

probable i.e.:
- Management 		
are committed 		
to a plan to sell
the asset
- An active 		
programme has
begun to find
a buyer and 		
complete 		
the sale
- The asset is
being actively
marketed at a 		
reasonable price
-The sale
is expected to
be completed
within 12
months of the
date of
classification as
Held for Sale and

-The actions
needed to
complete the
plan indicate it
will go ahead
without major
changes
Following
reclassification, the
assets are measured
at the lower of their
existing carrying amount
and their fair value
minus the selling costs.
Depreciation stops
being charged and the
assets are not revalued,
except where the fair
value minus selling costs
becomes less than the
carrying amount.
Assets are de-recognised
when all material sale
contract conditions have
been met.
Property, plant and
equipment which is
to be scrapped or
demolished does not
qualify for recognition
as Held for Sale and
instead is retained as an
operational asset and
the asset’s economic life
is adjusted. The asset
is de-recognised when
scrapping or demolition
takes place.

1.6.3 DONATED, 		
GOVERNMENT GRANT 		
AND OTHER GRANT
FUNDED ASSETS
Donated and grant
funded property, plant
and equipment assets
are capitalised at their
fair value when received.
The donation/grant is
credited to income at
the same time, unless

the donor has laid down
a condition that the
future economic benefits
included in the grant
are to be used in a way
specified by the donor,
then, the donation/
grant is deferred within
liabilities and is carried
forward to future
financial years because
the condition has not
yet been met.
The donated and grant
funded assets are then
accounted for in the
same manner as other
items of property, plant
and equipment.

1.7 PRIVATE FINANCE
INITIATIVE (PFI)
TRANSACTIONS
PFI transactions
that meet the IFRIC
12 definition of a
service concession,
as interpreted in HM
Treasury’s FReM, are
accounted for as onStatement of Financial
Position by the Trust.
In accordance with
IAS17, the underlying
assets are recognised
as property, plant and
equipment at their fair
value, together with
an equivalent finance
lease liability. The
assets are accounted
for as property, plant
and equipment and/
or intangible assets as
appropriate.
The annual contract
payments are divided
between the repayment
of the liability, a finance
cost and the charges for
services.
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The service charge is
recognised in operating
expenses and the
finance cost is charged
to Finance Costs in
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

1.7.1 LIFECYCLE 		
REPLACEMENT
Parts of the asset
replaced by the operator
during the contract
(‘lifecycle replacement’)
are capitalised where
they meet the Trust’s
criteria for capital
expenditure. They
are capitalised at the
time they are provided
by the operator, as
planned within the PFI
operator’s model, and
are measured initially at
their fair value.
The part of the yearly
full payment allocated
to lifecycle replacement
is pre-determined for
each year of the contract
from the operator’s
planned programme of
lifecycle replacement.
No changes are made
for actual lifecycle costs
during the year or the
timing of those costs as
this is not practical or
cost effective and the
impact in year has been
confirmed as not being
material.
Any material changes
in asset values will be
identified through the
five yearly revaluations
of property, plant and
equipment.

1.8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1.8.1 RECOGNITION
Intangible assets are
non-monetary assets
without physical
substance that are
capable of being sold
separately from the rest
of the Trust’s business
or which come from
contractual or other
legal rights. They are
recognised only where
it is probable the Trust
will gain from future
economic benefits, or
service potential and
where the cost of the
asset can be measured
reliably.

1.8.2 INTERNALLY 		
GENERATED INTANGIBLE
ASSETS
Internally generated
goodwill, brands,
mastheads, publishing
titles, customer lists and
similar items are not
capitalised as intangible
assets.
Expenditure on research
is not capitalised.
Expenditure on
development is
capitalised when all of
the following can be
demonstrated:
• The project is technically

feasible to the point
of completion and will
result in an intangible
asset for sale or use
• The Trust intends to

complete the asset and
sell or use it
• The Trust has the ability

to sell or use the asset
• How the intangible asset

will generate probable

future economic or
service delivery benefits
e.g. the presence of
a market for it or its
output, or where it is to
be used for internal use,
the usefulness of the
asset
• Adequate financial,

technical and other
resources are available to
the Trust to complete the
development and sell or
use the asset and
• The Trust can measure

reliably the expenses
attributable to the asset
during development

1.8.3 SOFTWARE
Software that is essential
to the operation of
hardware, e.g. an
operating system, is
capitalised as part of
the item of property,
plant and equipment.
Software that is
not essential to the
operation of hardware,
e.g. application
software, is capitalised
as an intangible asset.

1.8.4 MEASUREMENT
Intangible assets are
recognised initially at
cost, made up of all
costs needed to create,
produce and prepare
the asset to the point
that it is able to operate
in the way required by
management.
Subsequently intangible
assets are measured
at current value in
existing use. Where no
market exists, intangible
assets are valued at the
lower of depreciated

replacement cost and
the value in use where
the asset is income
generating. Revaluation
gains and losses and
impairments are treated
in the same way as
for property, plant
and equipment. An
intangible asset which
is surplus with no plan
to bring it back into
use is valued at fair
value under IFRS 13 fair
value measurement, if
it does not meet the
requirements of IAS 40
investment property or
IFRS 5 non-current assets
held for sale.
Intangible assets held
for sale are measured
at the lower of their
carrying amount or fair
value minus selling costs.

1.8.5 AMORTISATION
Intangible assets
are amortised over
their expected useful
economic lives in a
way that takes into
account the using up
of economic or service
delivery benefits, which
is normally expected to
be at least five years.

1.9 REVENUE 			
GOVERNMENT AND 		
OTHER GRANTS
Government grants
are grants from
government bodies
other than income
from commissioners,
foundation trusts or NHS
trusts for the provision
of services. Where a
grant is used to fund
revenue expenditure it is

194

taken to the Statement
of Comprehensive
Income to match that
expenditure.

1.10 INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued
at the lower of cost
and net realisable
value. The cost of
inventories is measured
using the first in, first
out (FIFO) method.
This is considered
to be a reasonable
approximation to fair
value.

1.11 FINANCIAL 		
INSTRUMENTS AND 		
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
1.11.1 RECOGNITION
Financial assets and
financial liabilities which
come from contracts for
the purchase or sale of
non-financial items (such
as goods or services),
which are entered into
following the Trust’s
normal purchase, sale or
usage requirements, are
recognised when receipt
or delivery of the goods
or services is made.
Financial assets or
financial liabilities
for assets acquired or
disposed of through
finance leases are
recognised and
measured in line with
the accounting policy for
leases described below.
All other financial assets
and financial liabilities
are recognised when
the Trust becomes a
party to the contractual
provisions of the

instrument.

1.11.2 DE-RECOGNITION
All financial assets are
de-recognised when the
rights to receive cash
flows from the assets
have expired or the
Trust has transferred
substantially all of the
risks and rewards of
ownership.
Financial liabilities are
de-recognised when the
obligation is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

1.11.3 CLASSIFICATION
AND MEASUREMENT
Financial assets are
categorised as loans and
receivables.
Financial liabilities
are classified as other
financial liabilities.

1.11.4 FINANCIAL 		
ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH
INCOME AND 			
EXPENDITURE
Financial assets and
financial liabilities at
fair value through
income and expenditure
are financial assets or
financial liabilities held
for trading. A financial
asset or financial liability
is classified in this
category if acquired
principally for the
purpose of selling in the
short-term.
Derivatives are also
categorised as held for
trading unless they are
designated as hedges.

Derivatives which are
part of other contracts
but not closely related
to them are separatedout and measured in this
category.
Assets and liabilities
in this category are
classified as current
assets and current
liabilities.
These financial assets
and financial liabilities
are recognised initially
at fair value, with
transaction costs
expensed in the income
and expenditure
account. Later
movements in the fair
value are recognised
as gains or losses in
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
The Trust has not
accounted for any
financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair
value through income
and expenditure in this
period.

1.11.5 LOANS AND 		
RECEIVABLES
Loans and receivables
are non-derivative
financial assets with
fixed or determinable
payments which are
not quoted in an
active market. They
are included in current
assets.
The Trust’s loans
and receivables
comprise: current
investments, cash and
cash equivalents, NHS
debtors, accrued income
and other debtors.

Loans and receivables
are recognised initially
at fair value, net of
transaction costs, and
are later measured at
amortised cost, using
the effective interest
method. The effective
interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts
estimated future cash
receipts through the
expected life of the
financial asset or, when
appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net
carrying amount of the
financial asset.
Interest on loans
and receivables is
calculated using the
effective interest
method and credited
to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

1.11.6 AVAILABLE-FORSALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
Available-for-sale
financial assets are
non-derivative financial
assets, which are either
chosen to be in this
category or not classified
in any of the other
categories. They are
included in long-term
assets unless the Trust
plans to dispose of them
within 12 months of the
Statement of Financial
Position date.
Available-for-sale
financial assets are
recognised initially at
fair value, including
transaction costs, and
measured afterwards
at fair value, with gains
or losses recognised in
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reserves and reported
in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
as an item of other
comprehensive income.
When items classified
as available-for-sale are
sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised
are transferred from
reserves and recognised
in Finance Costs in
the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
The Trust has not
accounted for any
available-for-sale
financial assets in this
period.

1.11.7 OTHER FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES
All other financial
liabilities are recognised
initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs
incurred, and measured
afterwards at amortised
cost using the effective
interest method.
The effective interest
rate is the rate that
discounts exactly
estimated future cash
payments through the
expected life of the
financial liability or,
when appropriate, a
shorter period, to the
net carrying amount of
the financial liability.
Other financial liabilities
are included in current
liabilities. Amounts
due to be paid more
than 12 months after
the Statement of
Financial Position date
are classified as longterm liabilities. Interest

on financial liabilities
carried at amortised
cost is calculated using
the effective interest
method and charged to
Finance Costs. Interest
on financial liabilities
taken out to finance
property, plant and
equipment or intangible
assets is not capitalised
as part of the cost of
those assets.

1.11.8 DETERMINATION
OF FAIR VALUE
For financial assets
and financial liabilities
carried at fair value,
the carrying amounts
are decided as is right
for the item being
recognised.

1.12 IMPAIRMENT OF 		
FINANCIAL ASSETS
At the Statement of
Financial Position date,
the Trust checks whether
any financial assets,
apart from those held
at fair value through
income and expenditure
are impaired. Financial
assets are impaired and
impairment losses are
recognised only if, there
is fair information of
impairment as a result
of one or more events
taking place after the
initial recognition of the
asset and which has an
impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the
asset.
For financial assets
carried at amortised
cost, the amount of
the impairment loss
is measured as the

difference between the
asset’s carrying amount
and the present value
of the revised future
cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.
The loss is recognised
in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income
and the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced
through the use of a bad
debt provision.
Where there is any
uncertainty that
a financial asset is
impaired, a bad debt
provision is used to
reduce the carrying
amount of the asset. The
value of the bad debt
provision is calculated by
looking at the chances
of collection.
Where it is certain
that a financial asset is
impaired, any loss not
previously included in
the bad debt provision
is recognised directly
through the Statement
of Comprehensive
Income at the time it is
known.

1.13 LEASES
1.13.1 FINANCE LEASES –
THE TRUST AS LESSEE
Where substantially all
risks and rewards of
ownership of a leased
asset are borne by
the Trust, the asset is
recorded as property,
plant and equipment
and a corresponding
liability is recorded.
The value at which both
are recognised is the

lower of the fair value of
the asset or the present
value of the minimum
lease payments,
discounted using the
interest rate implicit in
the lease. The asset and
liability are recognised
at the start of the lease.
After this, the asset is
accounted for as an item
of property plant and
equipment.
The annual rental is split
between the repayment
of the liability and a
finance cost so that a
constant rate of finance
over the life of the lease
can be achieved. The
annual finance cost is
charged to Finance Costs
in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
The lease liability is derecognised when the
liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

1.13.2 FINANCE LEASES –
THE TRUST AS LESSOR
Amounts due from
lessee under finance
leases are recorded
as receivables at the
amount of the Trust’s
net investment in the
leases. Finance lease
income is allocated
to accounting periods
to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return
on the Trust’s net
investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

1.13.3 OPERATING
LEASES – THE TRUST AS
LESSEE
Other leases are
regarded as operating
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leases and the rentals
are charged to operating
expenses on a straightline basis over the term
of the lease. Operating
lease incentives received
are added to the lease
rentals and charged to
operating expenses over
the life of the lease.

1.13.4 OPERATING
LEASES – THE TRUST AS
LESSOR
Rental income from
operating leases is
recognised on a straightline basis over the term
of the lease. Initial
direct costs, incurred
in negotiating and
arranging an operating
lease, are added to
the carrying value of
the leased asset and
recognised on a straightline basis over the lease
term.

1.13.5 LEASES OF LAND
AND BUILDINGS
Where a lease is for
land and buildings, the
land part is separated
from the building part
and the classification
for each is judged
separately.

1.14 PROVISIONS
The Trust recognises
a provision where it
currently has a legal or
constructive obligation
without knowing the
time or amount, for
which it is probable that
there will be a financial
or resource cost, and a
reliable estimate can be
calculated. The amount

recognised in the
Statement of Financial
Position is the best
estimate of the resources
required to settle the
obligation. Where the
effect of the time value
of money is significant,
the estimated riskadjusted cash flows are
discounted using the
discount rate published
and mandated by HM
Treasury.
The receivable is
recognised as an asset
if it is virtually certain
that some or all of
the economic benefits
needed to settle a
provision will be
recovered from a third
party and the amount
of the receivable can be
measured reliably.
Present obligations
arising under onerous
contracts are recognised
and measured as a
provision. An onerous
contract is one where
the Trust has a contract
where the unavoidable
costs of meeting the
obligations under the
contract exceed the
economic benefits
expected to be received
under it.

1.14.1 CLINICAL 		
NEGLIGENCE COSTS
The Trust pays an
annual contribution
to the NHS Litigation
Authority (NHSLA)
which operates a risk
pooling scheme. The
NHSLA in return settles
all clinical negligence
claims. Although the

NHSLA is responsible
for the administration
of all clinical negligence
cases, the legal liability
remains with the Trust.
The total value of clinical
negligence provisions
carried by the NHSLA
on behalf of the Trust is
disclosed at note 32 but
is not recognised in the
Trust’s accounts.

1.14.2 NON-CLINICAL 		
RISK POOLING
The Trust takes part in
the Property Expenses
Scheme and the
Liabilities to Third
Parties Scheme. Both
are risk pooling schemes
where the Trust pays
an annual contribution
to the NHSLA and
in return receives
assistance with the costs
of claims arising. The
annual membership
contributions, and any
excesses payable in
respect of particular
claims, are charged to
operating expenses
when the liability arises.

1.15 CONTINGENCIES
Contingent assets
(assets arising from
past events whose
existence will only be
confirmed by one or
more future events
not entirely within the
entity’s control) are not
recognised as assets, but
are disclosed in note
33.2 where an inflow
of economic benefits is
probable.
Contingent liabilities
are not recognised, but
are disclosed in note

33.1, unless a transfer
of economic benefits
is unlikely. Contingent
liabilities are defined as:
• Possible obligations

coming from past events
which will only exist if
one or more uncertain
future events happen
and the entity is not in
full control or
• Present obligations

coming from past events
where a transfer of
economic benefits is
unlikely or where the
amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with
enough reliability
1.16 Public dividend
capital
Public dividend capital
(PDC) is a type of public
sector equity finance
based on the excess of
assets over liabilities
when the NHS Trust was
formed. HM Treasury has
decided that PDC is not
a financial instrument
within the meaning of
IAS32.
A charge, reflecting the
cost of capital used by
the Trust, is payable as
a dividend. The charge
is calculated at the rate
set by HM Treasury
(currently 3.5%) on
the average relevant
net assets of the Trust
during the financial year.
Relevant net assets are
calculated as the value
of all assets less the
value of all liabilities,
except for (i) donated
assets (including lottery
funded assets), (ii)
average daily cash
balances held with the
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Government Banking
Services (GBS) and
National Loans Fund
(NLF) deposits, excluding
cash balances held in
GBS accounts that relate
to a short-term working
capital facility, and
(iii) any PDC dividend
balance receivable or
payable.
Under the requirements
laid down by the
Department of Health
(as the issuer of PDC),
the dividend for the
year is calculated on the
actual average relevant
net assets as set out in
the pre-audit version of
the annual accounts. The
dividend is not revised
should any change
to net assets occur
following the audit of
the annual accounts.

1.17 VALUE ADDED TAX
(VAT)
Most of the activities
of the Trust are outside
the scope of VAT and, in
general, output tax does
not apply and input
tax on purchases is not
recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is
charged to the relevant
expenditure category
or included in the
capitalised purchase cost
of fixed assets. Where
output tax is charged or
input VAT is recoverable,
the amounts are stated
net of VAT.

1.18 CORPORATION TAX
NHS foundation trusts
must pay corporation
tax if they are delivering

large scale commercial
activities that are not
part of core health care
delivery, like running a
commercial laundry.
The majority of the
Trust’s income is core
health care and so
corporation tax was not
payable by the Trust in
2015/2016.

1.19 FOREIGN
EXCHANGE
The Trust uses and
presents its figures in
sterling.
A transaction, which
is valued in a foreign
currency, is translated
into sterling at the spot
exchange rate on the
date of the transaction.
Where the Trust has
assets or liabilities
valued in a foreign
currency at the
Statement of Financial
Position date:
• Monetary items

(other than financial
instruments measured
at fair value through
income and expenditure)
are translated at the spot
exchange rate on 31
March
• Non-monetary assets

and liabilities measured
at historical cost are
translated using the spot
exchange rate at the
date of the transaction
and
• Non-monetary assets and

liabilities measured at
fair value are translated
using the spot exchange
rate at the date the fair
value was decided

Exchange gains or losses
on monetary items
(arising on settlement
of the transaction or
on re-translation at the
Statement of Financial
Position date) are
recognised in income or
expense in the period
when they arise.
Exchange gains or
losses on non-monetary
assets and liabilities are
recognised in the same
manner as other gains
and losses on these
items.

1.20 THIRD PARTY 		
ASSETS
Assets belonging to
third parties (such as
money held on behalf
of patients) are not
recognised in the
accounts since the Trust
has no beneficial interest
in them. However,
they are published in
a separate note to the
accounts following the
requirements of HM
Treasury’s FReM.

1.21 LOSSES AND 		
SPECIAL PAYMENTS
Losses and special
payments are items that
Parliament would not
have considered when
it agreed funds for the
health service or created
new laws. By their
nature they are items
that ideally should not
arise. They are therefore
subject to special control
procedures compared
with the generality of
payments. They are
divided into different

categories, which guide
the way that individual
cases are handled.
Losses and special
payments are charged
to the relevant
functional headings
in expenditure on an
accrual basis, including
losses which would
have been recovered
through insurance had
the Trust not been
bearing their own
risks (with insurance
premiums then being
included as normal
revenue expenditure).
However the losses and
special payments note
is put together directly
from the losses and
compensations register,
which reports on an
accrual basis with the
exception of provisions
for future losses.

1.22 TRANSFERS OF
FUNCTIONS TO/FROM
OTHER NHS/LOCAL
GOVERNMENT BODIES
The assets and liabilities
for functions that have
been transferred to the
Trust from another NHS
/ local government body
are recognised in the
accounts at the date of
the transfer. The assets
and liabilities are not
adjusted to fair value
prior to recognition.
The net gain or loss
corresponding to the
net assets/liabilities
transferred is recognised
within income/expenses,
but not within operating
activities.
For property, plant and
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equipment assets and
intangible assets, the
cost and accumulated
depreciation/
amortisation balances
from the transferring
entity’s accounts are
kept on recognition in
the Trust’s accounts.
Where the transferring
body recognised
revaluation reserve
balances attributable
to the assets, the Trust
makes a transfer from its
income and expenditure
reserve to its revaluation
reserve to maintain
transparency within
public sector accounts.
For functions that the
Trust has transferred
to another NHS/local
government body, the
assets and liabilities
transferred are derecognised from the
accounts at the date of
the transfer.
The net gain/loss
corresponding to the
net assets/liabilities
transferred is recognised
within expenses/
income but not within
operating activities.
Any revaluation reserve
balances attributable
to assets de-recognised
are transferred to the
income and expenditure
reserve.

1.23 CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
In the application of
the Trust’s accounting

policies, management
is required to make
judgments, estimates
and assumptions about
the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities
that are not obvious
from other sources.
The estimates and
associated assumptions
are based on historical
experience and other
factors that are helpful.
Actual results may differ
from those estimates
and the estimates and
underlying assumptions
are continually
reviewed.
Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised
in the period they affect
when the estimate is
revised. That may be
only one period, or
in the period of the
revision and future
periods.

1.23.1 CRITICAL
JUDGEMENTS IN
APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICES
The following are the
critical judgments, apart
from those involving
estimations (see below)
that management has
made in the process
of applying the Trust’s
accounting policies and
that have the biggest
effect on the amounts
included in the financial
statements.

1.23.1.1 DEPRECIATION
OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
Judgments are required
to give useful lives

and residual values to
property, plant and
equipment. Key sources
of those values are
based on regular studies
of actual asset lives and
the intended use for
those assets. Changes
in technology or the
condition of the asset
may mean that the
actual life or remaining
value is different to the
estimate. Where the
Trust decides that the
useful life of property,
plant and equipment
should be shortened or
residual value reduced,
it depreciates the net
book value in excess of
the residual value over
the revised remaining
useful life, as a result
increasing depreciation
expense. Any change
in an asset’s life or
residual value is shown
in the Trust’s financial
statements when the
change in estimate is
decided.

1.23.1.2 IMPAIRMENT
OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The identification of
impairment indicators
and the deciding of the
recoverable amount
for assets need good
judgment concerning
the identification and
proof of impairment
indicators. Key sources
on impairment
indicators are found
externally and internally.
External sources of
information may be:
1. During the period,

an asset’s market value
has declined a lot more
than would be expected
during normal use over
time
2. Significant changes
in technology and
regulatory environments
and
3. Significant dips in the
economy
Internal sources of
information may be:
4. Out of date or
physical damage
5. Not able to perform
to the expected level
now or in the future and
6. Large changes in the
use of its assets or the
strategy for its overall
use
The Trust decides
any impairment by
comparing the carrying
values of assets to their
net realisable value.
Net realisable value
represents fair value
as assessed through
valuation on a modern
equivalent assets basis.

1.23.1.3 REVENUE 		
RECOGNITION
Revenue, which does
not include discounts,
represents the amount
due for services provided
to customers and is
accounted for on an
accrual basis to match
revenue with the
provision of service.
Revenue is recognised
monthly as services are
provided. Where services
are invoiced in advance,
revenue is deferred
and recognised when
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the service is delivered.
Revenue for unbilled
services is accrued.
Judgment is required in
how these principles are
applied and the specific
guidance for Trust
revenues.

1.23.1.4 FAIR VALUE 		
ESTIMATION
The fair value of
financial instruments
that are not traded
in an active market
is agreed by using
valuation techniques.
The Trust uses a variety
of methods and makes
assumptions that are
based on the market
conditions at each
statement of financial
position date.
In the application of
the Trust’s accounting
policies, management
is required to make
judgments, estimates
and assumptions about
the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities
that are not obvious
from other sources.
The estimates and
associated assumptions
are based on historical
experience and other
helpful factors. Actual
results may differ
from those estimates
and the estimates and
underlying assumptions
are continually
reviewed.
Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised
in the period they affect,
when the estimate is
revised. That may be
only one period or in the

period of the revision
and future periods.
The nominal value
less estimated credit
adjustments of trade
receivables and
payables are assumed to
approximate their fair
values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting
the future contractual
cash flows at the current
market interest rate
that is available to the
Trust for similar financial
instruments.
The following are the
critical judgments, apart
from those involving
estimations (see below)
that management has
made in the process
of applying the Trust’s
accounting policies and
that have the largest
effect on the amounts
included in the financial
statements.

1.23.2 KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
1.23.2.1 PROVISIONS
The identification of
impairment indicators
and the deciding of the
recoverable amount
for assets need good
judgment concerning
the identification and
proof of impairment
indicators. Key sources
on impairment
indicators are found
externally and internally.

1.24 CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash is cash in hand
and deposits with any
financial institution
repayable without
penalty on notice of not
more than 24 hours.
Cash equivalents are
investments that mature
in three months or
less from the date of
acquisition and that are
easy to cash with very
little risk of change in
value.

• IAS 27 (amendment)

In the Statement of Cash
Flows, cash and cash
equivalents are shown
net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on
demand and that form
a key part of the Trust’s
cash management.

disclosure initiative

1.25 ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS AND
AMENDMENTS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET ADOPTED
The following standards
and interpretations
have been issued by the
International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB)
but have not yet been
adopted in the FT ARM.
They do not need to be
applied in the 2015/2016
financial statements of
the Trust.

– equity method in
separate financial
statements
• IFRS 10 (amendment)

and IAS 28 (amendment)
– sale of contribution of
assets
• IFRS 10 (amendment)

and IAS 28 (amendment)
– investment
entities applying the
consolidation exception
• IAS 1 (amendment) –
• IFRS 15 revenue from

contracts with customers
• Annual improvements to

IFRS: 2012-15 cycle

1.26 ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS ISSUED
THAT HAVE BEEN
ADOPTED EARLY
There are no accounting
standards issued that
have been adopted early
for this financial period.

• IFRS9 Financial

Instruments
• IFRS 11 (amendment) –

acquisition of an interest
in a joint operation
• IAS 16 (amendment) and

IAS 38 (amendment)
– depreciation and
amortisation
• IAS 16 (amendment) and

IAS 41 (amendment) –
bearer plants
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2. OPERATING SEGMENTS
The Foundation Trust operates under only one material segment which is healthcare and income is
almost totally for the supply of services.
Management information is produced on a monthly basis to enable the chief operating decision maker to make
informed decisions on the allocation of resources.
Under IFRS 8, reporting segments para 13, the quantitative threshold is 10% or more of combined revenue in
determining a segment.
Non-patient care income is 5.3% (6.1% in 2014/2015) and therefore disclosure is not required.

3. INCOME GENERATION ACTIVITIES
The Foundation Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in
patient care.
The Foundation Trust does not have any income generation activities whose full cost exceeds £1 million in a full year or
is otherwise material. Income from the sale of goods is immaterial.

4. REVENUE FROM PATIENT CARE ACTIVITIES
4.1 OPERATING INCOME BY SOURCE
2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

987

981

149,249

154,100

1,473

1,201

25,458

12,067

NHS:
NHS trusts
CCGs and NHS England
Foundation trusts
Non-NHS:
Local authorities (healthcare services)
Other*

1,722

2,661

178,889

171,010

*Other includes:
CAN
Miscellaneous

1,400

309

1,722

2,661

The Foundation Trust has no income from the injury cost recovery scheme (nil to 31 March 2015).
There was no income arising from exchange of goods / services (nil to 31 March 2015).

2,352

322

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

77,126

73,523

2,740

4,558

Income from CCGs and NHS England

79,486

79,661

Income not from CCGs, NHS England

19,537

13,268

0

0

4.2 OPERATING INCOME BY NATURE
Mental health trusts
Block contract income
Other clinical income from mandatory services
Community trusts (any trusts providing community services)

All Trusts
Private patient income

0

0

178,889

171,010

Other clinical income
Total income from activities

All income from activities has been deemed to have arisen from commissioner requested services.
2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

0

0

Total patient related income

178,889

171,010

Proportion (as percentage)

0%

0%

4.3 PRIVATE PATIENT INCOME
Private patient income

4.4 INCOME FROM OVERSEAS VISITORS (RELATING TO PATIENTS CHARGED DIRECTLY BY THE
FOUNDATION TRUST)
The foundation trust did not have any income from overseas visitors in 2015/2016 (2014/2015 £nil).
2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

608

561

Education and training

2,638

2,730

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure

1,259

1,193

572

321

0

0

5.OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Research and development

Non-patient care services to other bodies
Income generation
Profit on disposal of land and buildings
Rental revenue from operating leases
Income in respect of staff where accounted on a gross basis
Reversal of impairments of property, plant and equipment
Other revenue*

0

0

159

142

482

627

1,024

2,166

3,259

3,403

10,001

11,143

261

203

1,472

2,017

837

533

* Other revenue includes:
Canteen income
Recharges
Property Services
Miscellaneous

689

650

3,259

3,403

6. OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Employee expenses - executive directors
Employee expenses - non-executive directors
Other employee benefits
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs)
Supplies and services - general
Establishment
Research and development (not included in employee expenses)
Research and development (included in employee expenses)
Transport - business travel only
Transport - other
Premises - business rates payable to local authorities
Premises - other
Increase/(decrease) in impairment of receivables
Increase in other provisions
Inventories written down
Drug costs (non-inventory drugs only)
Inventories consumed (excluding drugs)
Drugs inventories consumed
Rentals under operating leases - minimum lease payments
Rentals under operating leases - contingent rent
Rentals under operating leases - sublease receipts
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation on intangible assets
Impairments of property, plant and equipment
Impairments and reversals of intangible assets
Audit fees payable to the external auditors:
- audit services - statutory audit
- other auditor remuneration (external auditor only)
Clinical negligence - amounts payable to the NHSLA (premiums)
Clinical negligence - excesses payable and premiums (alternative insurer)
Loss on disposal of intangible fixed assets
Loss on disposal of land and buildings
Loss on disposal of other property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of assets held for sale
Legal fees
Consultancy services
Internal audit costs (not included in employee expenses)
Training courses and conferences
Patient travel
Car parking and security
Redundancy (not included in employee expenses)
Redundancy (included in employee expenses)
Early retirements (not included in employee expenses)
Early retirements (included in employee expenses)
Hospitality
Publishing
Insurance
Other services, external payroll, IM&T
Losses, ex gratia and special payments (not included in employee expenses)
Losses, ex gratia and special payments (included in employee expenses) *
Other

2015/2016
£000
4,234
1,025
120
128,562
8,567
2,848
2,157
47
619
2,652
320
576
8,331
85
0
0
7,353
0
0
4,569
0
0
4,323
283
433
0

Restated
2014/2015
£000
621
1,065
120
127,046
7,889
2,489
2,163
86
309
2,732
357
424
9,487
(65)
0
0
7,174
0
0
4,102
0
0
4,825
11
591
0

61
24
241
0
49
0
1
0
217
929
153
480
130
94
0
2,144
0
0
0
109
78
3,965
24
0
628
186,431

64
60
254
0
0
0
47
0
281
902
145
923
122
71
0
2,032
0
0
0
121
84
104
123
304
362
177,425

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

* = Voluntary Severance Scheme (VSS) expenditure and is disclosed in employee costs (note 8).
Restated

6.1 OTHER AUDIT REMUNERATION (PAID TO THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR)
The auditing of accounts of any associate of the Foundation Trust
Audit-related assurance services

0

0

12

10

0

0

12

9

Internal audit services

0

0

All assurance services not falling within the lines above

0

0

Corporate finance transaction services not falling within the lines above

0

0

All other non-audit services not falling within the lines above

0

41

24

60

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

500

500

Taxation compliance services
All taxation advisory services not falling within the line above

Total

6.2 LIMITATION ON AUDITOR LIABILITY
Limitation on auditor's liability

7. OPERATING LEASES
7.1 AS LESSEE
The significant lease arrangements where the Foundation Trust is the lessee relate to lease of buildings and office equipment
(photocopiers) over various lease periods.
Renewal and any restrictions imposed by the lease arrangement will be as per the individual lease agreements held by the
relevant managers within the Foundation Trust.
Limited purchase options are available as per the lease contracts.
2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

4,569

4,102

0

0

Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Contingent rents
Less: sub-lease payments received
Total

0

0

4,569

4,102

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

Total future minimum lease payments
Payable:
3,075

2,833

Between one and five years

429

696

After five years

100

143

3,604

3,672

Not later than one year

Total
No future sublease payments are expected to be received.

7.2 AS LESSOR
The leasing arrangements where the Foundation Trust is lessor relate to leasing of vacant areas of buildings where the
Foundation Trust is the owner or the main occupier.
2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

Rental Revenue
Minimum lease receipts

159

142

Contingent rent

0

0

Other

0

0

159

142

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

Not later than one year

156

113

Between one and five years

243

243

60

121

459

477

Total rental revenue

Total future minimum lease payments
Receivable:

After five years
Total

8. EMPLOYEE COSTS AND NUMBERS
Total

Other

£000

Permanently
employed
£000

95,229

87,661

7,568

8.1 EMPLOYEE COSTS
2015/2016
Salaries and wages
Social security costs

£000

7,101

6,596

505

12,165

11,670

495

108

8

100

Other post-employment benefits

0

0

0

Other employment benefits

0

0

0

2,144

2,144

0

Agency / contract staff

15,710

0

15,710

Total gross staff costs

132,457

108,079

24,378

0

0

0

132,457

108,079

24,378

Salaries and wages

96,620

89,574

7,046

Social security costs

7,862

7,358

504

12,133

11,662

471

Employer contributions to NHS Pension Scheme
Other pension costs

Termination benefits (on an accruals basis)

Less income where netted off expenditure
Total staff costs
2014/2015

Employer contributions to NHS Pension Scheme
Other pension costs

138

138

0

Other post-employment benefits

0

0

0

Other employment benefits

0

0

0

2,336

2,336

0

Agency / contract staff

11,806

0

11,806

Total gross staff costs

130,895

111,068

19,827

0

0

0

130,895

111,068

19,827

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

Termination benefits (on an accruals basis)

Less income where netted off expenditure
Total staff costs
Of the total above:
Employee benefits charged to capital
Employee benefits charged to revenue
Total

107

139

132,350

130,756

132,457

130,895

Total

Permanently
employed

Number

Number

Number

102

102

0

0

0

0

Administration and estates

526

526

0

Healthcare assistants and other support staff

702

702

0

1,067

1,067

0

19

19

0

519

519

0

0

0

0

Agency and contract staff

362

0

362

Bank staff

348

8.2 AVERAGE NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED
2015/2016
Medical and dental
Ambulance staff

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff

Other

348

0

Other

0

0

0

Total

3,645

2,935

710

3

2

1

116

116

0

Number of employees engaged on capital projects
2014/2015
Medical and dental
Ambulance staff

0

Administration and estates

572

572

0

Healthcare assistants and other support staff

708

708

0

1,030

1,030

0

29

29

0

498

498

0

0

0

0

Nursing, midwifery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwifery and health visiting learners
Scientific, therapeutic and technical staff
Social care staff
Agency and contract staff

319

0

319

Bank staff

328

0

328

Other
Total
Number of employees engaged on capital projects

0

0

0

3,600

2,953

647

4

3

1

8.3 STAFF EXIT PACKAGES

Exit package cost band (number)
2015/2016
<£10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001-£150,000
£150,001-£200,000
>£200,000
Total
2014/2015
<£10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001-£150,000
£150,001-£200,000
>£200,000
Total

Exit package cost band (value)

No. of
compulsory
redundancies

No. of
departures
No. of other
where special
Total no. of
departures
payments
agreed exit packages
have been
by cost band
(restated)
made

0
5
4
6
1
0
0
16

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
5
4
6
1
0
0
16

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

6
24
28
24
7
4
4
97

8
16
1
0
0
0
0
25

14
40
29
24
7
4
4
122

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

Value of
other
departures Total value of
agreed exit packages
by cost band
(restated)
£000
£000

Cost of
special
payment
element
included in
exit packages
£000

Value of
compulsory
redundancies
£000

2015/2016
<£10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001-£150,000
£150,001-£200,000
>£200,000
Total

0
109
114
451
133
0
0
807

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
109
114
451
133
0
0
807

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

2014/2015
<£10,000
£10,000 - £25,000
£25,001-£50,000
£50,001-£100,000
£100,001-£150,000
£150,001-£200,000
>£200,000
Total

44
391
1,129
1,623
862
676
1,024
5,749

48
228
41
0
0
0
0
317

92
619
1,170
1,623
862
676
1,024
6,066

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

The compulsory redundancies relate to implementation of the required efficiency programme.
The Foundation Trust also implemented a local Mutually Agreed Resignation Scheme (MARS) during 2014/2015 called the
Voluntary Severance Scheme (VSS) figures for which are included within other departures agreed column.
Exit packages in this note are accounted for on an accruals basis.

8.4 EXIT PACKAGES - OTHER (NON-COMPULSORY)
Exit packages in 2015/2016 - other (non-compulsory)

Payments
agreed

Total value of
agreements

Number

£000

Voluntary redundancies inc. early retirement contractual costs

0

0

Mutually agreed resignation scheme (MARS) contractual costs

0

0

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

0

0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders

0

0

Non-contractual payments requiring HM Treasury approval

0

0

Total

0

0

There were no non-contractual payments made to individuals where the payment value was more that 12 months of their
annual salary.
Payments
Total value of
agreed
agreements
(Restated)
(Restated)
Exit packages in 2014/2015 - other (non-compulsory)

Number

£000

Voluntary redundancies inc. early retirement contractual costs

0

0

Mutually agreed resignation scheme (MARS) contractual costs

25

317

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs

0

0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice

0

0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders

0

0

Non-contractual payments requiring HM Treasury approval

0

0

25

317

Total

There were no non-contractual payments made to individuals where the payment value was more that 12 months of their
annual salary.

8.5 TERMINATION BENEFITS
During 2015/2016, contracts were terminated for 16 staff (121 in 2014/2015) at a cost of £807k
(£6,066k in 2014/2015).

8.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
There are no other employee benefits.

8.7 DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
The aggregate directors' remuneration is £835,488 (£879,811 to 31 March 2015). Directors' employers contributions to the
pension scheme is £84,230 (£97,626 to 31 March 2015). Directors' employers national insurance contributions is £105,001
(£109,805 to 31 March 2015). All bar one of the directors are members of the defined benefit scheme. Further detailed
information is available in the Foundation Trust's annual report.

9. PENSION COSTS
9.1 NHS PENSION SCHEME
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pensions Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and
rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined
benefit schemes that covers NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of
State, in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of
the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme:
the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the
In order that the defined benefit obligations in the financial statements do not differ materially from those that would be
determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that "the period between formal valuations
shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years". An outline of these follows:
a) Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into
account their recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers.
The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2012.
The scheme regulations were changed to allow contribution rates to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the
consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer
b) Accounting valuation
A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary's Department) as
at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with
updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures
for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability at 31 March 2016, is based on the validation data as at 31
March 2015, updated to 31 March 2016 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of the annual
NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

c) Scheme provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide only, and is not
intended to detail all the benefits provided by the scheme or the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be
obtained.
The scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of the best of the
last three year's pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of
membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total
pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service.
With effect from 1 April 2008, members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free lump sum,
up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new provision is known as 'pension commutation'.
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes
in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 2011/2012 the Consumer Price
Index (CPI) will be used to replace the Retail Prices Index (RPI).
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently incapable of
fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in
service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full
amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.
Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase additional voluntary contributions
(AVCs) run by the scheme's approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.

9.2 LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME (LGPS)
Under TUPE, following a tender process for the children’s respite service, 31 staff working for Northamptonshire County Council
(NCC) transferred to the trust as members of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS). The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory
scheme which provides its members with defined benefits relating to pay and service. The scheme is administered by NCC in
accordance with LGPS Regulations. The trust became a contributing member of the LGPS with effect from 1 August 2013 when the
children’s respite service transferred.
In accordance with LGPS regulations the pension liabilities for the staff who transferred to NHFT (who are active members of the
LGPS scheme) also transferred to the trust on 1 August 2013. The pension liabilities were calculated by the LGPS actuary, Hymans
Robertson LLP, at the date of transfer as £1.2 million, calculated on a ‘funding’ basis. As part of the admission agreement into the
LGPS NHFT were admitted on a ‘fully funded’ basis into a closed scheme which means that new joiners are not permitted to join
the LGPS. As such £1.2 million of assets also transferred from NCC to NHFT at 1 August 2013 to match the liability at the date of
transfer. Due to differences between 'funding' and International Accounting Standard 19 Employee Benefit (IAS19) assumptions,
the gross pension liability that NHFT recognised in its accounts at 1 August 2013 is £1.4 million. As such the net IAS19 pension
liability as at 1 August 2013, and therefore the opening position, was £0.2 million.

Employer contribution rates are determined by the scheme’s actuary based on triennial actuarial valuations, with the last formal
actuarial valuation at 31 March 2013. In accordance with IAS19, the determination of the present value of the net defined benefit
asset or liability is to be carried out with sufficient regularity such that the amounts recognised in the financial statements do not
differ materially from those that would be determined at end of the reporting period. In line with this and the LGPS Regulations
2008, the LGPS fund is required to undertake triennial actuarial valuations at intervals no longer than three years, to provide a
‘health check’ on the viability of the fund.
IAS 19 establishes that the cost of providing employee benefits should be recognised in the period in which the benefit is earned
by the employee. Therefore the financial statements of an employer, i.e. NHFT, should reflect a liability when employees have
provided a service in exchange for benefits to be paid in the future. This is in contrast to the cashflow for contributions to the
scheme which are reassessed with every triennial actuarial valuation.
The LGPS is a ‘multi-employer’ defined benefit final salary scheme but where the scheme assets and liabilities attributable to each
employer can be identified. Therefore NHFT will only recognise its share of LGPS assets (at fair value) and its share of the LGPS
defined benefit obligation (at present value) in its accounts.
The present value of liabilities of LGPS liabilities attributable to NHFT are recorded in the SoFP on an actuarial basis using the
‘projected unit credit method’, i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits
earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of
earnings for current employees.
This requires benefit to be attributed to the current period (to determine current service cost) and the current and prior periods
(to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation).
The assumptions used by the LGPS actuary, Hymans Robertson, in calculating NHFT’s liabilities and assets are shown below (details
taken from the Hymans Robertson report ‘Actuarial Valuation as at 31 March 2016 for IAS 19 purposes’).

Financial assumptions
Discount rate
Pension increase
Salary increase
Discount rate:

2015/2016
3.6%
2.2%
4.2%

2014/2015
3.3%
2.5%
4.4%

1 Aug 2013
4.6%
2.8%
4.6%

The fund liabilities are essentially the benefits promised to fund members upon retirement or death. The valuation places a
present value of these liabilities in order to assess the funds needed to meet the benefits as they fall due. For this purpose,
liabilities are discounted to their net present value using a discount rate determined by the yield on AA corporate bonds. A
discount rate of 3.6% is assumed in the Schedule of Results March 2016 (3.3% Schedule of Results March 2015).
Price inflation/pension increases

Retail Price Inflation (RPI) is typically derived from the market expectation of long term future inflation as measured by the
difference between yields on fixed and index-linked government bonds at the valuation date and should be consistent with the
derivation of the discount rate.

The pension increase assumption is in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and will be calculated as RPI less 1.0% p.a. (0.9%
2014/2015).
The change in the assumption gap between RPI and CPI reflects the view from the Office of National Statistics about the 'formula
effect', the key component of the difference between RPI and CPI.
Salary growth is assumed to increase by RPI plus 1.0%.

With effect from 2011, the UK Government announced that pension increases or revaluations for public sector schemes should be
based on the Consumer Prices Index (CPI) measure of price inflation, rather than the Retail Prices Index (RPI) measure of price
inflation. The assumption is taken from the Schedule of Results 2016.
To validate the assumptions used above by the LGPS actuary, the following statistics have been noted:
- CPI at March 2016 was 0.5% (Office of National Statistics) which compares to 2.8% at March 2013 when the assumptions were
based and 0.0% at March 2015.
- RPI at March 2015 was 1.6% (Office of National Statistics) which compares to 3.3% at March 2013 when the assumptions were
based and 0.9% at March 2015.

Expected return on asset by category:

2015/2016 2014/2015

Equities

2.9%

2.9%

Bonds

4.7%

4.7%

Property

5.9%

5.9%

Cash

4.3%

4.3%

The expected return on assets is based on the long term future expected investment return for each asset class as at the beginning
of the period. The actual return on scheme assets in the year was 0.8% (12.6% year to 31 March 2015).
Demographic assumptions
Mortality:
Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves in line with the CMI 2010 model assuming the current rate of improvements has
peaked and will converge to a long term rate of 1.25% p.a., improvements will decline for the over 90s. The resultant average
future life expectancies at age 65 are:
2015/2016
Current pensioners
Future pensioners
Historic mortality: the following life expectancies are based on the Fund's VitaCurves:
Prospective pensioners

Pensions

2014/2015

Male
22.3

Female
24.3

Male
22.3

Female
24.3

24.0

26.6

24.0

26.6

at 31 March 2015
CMI 2010 model
assuming the current
rate of improvements
has peaked and will
converge to a long
term rate of 1.25%.
CMI 2010 model
assuming the current
rate of improvements
has peaked and will
converge to a long
term rate of 1.25%.

at 1 August 2013
Year of birth,
medium cohort
and 1% minimum
improvement from
2010
Year of birth,
medium cohort
and 1% minimum
improvement from
2010

It is expected that during 2016/2017 all but one of the current members of the LGPS scheme will transfer out of the scheme.

Other demographic assumptions used in forming the valuation are:
- Withdrawal and retirement in ill-health are derived from latest assumptions used in the actuarial valuation report.
- Commutation – future retirements are assumed to commute pension into tax-free cash up to 50% of HMRC limits for
service to 31 March 2008 and 75% for service thereafter.
- Age retirements – rule of 85 for those born prior to 31 March 1960 and protected under current regulations, 65 for all
other members.
2015/2016
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2015

2014/2015

£000

£000

(2,290)

(1,682)

(117)

(131)

Interest cost

(78)

(76)

Employee contributions

(26)

(35)

Actuarial losses/(gains) - changes in financial assumptions

354

(366)

Benefits paid

0

0

Curtailments

0

0

(2,157)

(2,290)

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

1,647

1,305

56

60

Current service cost

Closing defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2016

Reconciliation of opening and closing fair values of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets:
Opening fair value of plan assets at 1 April 2015
Interest income
Re-measurement of the net defined benefit (liability)/asset

0

0

(43)

114

0

0

Employer contributions

97

133

Contributions by plan participants

- expected return on plan assets net of interest income
- actuarial gains/(losses)
- changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in interest income/expense)

26

35

Benefits paid

0

0

Assets distributed on settlements

0

0

1,783

1,647

2015/2016

2014/2015

Closing value of plan assets at 31 March 2016

Movement in net pension liability during the year:

£000

£000

Opening surplus/(deficit) in the scheme at 1 April 2015

(643)

(377)

(117)

(131)

(22)

(16)

(139)

(147)

97

133

- actuarial (losses)/gains - changes in financial assumptions

354

(366)

- expected return on plan assets net of interest income

(43)

114

Total re-measurements recognised in other comprehensive income in SoCI

311

(252)

(374)

(643)

Movement in year:
- current service costs
- interest cost
Total defined benefit cost recognised in retained surplus/(deficit) in SoCI
Employer contributions (shown within the SoCI)

Scheme (deficit)/surplus at 31 March 2016 - shown in the SoFP

IAS 19 requires five-year history to be disclosed, showing the present value of liabilities, fair value of assets and the
surplus/deficit in the scheme. Since NHFT joined the LGPS on 1 August 2013, only the current and prior year figures are
shown; further comparatives will be shown in future years.
2015/2016
2014/2015
LGPS pension asset/liability
Fair value of employer assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Surplus/ (Deficit) at 31 March 2016

£000

£000

1,783
(2,157)
(374)

1,647
(2,290)
(643)

Fair value of plan assets comprises

2015/2016

2015/2016

2014/2015

2014/2015

%
37

£000
656

%
38

£000
627

Debt securities

8

151

3

48

Private equity

0

1

0

1

Real estate

9

160

8

126
806

Equity securities

Investment funds and unit trusts

44

781

49

Derivatives

0

0

0

0

Cash and cash equivalents

2

34

2

38

100

1,783

100

1,647

Total

The current service cost of £117,000 (£131,000 2014/2015) has been recognised in operating expenses within the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.
The interest cost of £78,000 (£76,000 2014/2015) has been recognised as a finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive
The expected return on plan assets of £56,000 (£60,000 2014/2015) has been recognised as investment revenue in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.
The 2015/2016 resulting movement of the re-measurement of the LGPS defined benefit liability of £311,000 (sum of the actuarial
gain on the defined benefit obligation in the year £354,000 less actuarial loss on plan assets in the year £43,000) has been
included in the Statement of Taxpayer’s Equity and in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as other comprehensive income
below the net surplus/(deficit) for the year.
The difference between the current service cost and the employer contributions to the scheme which are both included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income has been included in the Foundation Trust’s cash flow statement as an operating cost which
does not result in an in year cash transaction.
The LGPS actuary, Hyman Robertson LLP, have estimated that the employer’s contribution for the year ended 31 March 2017
payable by NHFT to the LGPS will approximately be £97,000 (based on the membership at 31 March 2016).
IAS19 requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and assumptions used. The costs of a pension
arrangement require estimates regarding future experience.
Changes in market conditions that result in changes in the net discount rate (essentially the difference between the discount rate
and the assumed rates of increase of salaries, deferred pension revaluation or pension payment), can have a significant effect on
the value of liabilities reported. A reduction in the net discount rate will increase the assessed value of liabilities as a higher
value is placed on benefits paid in the future. A rise in the net discount rate will have an opposite effect of similar magnitude.
There is also uncertainty around life expectancy of the UK population. The value of current and future pension benefits will
depend on how long they are assumed to be in payment. The disclosures have been prepared using longevity assumptions for
average life expectancies after age 65.

The new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS 2014) supersedes the existing LGPS and changes the provisions of the LGPS
scheme. The LGPS 2014 was in effect as of 1 April 2014 and those changes have been reflected in the actuarial valuation at 31
March 2016.

9.3 NATIONAL EMPLOYEE SAVINGS TRUST PENSION SCHEME (NEST)
Employees of the Foundation Trust may also be members of the NEST scheme. Under the Pensions Act 2008, the Foundation Trust
had a responsibility from 1 August 2013 to have a pension scheme available for all staff meeting the criteria to be enrolled under
the legislation. In some cases staff may not be eligible to join the NHS Pension Scheme and so the Foundation Trust has set up the
NEST scheme as an alternative.
Contributions paid by the Foundation Trust on behalf of employees was £9,527 in 2015/2016 (£7,225 in 2014/2015), and is shown
within operating expenses.

10 RETIREMENTS DUE TO ILL-HEALTH
In the period to 31 March 2016 there were 8 early retirements (4 in the period ending 31 March 2015) from the Foundation Trust
agreed on the grounds of ill-health.
The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £536,359 (£387,808 in the period to 31 March
The cost of these ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division.

11. PAYMENT PERFORMANCE
11.1 BETTER PAYMENT PRACTICE CODE

Number

£000

2015/2016
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the period
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

45,493
40,467
89%
784
690
88%

65,851
60,660
92%
7,201
6,700
93%

2014/2015
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid in the period
Total non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of non-NHS trade invoices paid within target
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the period
Total NHS trade invoices paid within target
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid within target

45,470
39,868
88%
772
728
94%

51,853
46,963
91%
13,929
13,487
97%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Foundation Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices by the due date or within
30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later.

11.2 THE LATE PAYMENT OF COMMERCIAL DEBTS (INTEREST) ACT 1998
Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs
Total

12. FINANCE INCOME
PFI finance lease revenue:
- planned
- contingent
Other finance lease revenue
Interest revenue:
- Bank accounts
- Other
Total

13. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain/(loss) on disposal of intangible assets
Total

2015/2016
£000
0
0
0

2014/2015
£000
0
0
0

2015/2016
£000

2014/2015
£000

0
0
0

0
0
0

115
56
171

140
60
200

2015/2016
£000
(1)
(49)
(50)

2014/2015
£000
(47)
0
(47)

The loss on disposal does not relate to land and buildings assets used in the provision of commissioner requested services.

14. FINANCE COST - INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on obligations under finance leases
Interest on obligations under PFI contracts:
- main finance cost
- contingent finance cost
Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Other interest expense
Total interest expense
Other finance costs
Total interest expense

2015/2016
£000
2

2014/2015
£000
2

1,987
786
0
79
2,854
0
2,854

2,052
761
0
76
2,891
0
2,891

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land Buildings Dwellings
excluding
dwellings

AUC* Plant and Transport
machinery equipment

£000

£000

£000

£000

15,045

70,154

1,580

2,861

481

Additions purchased
Impairments charged to operating
expenses
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments credited to
operating incomes

0

1,996

0

444

198

0

1,653

50

4,341

0

(382)

0

(51)

0

0

0

0

(433)

0

(539)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(539)

0

1,024

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,024

Reclassifications

0

568

0

(2,790)

0

0

2,222

0

0

260

5,432

56

0

0

0

0

0

5,748

(180)

(189)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(369)

(133)

(2,854)

15.1 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT 2015/2016
Cost/valuation at 1 April 2015

Revaluation/indexation gains
Transfer to disposal group as held for sale
Disposals

£000

£000

IT Furniture
and
fittings
£000

31 13,237

£000

Total

£000

2,072 105,461

0

0

0

0

(31)

0 (2,690)

15,125

78,064

1,636

464

648

31 14,422

Depreciation at 1 April 2015

0

1,810

0

0

265

22

7,256

819

10,172

Charged during the period

0

1,802

21

0

64

6

2,220

210

4,323

Transfer to disposal group as held for sale

0

(14)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(14)

Disposals

0

0

0

0

(28)

0 (2,674)

(111)

(2,813)

Depreciation at 31 March 2016

0

3,598

21

0

301

28

6,802

918

11,668

15,125

74,466

1,615

464

347

3

7,620

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,125

74,466

1,615

464

347

3

7,620

1,071 100,711

15,125

26,236

1,615

340

347

0

7,620

1,071

52,354

Finance lease/private finance Initiative

0

48,230

0

124

0

3

0

0

48,357

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,125

74,466

1,615

464

347

3

7,620

Cost/valuation at 31 March 2016

1,989 112,379

Net book value
Purchased

Net book value total at 31 March 2016

1,071 100,711

Asset financing
Owned

Net book value total at 31 March 2016
* = Assets under construction

1,071 100,711

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
15.2 PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT 2014/2015

Cost/valuation at 1 April 2014
Additions purchased
Impairments charged to operating
expenses
Impairments charged to the revaluation
reserve
Reversal of impairments credited to
operating incomes
Reclassifications

Land Buildings Dwellings
excluding
dwellings

AUC* Plant and Transport
machinery equipment

£000

£000

£000

£000

14,355

65,432

0

2,664

635

0

1,507

868

1,827

43

0

2,513

0

(396)

0

(195)

0

0

0

(110)

0

0

0

5

2,161

0

0

£000

£000

IT Furniture
and
fittings

Total

£000

£000

£000

85 11,432

1,683

96,286

426

7,184

0

0

(591)

0

0

0

(110)

0

0

0

0

2,166

0

204

0

(1,435)

0

0

1,231

0

0

850

3,492

712

0

0

0

0

0

5,054

(150)

(340)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(490)

(15)

(1,796)

0

0

(197)

(54) (1,939)

(37)

(4,038)

15,045

70,154

1,580

2,861

481

31 13,237

2,072

105,461

Depreciation at 1 April 2014

0

1,756

0

0

404

70

6,408

680

9,318

Charged during the period

0

1,861

0

0

57

6

2,725

176

4,825

Transfer to disposal group as held for sale

0

(15)

0

0

0

0

0

0

(15)

Disposals

0

(1,792)

0

0

(196)

(54) (1,877)

(37)

(3,956)

Depreciation at 31 March 2015

0

1,810

0

0

265

22

7,256

819

10,172

15,045

68,344

1,580

2,861

216

9

5,981

1,253

95,289

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Government granted

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,045

68,344

1,580

2,861

216

9

5,981

1,253

95,289

15,045

24,370

1,580

2,861

215

0

5,981

1,253

51,305

Finance Lease / Private Finance Initiative

0

43,974

0

0

1

9

0

0

43,984

Donated

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

15,045

68,344

1,580

2,861

216

9

5,981

1,253

95,289

Revaluation/indexation gains
Transfer to disposal group as held for sale
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2015

Net book value
Purchased

Net book value total at 31 March 2015
Asset financing
Owned

Net book value total at 31 March 2015

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT)
There are no donated assets in year.
The effective date of revaluation of property, plant and equipment is 31 March 2014 with an assessment of changes in value
made by the district valuer at 31 March 2016 using available industry indices and market information.
The revaluation is based on district valuer valuation, on a modern equivalent asset basis.
Asset lives for each class of asset held are as follows:
Min. Life

Max. Life

(Years)

(Years)

Buildings excluding dwellings

1

72

Dwellings

1

90

Plant and Machinery

1

10

Transport equipment

1

5

Information technology

1

10

Furniture and fittings

1

10

Software licences (purchased)

1

5

At 31 March 2016, of the total non-current asset values, £350,000 (£330,000 at 31 March 2015) related to land valued
at open market value and £1,105,000 (£1,105,000 at 31 March 2015) related to buildings valued at open market value.
There is no compensation from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up and therefore nil is included in the
income statement.
The gross carrying amount of fully depreciated tangible assets still in use is £1,867,883 (£3,516,334 at 31 March 2015).

15.3 PROPERTIES LEASED TO THIRD PARTIES BY THE FOUNDATION TRUST
Gross

Accum

Deprn in

Revaluation

Totals

cost

deprn

year

in year

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

£'000

12 Wales Street

230

0

0

10

240

399 Cottingham Road

230

0

0

10

240

39 Billing Road

675

0

0

0

675

1,135

0

0

20

1,155

Asset

There are £nil (£nil in the 12 months to 31 March 2015) of impairments recognised and £nil (£nil in the 12 months to 31
March 2015) of impairments reversed for these assets.

15.4 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Net book value at 1 April 2015
Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Land

Total

£000

£000

£000

325

150

475

175

180

(325)

(150)

Less impairments of assets held for sale

0

0

0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale
Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other than
disposal by sale

0

0

0

Less assets sold in the year

Net book value at 31 March 2016
Net book value at 1 April 2014

355
(475)

0

0

0

175

180

355

0

0

0

325

150

475

Less assets sold in the year

0

0

0

Plus reversal of impairment of assets held for sale

0

0

0

Plus assets classified as held for sale in the year

Less assets no longer classified as held for sale, for reasons other than
disposal by sale
Net book value at 31 March 2015

0

0

0

325

150

475

Software licences purchased
£000

AUC
£000

Total
£000

1,482
240
(68)
1,654

0
84
0
84

1,482
324
(68)
1,738

124
(19)
283
388

0
0
0
0

124
(19)
283
388

Analysis of net book value total at 31 March 2016
Purchased
Donated
Government granted
Finance leased
Net book value total at 31 March 2016

1,266
0
0
0
1,266

84
0
0
0
84

1,350
0
0
0
1,350

2014/2015
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014
Additions purchased
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2015

203
1,357
(78)
1,482

0
0
0
0

203
1,357
(78)
1,482

191
(78)
11
124

0
0
0
0

191
(78)
11
124

1,358
0
0
0
1,358

0
0
0
0
0

1,358
0
0
0
1,358

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2015/2016
Cost or valuation at 1 April 2015
Additions purchased / internally generated
Disposals
Cost or valuation at 31 March 2016
Amortisation at 1 April 2015
Disposals
Charged during the period
Amortisation at 31 March 2016

Amortisation at 1 April 2014 as previously stated
Disposals
Charged during the period
Amortisation at 31 March 2015
Analysis of net book value total at 31 March 2015
Purchased
Donated
Government granted
Finance leased
Net book value total at 31 March 2015

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT.)
The intangible assets within Note 18 relate to externally procured software. In line with the valuation policy for
tangible IT assets, intangible assets have not been revalued. The current values are considered to be fair in that
they are the result of the application of amortisation on a straight line basis. The carrying amount of the
intangible assets at cost is £1,350,137 (£1,357,726 at 31 March 2015). There are no intangible assets which have
indefinite lives and the finite lives of the intangible assets are between nil and five years. There are no intangible
assets acquired by government grant. The value of intangible assets still in use, which have been fully amortised is
£118,850 (£118,850 at 31 March 2015). There are no intangible assets controlled by the Foundation Trust which
are not recognised as assets because they did not meet the recognition criteria of IAS 38.

17. IMPAIRMENTS
An impairment review was carried out at the end of the financial period and an impairment of £972,000
(£701,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2015) on land and buildings has been recognised.
The year end review of values in conjunction with the district valuer also identified an increase in land and
building assets that had previously been impaired of £1,024,074 (£2,166,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2015).
The net impact on the SoCI is an impairment reversal of £591,000 (£1,575,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2015).
No impairments were recognised prior to the disposal of assets during the year (2014/2015 £nil).
The overall revaluation impact was to increase the value of the Foundation Trust's estate by £5,800,000 (increase
of £6,714,000 in the 12 months to 31 March 2015) with a £5,209,000 increase (£4,944,000 increase in the 12
months to 31 March 2015) to revaluation reserves.

17.1 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

2015/2016

2014/2015

£000

£000

382

396

Impairments / (reversals) charged to operating surplus/deficit
Over specification of assets
Abandonment of assets in the course of construction
Changes in market price
Total impairments / (reversals) charged to operating surplus

51

195

(1,024)

(2,166)

(591)

(1,575)

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve

539

110

Total impairments

(52)

(1,465)

18. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Contracted capital commitments not otherwise included in these financial
statements
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
£000
£000
548

715

0

0

548

715

19. INVENTORIES
31 March 2016 31 March 2015

19.1 INVENTORIES
Consumables

£000

£000

122

103

Other

27

20

Total

149

123

19.2 INVENTORIES RECOGNISED IN EXPENSES
Inventories recognised as an expense in the period
Write-down of inventories recognised as an expense
Reversal of any write-downs of inventories resulting in a reduction of
recognised expenses
Total

31 March 2016 31 March 2015
£000

£000

726

700

0

0

0

0

726

700

20.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
NHS receivables - revenue
Receivables due from NHS Charities - revenue
Provision for the impairment of receivables
Deposits and advances
Prepayments
PDC receivable
VAT receivable
Other receivables - revenue
Total
Non-current
Total

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

2,952
23
(130)
1
833
280
251
1,896
6,106

2,058
4
(64)
1
1,449
205
351
2,990
6,994

0

0

The majority of trade is with CCGs as commissioners for NHS patient care services.
As CCGs are funded by government to buy NHS patient care services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.

20.1 AGEING OF RECEIVABLES
Ageing of impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 180 days
180 - 360 days
Total
Ageing of non-impaired receivables
0 - 30 days
30 - 60 days
60 - 90 days
90 - 180 days
180 - 360 days
Total

20.2 PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES
Balance at start of period
Increase in provision
Amounts utilised
Unused amounts recovered
Balance at end of period

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

0
2
0
22
106
130

0
0
0
7
57
64

3,667
84
99
321
302
4,473

3,399
91
113
228
197
4,028

31 March 2016
£000
64
163
(19)
(78)
130

31 March 2015
£000
133
18
(4)
(83)
64

Receivables impaired relate to trade receivables which have been examined on a case by case basis in terms of their potential
recovery.

21.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
There are no other financial assets.

22. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
There are no other current assets.

23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£000

£000

33,634

Balance at 1 April

(2,213)

Net change in period
Balance at 31 March

41,173
(7,539)

31,421

33,634

31,331

33,544

90

90

Made up of
Cash with Government Banking Service
Commercial banks and cash in hand
Current investments
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP

0

0

31,421

33,634

0

0

31,421

33,634

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

Bank overdraft
Cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Current

£000

£000

1,141

4,287

Other trade payables - capital

538

682

Other trade payables - revenue

457

441

Social security costs

1,086

1,074

Other taxes payable

1,001

1,083

Other payables

1,668

1,609

Accruals

14,953

10,911

Total current trade and other payables

20,844

20,087

0

0

NHS payables - revenue

Non-current
Total non-current trade and other payables
All the above trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

24.1 EARLY RETIREMENTS IN NHS PAYABLES
There are no early retirements in NHS payables.

25. BORROWINGS
Current
Finance lease liabilities

31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£000

£000

0

7

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession

1,345

1,292

Total current borrowings

1,345

1,299

Non-current
Finance lease liabilities

0

1

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession

36,318

37,662

Total non-current borrowings

36,318

37,663

Finance lease liabilities relate to commitments on vehicles and office equipment which have been capitalised. Expected dates
of settlement are consistent with lease termination dates which range between one and five years.
Date of settlement for the Welland PFI scheme is 2035 (30 years from date of completion of construction).
Date of settlement for the Berrywood PFI scheme is 2037 (30 years from date of completion of financial close).

26. OTHER LIABILITIES
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£000

£000

Deferred income

176

144

Total current other liabilities

176

144

Current

Non-current
Deferred income

0

0

Net pension scheme liability for LGPS

374

643

Total non-current other liabilities

374

643

27. FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATIONS
The Foundation Trust leased mainly vehicles and office equipment with relevant leasing companies, there are no purchasing
options at the end of lease and there are no favourable terms of renewal.
No contingent rent is payable.
Minimum lease payments
31 March 2016

31 March 2015

£000

£000

Gross lease liabilities of which liabilities are:

0

10

Within one year

0

9

Between one and five years

0

1

After five years

0

0

Less future finance charges

0

(2)

Net lease liabilities of which liabilities are due:

0

8

Within one year

0

7

Between one and five years

0

1

After five years

0

0

Total amounts payable under finance leases

0

8

Amounts payable under finance leases:

28. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES, I.E. AS LESSOR
There are no finance lease receivables and there is no finance lease rental revenue.

29. FINANCE LEASE COMMITMENTS
Finance leases above £5,000 are capitalised. There are no finance lease commitments.

30. PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE CONTRACTS
30.1 PFI SCHEMES OFF-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
There are no off-Statement of Financial Position PFI schemes.

30.2 PFI SCHEMES ON-STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
There are two PFI schemes:
- the Welland scheme in Kettering which opened in December 2005 and comprises two treatment wards and an assessment ward. The
term of the agreement is 30 years from the date of the handover of the asset, which is December 2035.
- the Berrywood scheme in Northampton which opened in December 2008 and comprises four assessment wards, an ICU, elderly beds,
low secure beds and rehab beds. The term of the agreement is 30 years from the commencement of construction of the asset, which
is the end of October 2037.
Under IFRIC 12, the PFI assets are treated as assets of the Foundation Trust; as the substance of the contract is that the Foundation Trust
has a finance lease and payments comprise two elements – imputed finance lease charges and service charges. Details of the imputed
finance lease charges are shown in the table below.
At the end of the contract period the facilities and equipment will be handed back to the Foundation Trust in a specified condition, at
no cost. If this condition is not met then the operator may be required to compensate the Foundation Trust, under the terms of the
agreement. No renewal options are noted.
The contracts may be terminated by either party if specified default conditions are met. There are voluntary termination options
within the contracts, although there is a financial penalty if these are exercised. No changes to the contractual arrangements have
occurred during 2015/2016.

Total obligations for on-Statement of Financial Position PFI contracts due:
Gross PFI liabilities of which liabilities are due:
Not later than one year
Later than one year, not later than five years
Later than five years
Gross PFI liabilities
Finance charges allocated to future periods
Net PFI liabilities of which liabilities are due:
Not later than one year
Later than one year, not later than five years
Later than five years
Net PFI liabilities

Total future payments committed in respect of PFI, LIFT or other service concession
arrangements of which liabilities are due:
Not later than one year
Later than one year, not later than five years
Later than five years

31 March 2016
£000
61,953
3,266
11,555
47,132
61,953
(24,290)
37,663
1,345
4,494
31,824
37,663

31 March 2015
£000
65,231
3,279
11,924
50,028
65,231
(26,277)
38,954
1,292
4,625
33,037
38,954

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

90,585
5,459
20,568
64,558

93,796
5,401
20,514
67,881

The PFI contracts set the required performance standard, including availability, and set out the associated penalty deductions for
unavailability.
There are no other obligations to acquire or build items of property, plant and equipment other than the equipment replacement
specified in the lifecycle values within the unitary charge.
There are no other rights and obligations noted in the contracts.

30.3 CHARGES TO EXPENDITURE
The total charged in the period to expenditure in respect of the service element of on-Statement of Financial Position PFI
contracts was £1,428,886 (£1,223,938 2014/2015).
31 March 2016
31 March 2015
Commitments in respect of the service element:
£000
£000
Not later than one year
1,217
1,206
Later than one year, not later than five years
5,228
5,186
Later than five years
27,728
29,895
34,173
36,287
Total

30.4 AMOUNTS PAYABLE TO SERVICE CONCESSION OPERATOR
Analysis of amounts paid to service concession operator
Consisting of:
Interest charge
Repayment of finance lease liability
Service element
Capital lifecycle maintenance
Contingent rent
Total

31 March 2016
£000

31 March 2015
£000

1,987
1,292
1,429
325
786
5,819

2,052
1,269
1,224
275
761
5,581

31 March 2016
£000
0
26
51
6,858
6,935

31 March 2015
£000
0
25
88
7,913
8,026

0
443
0
443

0
452
27
479

31. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
There are no other financial liabilities.

32. PROVISIONS
Current
Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Legal claims
Other
Total
Non-current
Pensions relating to former directors
Pensions relating to other staff
Other
Total

Legal claims are as advised by the NHSLA who administer claims on behalf of the Foundation Trust and outstanding claims are
expected to clear by 31 March 2017.
Pension provisions relate to staff who have retired early on ill health grounds from the NHS Pensions Scheme. They are calculated
in accordance with Department of Health guidance. There is no uncertainty with regard to timing or values.
Other includes:
- £5,415k (£4,094k at 31 March 2015) service change / reprovision costs that are based on calculated entitlements and are
expected to materialise by the end of 2016/2017.
- £30k (£771k at 31 March 2015) for dilapidation works expected at the end of property leases
£2,091k (£1,364k at 31 March 2015) is included in the provisions of the NHS Litigation Authority in respect of clinical negligence
liabilities of the Foundation Trust.

32. PROVISIONS (CONTINUED)
At 1 April 2015
Arising during the period
Used during the period
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2016
Expected timing of cash flows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
At 31 March 2016
At 1 April 2014
Arising during the period
Used during the period
Reversed unused
Unwinding of discount
At 31 March 2015
Expected timing of cash flows:
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years
At 31 March 2015

Pensions
relating to
other staff

Legal claims

Other

Total

£000
477
0
(26)
0
18
469

£000
88
33
(5)
(65)
0
51

£000
7,940
5,072
(792)
(5,362)
0
6,858

£000
8,505
5,105
(823)
(5,427)
18
7,378

26
104
339
469

51
0
0
51

6,858
0
0
6,858

6,935
104
339
7,378

481
0
(25)
0
21
477

79
58
(11)
(38)
0
88

12,794
3,217
(5,277)
(2,794)
0
7,940

13,354
3,275
(5,313)
(2,832)
21
8,505

25
100
352
477

88
0
0
88

7,913
12
15
7,940

8,026
112
367
8,505

33. CONTINGENCIES
33.1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Foundation Trust has contingent liabilities arising from claims being assessed by the NHS Litigation Authority of £41,331
at 31 March 2016 (this was not disclosed in the 2014/2015 financial statements).

33.2 CONTINGENT ASSETS
There are no contingent assets.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
34.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and
receivables
£000
0
4,667
31,421
0
0
36,088

£000
0
4,667
31,421
0
0
36,088

0
4,899
33,634
0
38,533

0
4,899
33,634
0
38,533

Embedded derivatives
Obligations under finance leases
Obligations under PFI contracts
Payables
Provisions under contract
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2016

Other
£000
0
0
37,663
17,000
80
0
54,743

Total
£000
0
0
37,663
17,000
80
0
54,743

Embedded derivatives
Obligations under finance leases
Obligations under PFI contracts
Payables
Provisions under contract
Other financial liabilities
Total at 31 March 2015

0
8
38,954
16,321
858
0
56,141

0
8
38,954
16,321
858
0
56,141

Embedded derivatives
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets held for sale
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2016
Embedded derivatives
Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2015

34.2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Total

34.3 MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
In one year or less
In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not more than five years
In more than five years

31 March 2016
£000
18,425
1,298
3,195
31,825
54,743

31 March 2015
£000
18,478
1,345
3,281
33,037
56,141

£000
Book value
0
80
0
0
80

£000
Fair value
0
80
0
0
80

34.4 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Non current trade and other payables excluding non-financial liabilities
Provisions under contract
Loans
Other
Total

34.5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial reporting standard IFRS7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in
creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship
that the Foundation Trust has with Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) and the way those CCGs are financed, the Foundation
Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more
limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to which the financial reporting standards
mainly apply. The Foundation Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are
generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Foundation Trust in
undertaking its activities.
The Foundation Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department.
Currency risk
The Foundation Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the
UK and sterling based. The foundation trust has no overseas operations. The Foundation Trust therefore has low exposure to
currency rate fluctuations.
Interest rate risk
The Foundation Trust is free to borrow from commercial or public sector sources for capital expenditure, subject to limits set by
Monitor, the independent regulator, and as specified in their terms of authorisation. Therefore has a relatively low exposure to
interest rate fluctuations.
Credit risk
Because the majority of the Foundation Trust’s income comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, the Foundation
Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 2016 are in receivables from customers, as
disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.
Liquidity risk
The Foundation Trust’s operating costs are incurred under contracts with CCGs and NHS England, which are financed from
resources voted annually by Parliament. The Foundation Trust funds its capital expenditure from internally generated cash from
operations and asset sales. The Foundation Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no known events after the reporting period that impact on the financial statements for 2015/2016.
The Foundation Trust is a partner of First for Wellbeing, a community interest company, which came into operation on 1 April

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the period none of the Foundation Trust board of directors or members of the key management staff, or parties related
to any of them, has undertaken any material transactions with Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust.
During the year Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material transactions with
related parties, as detailed below:
Amounts due
Amounts
Receipts from
Payments to
from related
owed to
related party related party
party related party
2015/2016
£000
£000
£000
£000
Board of directors
0
0
0
0
Key staff members
0
0
0
0
Department of Health
7
1,549
280
0
Nene CCG
116,396
15
560
0
Corby CCG
8,530
0
83
0
Northampton General NHS Trust
1,259
1,466
4
266
Kettering General NHS Foundation Trust
1,419
1,130
88
10
Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit
20
0
0
15
NHS England
32,146
5
512
244
Other NHS bodies
6,003
6,849
1,705
780
Charitable funds
0
0
23
0
Northamptonshire County Council
17,095
338
1,178
805
NHS Pensions Agency
0
12,165
0
1,666
Local Government Pension Scheme
0
100
0
7
Other
808
7,181
351
2,512
Total
183,683
30,798
4,784
6,305
2014/2015
Board of directors
Key staff members
Department of Health
Nene CCG
Corby CCG
Northampton General NHS Trust
Kettering General NHS Foundation Trust
Greater East Midlands Commissioning Support Unit
NHS England
Other NHS bodies
Charitable funds
Northamptonshire County Council
NHS Pensions Agency
Local Government Pension Scheme
Other
Total

0
0
10
116,353
8,450
1,221
1,164
185
28,918
6,274
0
11,447
0
0
842
174,864

0
0
1,469
30
0
7,412
1,856
20
4
5,270
0
108
12,133
132
8,246
36,680

0
0
205
0
12
12
96
119
500
1,319
4
1,743
42
0
890
4,942

0
0
0
169
109
307
106
17
358
3,363
0
31
1,760
17
2,803
9,040

The LGPS, which is administered by NCC, is a related party to the Foundation Trust. Amounts paid over include an allowance
for administration expenses of 0.9% of payroll costs to NCC for administration of the LGPS in 2015/2016 (0.9% in 2014/2015).

37. THIRD PARTY ASSETS
The Trust held £6,618 (£6,094 at 31 March 2015) cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2016 which relates to monies held by
the NHS Trust on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the

38. INTRA-GOVERNMENT AND OTHER BALANCES
Current
receivables

Non-current
receivables

Current
payables

Non-current
payables

£000

£000

£000

£000

Balances with Department of Health

280

0

0

0

Balances with Public Health England

0

0

1

0

Balances with NHS England and CCGs

1,705

0

259

0

Balances with Health Education England

253

0

0

0

Balances with NHS Trusts

164

0

378

0

Balances with other FTs

125

0

59

0

Balances with Special Health Authorities
Balances with NDPBs
Balances with Other DH bodies
Balances with Local Government
Balances Central Government

0

0

5

0

19

0

0

0

686

0

439

0

1,278

0

842

0

251

0

4,146

0

Intra-government balances

4,761

0

6,129

0

Balances with bodies external to government

1,345

0

14,715

0

At 31 March 2016

6,106

0

20,844

0

205

0

0

0

1,238

0

655

0

35

0

0

0

82

0

430

0

126

0

137

0

Balances with Department of Health
Balances with NHS England and CCGs
Balances with Health Education England
Balances with NHS Trusts
Balances with other FTs
Balances with NDPBs

3

0

0

0

574

0

3,207

0

2,281

0

178

0

393

0

4,433

0

Intra-government balances

4,937

0

9,040

0

Balances with bodies external to government

2,057

0

11,047

0

At 31 March 2015

6,994

0

20,087

0

31 March 2016 31 March 2016

Balances with Other DH bodies
Balances with Local Government
Balances Central Government

39. LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS
31 March 2015

31 March 2015

Number
21
0
21

£000
10
0
10

Number
20
1
21

£000
11
29
40

Special Payments
Compensation payments
Ex-gratia payments
Total special payments

12
18
30

33
7
40

17
20
37

118
5
123

Total losses and special payments

51

50

58

163

Losses
Losses of cash
Bad debts and claims abandoned
Total losses

Losses and special payments are accounted for on an accruals basis.

40. OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
The Foundation Trust has not entered into any non-cancellable contracts which are not leases, PFI contracts or other service
concession arrangements.

Revaluation reserve property, plant and
equipment
£000

Revaluation reserve assets held for sale

12,096

130

12,226

Impairments

(539)

0

(539)

Revaluations

5,748

0

5,748

(2)

(130)

(132)

0

0

0

(54)

54

0

0

0

0

17,249

54

17,303

7,367

0

7,367

Impairments

(110)

0

(110)

Revaluations

5,054

0

5,054

(85)

0

(85)

0

0

0

(130)

130

0

0

0

0

12,096

130

12,226

41. REVALUATION RESERVE
At 1 April 2015

Disposals
Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation
over historical cost depreciation to the Income and
Expenditure Reserve
Other reserve movements
Movements on other reserves
Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2016
At 1 April 2014

Disposals
Transfer of the excess of current cost depreciation
over historical cost depreciation to the Income and
Expenditure Reserve
Other reserve movements
Movements on other reserves
Revaluation reserve at 31 March 2015

£000

Total revaluation
reserve
£000
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Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit

1

Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Northamptonshire Healthcare NHS Foundation
Trust for the year ended 31 March 2016 set out on pages 182 to 230. In our opinion:
•

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at
31 March 2016 and of the Trust’s income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

•

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16.

2

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the risks of material
misstatement that had the greatest effect on our audit were as follows (there are no changes
in the risks included below from the prior year):
Valuation of land and buildings - £91 million (2014-15 £85 million)
Refer to page 51 (Audit Committee Report), pages 191 to 194 (accounting policy) and
pages 216 to 220 (financial disclosures).
The risk: Land and buildings are required to be maintained at up to date estimates of yearend market value in existing use (EUV) for non-specialised property assets in operational
use, and, for specialised assets where no market value is readily ascertainable, the
depreciated replacement cost of a modern equivalent asset that has the same service
potential as the existing property (DRC). There is significant judgment involved in
determining the appropriate basis (EUV or DRC) for each asset according to the degree of
specialization, as well as over the assumptions made in arriving at the valuation. In
particular the DRC basis requires an assumption as to whether the replacement asset would
be situated on the existing site or, if more appropriate, on an alternative site, with a
potentially significant effect on the valuation.
For 2015/16 an interim “desk-top” revaluation of all of the land and buildings, which did
not involve the physical inspection of the assets, was undertaken by an external valuer.
There is thus a risk that the valuation may not reflect the current use or condition of the
assets.
Our response: In this area our audit procedures included:
•

assessing the competence, capability, objectivity and independence of the Trust’s
external valuer and considering the terms of engagement of, and the instructions issued
to, the valuer for consistency with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust
Annual Reporting Manual;

•

Obtaining the instructions provided to the valuer and reconciling the list of properties
to be valued to the asset register;

•

Visited all buildings of material value to confirm existence and to check for evidence
of any material changes to the condition of the building which would suggest an
impairment was required;

•

Undertaking work to understand the basis upon which any revaluations to land and
buildings have been recognised in the financial statements and determining whether
they complied with the requirements of the ARM; and

We also considered the adequacy of the Trust’s disclosures in respect of land and
buildings with particular focus on the disclosures for the PFI schemes.

NHS Income Recognition - £179 million (2014-15 £171 million)
Refer to page 51 (Audit Committee Report), page 199-200 (accounting policy) and pages
201 to 122 (financial disclosures).

The risk: The main source of income for the Trust is the provision of healthcare services
to the public, which make up 96% of income (2014-15 - 94%). The Trust participates in
the Agreement of Balances (AoB) exercise which is mandated by the Department of Health
(the Department), covering the English NHS only, for the purpose of ensuring that intraNHS balances are eliminated when the consolidation exercise takes place to report the
Department’s Consolidated Resource Account. The AoB exercise identifies mismatches
between income and expenditure and receivable and payable balances recognised by the
Trust and its counter parties at 31 March 2016.
Mis-matches can occur for a number of reasons, but the most significant arise where the
Trust and commissioners have not concluded the reconciliations of healthcare spells
completed within the last quarter of the financial year, which have not yet been invoiced,
or there is not final agreement over proposed contract penalties as activity data for the
period has not been finally validated.
We do not consider NHS income to be at high risk of significant misstatement, or to be
subject to a significant level of judgment. However, due to its materiality in the context of
the financial statements as a whole NHS income is considered to be one of the areas which
had the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy and allocation of resources in planning
and completing our audit.

Our response: In this area our audit procedures included:
•

Reconciling the income recorded in the financial statements to signed contracts with
material counter parties and reviewing material variations supported by explanations
from the Trust;

•

Assessing whether the Trust was in formal dispute or arbitration in relation to any
material income balances and examining the supporting correspondence, including - if
appropriate - any legal advice, for consistency with the treatment of these balances
within the financial statements;

•

Inspecting third party confirmations from other NHS counter parties and comparing
the values disclosed within their financial statements to the values recorded in the
Trust’s financial statements through the English AoB exercise; and

•

Carrying out testing of a sample of invoices raised around the financial year-end to
determine whether income had been recognised in the appropriate period.

We also considered the adequacy of the Trust’s disclosures in respect of income,
particularly in relation to any key judgments made and estimates used in recognising
income.

3

Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit

The materiality for the financial statements was set at £3.5 million (prior year £3.5 million),
determined with reference to a benchmark of income from operations (of which it
represents 2%, prior year 2%). We consider income from operations to be more stable than
a surplus-related benchmark.
We report to the Audit Committee any corrected and uncorrected identified misstatements
exceeding £175,000 (prior year £175,000), in addition to other identified misstatements
that warrant reporting on qualitative grounds.
Our audit of the Trust was undertaken to the materiality level specified above and was all
performed at the Trust’s offices in Kettering.

4
Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice is
unmodified
In our opinion:
•

the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report to be audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual
2015/16; and

•

the information given in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

5
We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to
report by exception
Under ISAs (UK&I) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we
acquired during our audit, we have identified other information in the Annual Report that
contains a material inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial statements, a
material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.
In particular, we are required to report to you if:
•

we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during
our audit and the directors’ statement that they consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the
Trust’s performance, business model and strategy; or

•

the Report of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the audit committee.

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report to you if in our opinion:
•

the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the disclosure requirements set out
in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2015/16, is misleading or is
not consistent with our knowledge of the Trust and other information of which we are
aware from our audit of the financial statements.

•

the Trust has not made proper arrangement for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.

In addition we are required to report to you if:
•

any reports to the regulator have been made under Schedule 10(6) of the National
Health Service Act 2006.

•

any matters have been reported in the public interest under Schedule 10(3) of the
National Health Service Act 2006 in the course of, or at the end of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.
Certificate of audit completion
We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Northamptonshire
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with the requirements of Schedule 10 of
the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the National
Audit Office.
Respective responsibilities of the accounting officer and auditor
As described more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities on page
182 the accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the UK Ethical
Standards for Auditors.
Scope of an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with ISAs (UK and
Ireland)
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on our website at
www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeother2014. This report is made subject to important
explanations regarding our responsibilities, as published on that website, which are
incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read to provide an
understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of
our opinions.
Respective responsibilities of the Trust and auditor in respect of arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources
The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Under Section 62(1) and Schedule 10 paragraph 1(d), of the National Health Service Act
2006 we have a duty to satisfy ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required
to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating
effectively.
Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor
General (C&AG), as to whether the Trust has proper arrangements to ensure it took
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable
outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The C&AG determined this criterion as necessary
for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the
Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness
in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016.
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a view on
whether, in all significant respects, the Trust had put in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance
with Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report or for the opinions we have formed.

Andrew Bostock
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
1 Snow Hill
Queensway
B4 6GH
26 May 2016
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Now you can follow our progress, find out more about our services, read
reports from our meetings, keep up-to-date on our news and send us
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